
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â  Emma Sullivan 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864420   Ebost: sullie@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 10 Ebrill 2019 

 

 
Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ffilmio a’i we-ddarlledu, ac ar gael i’w weld yn fyw ac mewn ffurf archif 
drwy wefan y Cyngor, ag eithrio trafodaeth yn ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriadau.  Felly 
bydd delweddau /sain yr unigolion sy’n arsylwi neu siarad/roi tystiolaeth yng nghyfarfodydd Llawn y 

Cyngor ar gael yn gyhoeddusi bawb weld drwy’r we-ddarllediad ar wefan y Cyngor www.caerffili.gov.uk. 

 
Mae croeso i chi siarad Cymraeg yn y cyfarfod, mae angen rhybudd cyfnod lleiafswm o 3 diwrnod gwaith os 

ydych yn dymuno gwneud hynny. Bydd cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu os gofynnir amdano. 
 

Mae pob cyfarfod pwyllgor ar agor i’r Wasg a’r Cyhoedd, gofynnir i arsylwyr a chyfranogwyr  i ymddwyn 
gyda pharch ac ystyriaeth at eraill.  Nodwch bydd methu a gwneud hyn yn arwain at rywun yn gofyn i chi 

adael y cyfarfod ac efallai byddwch yn cael eich hebrwng o’r eiddo. 
 

 

 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod y Cyngor yn cael ei gynnal yn Siambr y Cyngor - Tŷ Penallta, Tredomen, Ystrad 
Mynach ar Dydd Mawrth, 16eg Ebrill, 2019 am 5.00 pm i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda 
canlynol. 
 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO  
 
 

A G E N D A 
Tudalennau 

 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 
  

 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



2  Cyhoeddiadau’r Maer. 
  

 
3  I dderbyn deisebau o dan Reol Gweithdrefn 28(3). 

  
 

4  Cyflwyno Gwobrau. 
  

 
5  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 

 
 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
6  Cyngor Arbennig a gynhaliwyd ar 21 Chwefror 2019. 

1 - 14  
 

7  Cyngor a gynhaliwyd ar 5 Mawrth 2019. 
15 - 24  

 
8  I dderbyn ac i ateb cwestiynau a dderbyniwyd o dan Reol Gweithdrefn 10(4). 

  
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol:- 
 
9  Adolygiad o Graffu. 

25 - 42  
 

10  Y defnydd o Ddata Pleidleisio Electronig. 
43 - 46  

 
11  Uwchgynllun Ystrad Mynach. 

47 - 218  
 

 
Cylchrediad: 
Pob Aelod a Swyddog Priodol 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

 
Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
 
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan 
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/CommitteeMeetingsPrivacyNotice.aspx  neu cysylltwch â 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  01443 863028. 
 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/
mailto:griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk


 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

CYNGOR  
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD ARBENNIG A GYNHALIWYD YN NHŶ PENALLTA, 
YSTRAD MYNACH AR DDYDD IAU 21 CHWEFROR 2019 AM 5.00PM 

 

  

YN BRESENNOL:  
 

Y Cynghorydd M. Adams – Maer 
Y Cynghorydd J. Simmonds – Dirprwy Faer 

 
Cynghorwyr: 

 
  Mrs E. Aldworth, C. Andrews, A. Angel, C. Bezzina, L. Binding, S. Cook, D. Cushing, C. Cuss, 

W. David, M. Davies, D.T. Davies, N. Dix, K. Etheridge, A. Farina-Childs, Mrs C. Forehead, A. 
Gair, Ms J. Gale, N. George, C. Gordon, R.W. Gough, D.T. Hardacre, D. Harse, D. Havard, A. 
Higgs, A. Hussey, M. James, G. Johnston, Mrs B. Jones, G. Kirby, Mrs A. Leonard, Ms P. 
Leonard, C.P. Mann, Mrs P. Marsden, B. Miles, S. Morgan, Mrs G. Oliver, Mrs G. Oliver, T. 
Parry, Mrs L. Phipps, D.V. Poole, D.W.R. Preece, J. Pritchard, J. Ridgewell, J.E. Roberts, R. 
Saralis, Mrs M.E. Sargent, J. Scriven, G. Simmonds, J. Simmonds, S. Skivens, Mss E. 
Stenner, A. Whitcombe, R. Whiting, L G. Whittle, T. Williams, W. Williams, B. Zaplatynski  

 
Ynghyd â: 

 
C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro), M. S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau 
Dros Dro), D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol), N. Scammell 
(Pennaeth Cyllid a Swyddog Adran 151), R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), L. Donovan (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl), A. Southcombe 
(Rheolwr Cyllid), R. Tranter (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Swyddog Monitro) ac E. 
Sullivan (Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor). 

 
 

TREFNIADAU FFILMIO GWE-DDARLLEDU A PHLEIDLEISIO 
 

Atgoffodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro y rheini oedd yn bresennol fod y cyfarfod yn cael ei 
ffilmio a byddai'n cael ei ddarparu ar gyfer y cyhoedd yn fyw a'i archifo drwy wefan y Cyngor. 
Dywedodd y byddai penderfyniadau yn cael eu gwneud drwy'r system bleidleisio electronig. 

 
 

1.  YMDDIHEURIADAU DROS ABSENOLDEB 
 

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau dros absenoldeb gan y Cynghorwyr P.J. Bevan, A. Collis, K. 
Dawson, C. Elsbury, M. Evans, Ms E. Forehead, J.E. Fussell, L. Harding, V. James, L. 
Jeremiah, S. Kent, B. Owen, Mrs D. Price, J. Taylor, C. Thomas 
 
 

 
 
   

2.  DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6



 
 

 
Datganodd y Cyng. J. Bevan fuddiant personol a rhagfarnol yn Agenda Eitem Rhif 3. Mae 
manylion wedi eu cofnodi gyda'r eitem berthnasol. 

 
 
 ADRODDIADAU A GYFEIRIWYD O'R CABINET 
 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiadau canlynol a gyfeiriwyd o'r Cabinet. 
 
3. CYNIGION CYLLID 2019/20 A CHYNLLUN ARIANNOL TYMOR CANOLIG 2019/20 I 

2023/24. 
 
 Datganodd y Cyng. J. Bevan fuddiant personol a rhagfarnol gan fod ei Ferch yn gweithio i 

sefydliad Barnardo's ac mae eu contract cyllido yn ffurfio rhan o'r cynigion cyllideb. Yn dilyn 
cyngor gan y Swyddog Monitro ac wrth nodi y byddai'r Aelod Cabinet dros Ofal Cymdeithasol 
a Lles yn gwneud cyhoeddiad mewn perthynas â'r contract, gadawodd y Cynghorydd Bevan y 
Siambr pan drafodwyd y mater hwnnw ond roedd yn bresennol ar gyfer trafodaethau a 
phleidlais ehangach y gyllideb. 

 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a gyflwynwyd i'r Cabinet ar 13 Chwefror 2019. Rhoddodd y 

Swyddog Adran 151 grynodeb o broses y gyllideb a manylodd ar bwyntiau allweddol Setliad 
Ariannol Dros Dro a Therfynol Llywodraeth Cymru (LlC) 2019/20. Cyfeiriwyd yr aelodau at 
Dabl 1 a oedd yn dangos y sefyllfa arian parod wedi'i haddasu ar gyfer Caerffili a oedd yn 
darparu cynnydd ariannol go iawn o £549 mil. 

 
 Nodwyd bod y cynigion terfynol gerbron yr Aelodau yn cyflwyno cyllideb gytbwys yn seiliedig 

ar gynnydd o 6.9% yn Nhreth y Cyngor. Croesawodd y Swyddog Adran 151 y dull gochelgar a 
gymerwyd mewn perthynas ag arbedion ymlaen llaw. Amlinellwyd amrywiol bwysau costau ac 
eglurwyd na chafwyd unrhyw arwydd gan Lywodraeth Cymru hyd yn hyn o ran cyfraniadau 
pensiwn cyflogwr i Athrawon a'r Gwasanaeth Tân. Oherwydd yr ansicrwydd parhaus hwn, nid 
oedd y gyllideb hon yn cymryd i ystyriaeth unrhyw gyllid posibl. Pe bai unrhyw arian untro ar 
gael yn ddiweddarach, bydd adroddiadau pellach yn cael eu cyflwyno i'r Cyngor er mwyn i'r 
Aelodau benderfynu ar ei ddyraniad. 

 
 Eglurwyd sefyllfa balansau'r Gronfa Gyffredinol a chyfeiriwyd yr Aelodau at Atodiad 4 yr 

adroddiad. Oherwydd y rhagolygon ariannol sy'n gwaethygu, dywedodd y Swyddog Adran 
151 y dylid cadw balansau'r Gronfa Gyffredinol ar lefel uwch na'r arfer ar £11.6 miliwn. 
Nodwyd y gellid ailystyried hyn unwaith y cyhoeddir y setliad dros dro ar gyfer 2020/21 ym mis 
Hydref.  

 
 Diolchodd yr Aelodau i'r Swyddogion hynny a oedd wedi gweithio mor ddiwyd ar baratoi 

cyllideb gytbwys. Yna cyfeiriodd yr Aelodau at y broses ymgynghori a diolchodd yr Aelodau i 
bawb a oedd wedi rhoi o'u hamser i gymryd rhan. Nodwyd, o ganlyniad i Setliad Ariannol 
Terfynol 2019/20 Llywodraeth Leol a'r adborth o'r ymgynghoriad, fod nifer o newidiadau 
wedi'u gwneud i'r gyllideb ddrafft ac amlygwyd y rhain yn Nhabl 6 yr adroddiad. Roedd y rhain 
yn cynnwys gohirio cau 2 safle Amwynder Dinesig wrth aros am ganlyniad yr adolygiad 
gwastraff ehangach, adfer Wardeiniaid Diogelwch Cymunedol yn rhannol, gohirio taliadau am 
driniaethau llygod mawr, gohirio unrhyw ostyngiad yn y Gwasanaeth ‘Meals Direct’ nes y 
canlyniad adolygiad arlwyo ehangach ac arian cyfatebol ar gyfer Cynlluniau Cymunedol yn 
Llawr Sglefrio Bargod a Splash Pad Senghenydd. Mynegwyd gofid ynghylch yr angen i osod 
cynnydd o 6.95% yn nhreth y Cyngor ond roedd angen gwneud hyn er mwyn diogelu 
darpariaeth gwasanaethau rheng flaen. Er gwaethaf y caledi parhaus, roedd y gyllideb hefyd 
yn cynnwys pethau cadarnhaol ar gyfer y rhaglen Band B Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif, y rhaglen 
Gyfalaf a phrosiectau Adfywio. 

 
 Ar y pwynt hwn yn y ddadl gadawodd y Cynghorydd J. Bevan y Siambr. Cadarnhaodd yr 

Aelod Cabinet dros Ofal Cymdeithasol a Lles fod arian grant y Swyddfa Gartref wedi'i sicrhau 

Page 2



 
 

gan Barnardo's a fyddai'n gwrthbwyso'r gostyngiad mewn cyllid ac yn sicrhau parhad y 
contract am 12 mis. O ganlyniad, fyddai fawr ddim effaith ar ddefnyddwyr gwasanaeth ar gyfer 
2019/20. Yna dychwelodd y Cynghorydd J. Bevan i'r Siambr. 

 
 Mynegodd yr Aelodau bryderon ynghylch y cynnydd yn Nhreth y Cyngor ac effaith toriadau 

pellach. Cyfeiriwyd at y ffaith bod y cynnydd hwn yn uwch nag awdurdodau cyfagos, er bod yr 
arbedion gohiriedig yn cael eu croesawu, fel y buddsoddiadau mewn ysgolion ac adfywio, 
ymddengys nad oedd llawer o fodelau cyflenwi amgen o fewn y cynigion. Gofynnodd yr 
Aelodau i ystyriaeth fwy difrifol gael ei rhoi i gyfleoedd am drosglwyddo asedau a thynnodd yr 
Aelodau sylw at yr effaith fawr y byddai tynnu hyd yn oed symiau bach o arian yn ei chael ar 
gymunedau lleol. 

 
 Gofynnwyd am eglurhad ynghylch Mentrau Cyllid Preifat (MCP) ynghylch lefel y taliadau 

blynyddol. Amlinellodd y Swyddog Adran 151 weithrediad MCPau yn fyr a chadarnhaodd y 
gellid dosbarthu rhagor o wybodaeth i Aelodau yn dilyn y cyfarfod. Hysbyswyd yr Aelodau fod 
adolygiad MCP ar y gweill ar hyn o bryd ac y byddai'n destun adroddiad pellach i'r Pwyllgor 
Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau yn yr haf. 

 
 Pwysleisiodd Aelod, o ystyried caledi parhaus a thoriadau pellach i ddod, yr angen i ddiogelu 

darparwyr a gwirfoddolwyr y Trydydd Sector. 
 
 Yna cyfeiriwyd at y toriadau a wnaed i ddarpariaeth toiledau cyhoeddus, y strategaeth 

toiledau bresennol a'r effaith yr oedd eu gwaredu yn ei chael ar nifer yr ymwelwyr â chanol y 
dref. Nodwyd bod y cyfnod ymgynghori ar gyfer Strategaeth Toiledau CBSC yn parhau ar 
agor ac atgoffwyd yr Aelodau fod y ddeddfwriaeth yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i Awdurdodau 
Lleol ddarparu strategaeth ond nid oedd yn gofyn iddynt ddarparu cyfleusterau cyhoeddus. 

 
 Yna gofynnwyd am eglurhad ynghylch y gostyngiad yn y gyllideb Mentrau Gwella Ysgolion a'r 

meini prawf a fyddai'n cael eu defnyddio ar gyfer cael gafael ar gronfeydd brys pe bai angen. 
Cytunwyd y byddai hyn yn cael ei anfon ymlaen at yr Aelod yn dilyn y cyfarfod. 

 
 Yna cyfeiriodd yr Aelodau at y defnydd o Gronfeydd Wrth Gefn, ac fe roddodd y Swyddog 

Adran 151 eglurhad am y rhesymau dros ddal cronfeydd o'r fath a sut y cawsant eu harchwilio 
a'u craffu. Amlinellodd y Swyddog hefyd sut y gellid defnyddio Cronfeydd Cyfalaf a 
Chyffredinol a'r cyfyngiadau y maent yn gweithredu oddi tanynt. Derbyniwyd bod gwaith 
pellach i'w wneud gyda Chynghorwyr ac Aelodau o'r Cyhoedd er mwyn cynyddu dealltwriaeth 
o'r Cronfeydd Wrth Gefn. 

 
 I gloi, pwysleisiwyd pwysigrwydd cyflwyno cyllideb gytbwys a sut y byddai'r gyllideb a 

gyflwynir yn gofalu am y rhai mwyaf bregus yn ein cymunedau wrth i gyni barhau. Cyfeiriwyd 
at yr ansicrwydd ynghylch setliadau pensiwn y gwasanaeth tân ac athrawon a phwysau twf 
mewn gofal cymdeithasol a'r galwadau cynyddol ar awdurdodau lleol a Chynghorwyr. 
Amlinellwyd yr angen i fod yn sefydliad arloesol a rhagweithiol yn wyneb heriau yn y dyfodol 
fel tai, addysg, anghenion iechyd cymhleth, datblygiadau digidol a chynhesu byd-eang. 
Byddai angen darparu gwasanaethau yn wahanol gyda modelau gweithredol newydd yn cael 
eu datblygu er mwyn ymateb i ofynion sy'n newid yn barhaus. Cyfeiriwyd at fenter Caerffili 
2022 a fyddai'n sbarduno effeithlonrwydd busnes a chyfle masnachol gyda thrigolion a staff 
wrth ei gwraidd, gan weithio'n wirioneddol gyda'i gilydd er lles pawb.  

 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael eu cymeradwyo.   
 
 Yn unol â Rheol Gweithdrefn 15.4 (1) gwnaed cais am bleidlais wedi'i chofnodi, drwy'r system 

bleidleisio electronig. 
 
 O blaid y Cynnig:  

Page 3



 
 

 Y Cynghorwyr B.A. Jones, C. Forehead, D.V. Poole, A.G. Higgs, Mrs E. Aldworth, D.T. 
Davies, D. Hardacre, W. David, D. Preece, G.D. Oliver, J. Bevan, E. Stenner, N. George, M. 
Adams, C. Gordon, G. Kirby, R. Saralis, S. Morgan, G. Johnston, J. Gale, S. Havard. J. 
Pritchard, C.J. Cuss, Mrs P. Leonard, T. Williams, J. Simmonds, L. Phipps, D. Harse, P. 
Marsden, Mrs A. Leonard, Mrs C. Andrews, B. Zaplatynski, Mrs C. Bezzina, Mrs A. Gair, W. 
Williams, A. Whitcombe, A. Hussey, R. Whiting, S. Cook, J. Ridgewell a Mrs B. Miles (41). 

 
 Yn Erbyn y Cynnig: 
 Y Cynghorwyr N. Dix, C.P. Mann, L. Binding, S. Skivens, Mrs M. Sargent, L. Whittle, A.P. 

Angel, R.W. Gough, S. Kent, J. Roberts, J. Scriven, Mrs T. Parry, Mrs D. Cushing, K. 
Etheridge, G. Simmonds, A. Farina-Childs a M. Davies (17). 

 
  PENDERFYNWYD:-  
 

(i) cymeradwyo'r cynnig o ran trosglwyddo/pasbortio grantiau i mewn i'r Setliad 
Ariannol a phasio'r cyllid ar gyfer cyfrifoldebau newydd yn uniongyrchol i’r 
gwasanaethau hynny y maent yn ymwneud â hwy (gweler paragraff 4.2.10); 

 
(ii) cymeradwyo'r arbedion arfaethedig ar gyfer 2019/20, sef cyfanswm o £13.921 

miliwn fel y'i nodir ym mharagraffau 4.3.1 a 4.3.2 ac Atodiadau 2 a 3 i'r 
adroddiad hwn; 

 
(iii) cymeradwyo cynigion y Gyllideb Refeniw ar gyfer 2019/20, sef £337.745 miliwn 

fel y'i nodir yn yr adroddiad hwn, ac fel y'i crynhoir yn Atodiad 1; 
 
(iv) cymeradwyo'r cynnig i ddyrannu £5 miliwn o arian cyfatebol i Ysgolion yr 21ain 

Ganrif (gweler paragraff 4.6.3); 
 
(v) cymeradwyo'r cynnig i ddyrannu £1.2 miliwn i'r Bwrdd Prosiect Adfywio (gweler 

paragraff 4.6.3); 
 
(vi) cymeradwyo'r cynnig i ddyrannu'r £475 mil o arbedion ymlaen llaw i Raglen 

Band B Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif (gweler paragraff 4.3.5); 
 
(vii) cymeradwyo'r Rhaglen Gyfalaf arfaethedig ar gyfer y cyfnod 2019/20 i 2021/22 

(gweler Atodiad 5); 
 

(viii) nodi'r Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig wedi ei ddiweddaru, y manylir arno yn 
Atodiad 6 i'r adroddiad hwn, a'r gofyniad arbedion dangosol o £44 miliwn ar 
gyfer y 4 blwyddyn ariannol ganlynol (2020/21 i 2023/2024); 

 
(ix) cymeradwyo'r cynnig i gynyddu Treth y Cyngor 6.95% ar gyfer y flwyddyn 

ariannol 2019/20 i sicrhau bod cyllideb gytbwys yn cael ei chyflawni (Band D 
Treth y Cyngor yn cael ei osod ar £1131.21). 

 
 

 ADRODDIADAU'R SWYDDOGION 
 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiadau canlynol. 
 
4. PENDERFYNIAD GOSOD TRETH Y CYNGOR 2019/20 
 

Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn rhoi manylion am Dreth Gyngor yr Awdurdod ar 
gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 2019/20, cyn pasio'r penderfyniadau statudol angenrheidiol. 

 

Page 4



 
 

Cafodd ei gynnig a'i eilio bod yr argymhellion a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog yn cael 
eu cymeradwyo a thrwy'r system bleidleisio electronig, a thrwy nodi bod 10 yn erbyn a 5 wedi 
ymatal, cytunwyd arni gan y mwyafrif oedd yn bresennol. 
 
 PENDERFYNWYD:- 
 
 
1.  

Nodi, yn ei gyfarfod ar 12 Rhagfyr 2018, fod y Cabinet wedi cyfrifo'r symiau canlynol ar gyfer 
y flwyddyn 2019/2020 yn unol â rheoliadau a wnaed o dan Adran 33 (5) o Ddeddf Cyllid 
Llywodraeth Leol 1992 a'r pwerau a roddir o dan Reoliadau Trefniadau Gweithrediaeth 
Awdurdodau Lleol (Swyddogaethau a Chyfrifoldebau) (Diwygio) (Cymru) 2007 (fel y'u 
diwygiwyd). 

 

 a) 60,183.96 Sef y swm a gyfrifwyd gan y Cabinet, yn unol â Rheoliad (3) o 
Reoliadau Awdurdodau Lleol (Cyfrifo Sylfaen Treth Gyngor) (Cymru) 
1995 (fel y'u diwygiwyd), fel ei sylfaen treth gyngor ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn. 

 

 b) Rhan o Ardal y Cyngor:  

 

  
Sylfaen Drethu  

  
Nifer o Fandiau D  

  
 

Eiddo Cyfwerth 

Cwm Aber  
 

2,011.26 

Argoed 
 

859.55 

Bargod 
 

3,630.06 

Bedwas, Tretomos a Machen 
 

3,768.49 

Coed Duon 
 

2,947.24 

Caerffili 
 

6,261.53 

Cwm Darran  
 

702.98 
Draethen,Tŷ'n-y-coed-cae a 
Rhydri 

 
617.09 

Gelligaer 
 

6,271.29 

   
 

  

  
Sylfaen Drethu  

  
Nifer o Fandiau D  

  
Eiddo Cyfwerth 

Llanbradach a Phwll-y-pant 
 

1,480.37 

Maes-y-cwmwr 
 

797.55 

Nelson 
 

1,601.40 

Tredegar Newydd 
 

1,337.70 

Pen-yr-heol, Trecenydd ac Eneu'r-glyn 4,435.13 

Rhymni 
 

2,542.19 

Dwyrain Rhisga 
 

2,040.70 

Gorllewin Rhisga 
 

1,785.37 

Y Fan 
 

1,641.44 

Gweddill 
 

15,452.62 

Cyfanswm 
 

60,183.96 

   
 

  
sef y symiau a gyfrifwyd gan y Cabinet, yn unol â rheoliad 6 o'r Rheoliadau, fel symiau ei 

Page 5



 
 

sylfaen treth gyngor am y flwyddyn ar gyfer anheddau yn y rhannau hynny o'i ardal y mae un 
neu fwy o eitemau arbennig yn ymwneud â hwy. 

 
2. Bod y symiau canlynol bellach yn cael eu cyfrifo gan y Cyngor am y flwyddyn 2019/2020 yn 

unol ag Adrannau 32 i 36 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol a Chyllid 1992: - 
 
 a) £338,523,157 sef cyfanswm y symiau y mae'r Cyngor yn eu hamcangyfrif ar gyfer 

yr eitemau a nodir yn Adran 32(2)(a) i (d) o'r Ddeddf; 
 

 b) £1,050,000 sef cyfanswm y symiau y mae'r Cyngor yn eu hamcangyfrif ar gyfer 
yr eitemau a nodir yn Adran 32(3) (a) i (c) o'r Ddeddf; 

 

 c) £337,473,157 sef y swm y mae'r cyfanswm yn (2)(a) uchod yn fwy na'r cyfanswm 
yn (2)(b) uchod, wedi'i gyfrifo gan y Cyngor, yn unol ag Adran 32(4) 
o'r Ddeddf, fel ei ofyniad cyllideb ar gyfer y flwyddyn; 

 

 ch) £268,614,269 sef cyfanswm y symiau y mae'r Cyngor yn amcangyfrif y bydd yn 
daladwy am y flwyddyn i'w gronfa gyngor mewn perthynas â threthi 
annomestig a ail-ddosbarthwyd, grant cynnal refeniw, cynllun 
gostyngiadau treth y cyngor neu grant ychwanegol yr awdurdod; 

 

 d) £1,144.14 sef y swm yn (2)(c) uchod wedi tynnu'r swm yn (2)(ch) uchod, oll yn 
cael eu rhannu â'r swm yn (1)(a) uchod, wedi'i gyfrifo gan y Cyngor, 
yn unol ag Adran 33(1) o'r Ddeddf, fel swm sylfaenol ei dreth gyngor 
ar gyfer y flwyddyn; 

 

 dd) £778,189 sef cyfanswm yr holl eitemau arbennig y cyfeirir atynt yn adran 34(1) 
o'r Ddeddf; 

 

 e) £1,131.21 sef y swm yn (2)(d) uchod wedi tynnu'r canlyniad a roddir drwy 
rannu'r swm yn (2)(dd) uchod â'r swm yn (1)(a) uchod, a gyfrifwyd 
gan y Cyngor, yn unol ag Adran 34(2) o'r Ddeddf, fel swm sylfaenol 
ei dreth gyngor ar gyfer y flwyddyn ar gyfer anheddau yn y rhannau 
hynny o'i ardal nad oes unrhyw eitem arbennig yn berthnasol iddynt; 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

f)  Treth y Cyngor sy'n Gymwys i 
Rannau o Ardaloedd y Cyngor 
 
Rhan o Ardal y Cyngor 

  

Cyfanswm Tâl 
Band D y 

Bwrdeistref Sirol 
a'r Cyngor 

Cymunedol 
Praese
pt Lleol  

Ardoll 
Bwdeistre

f Sirol 

  

  

  
   £    £ £ 

 
Cwm Aber 18.89 1,131.21 1,150.10 

 
Argoed 15.00 1,131.21 1,146.21 

 
Bargod 20.04 1,131.21 1,151.25 

 
Bedwas, Tretomos a Machen 24.12 1,131.21 1,155.33 

 
Coed Duon 20.00 1,131.21 1,151.21 

 
Caerffili 15.50 1,131.21 1,146.71 

 
Cwm Darran  17.75 1,131.21 1,148.96 

 
Draethen,Tŷ'n-y-coed-cae a Rhydri 24.31 1,131.21 1,155.52 

 
Gelligaer 15.52 1,131.21 1,146.73 

 
Llanbradach a Phwll-y-pant 21.89 1,131.21 1,153.10 

Page 6



 
 

 
Maes-y-cwmwr 22.95 1,131.21 1,154.16 

 
Nelson 17.76 1,131.21 1,148.97 

 
Tredegar Newydd 12.65 1,131.21 1,143.86 

 

Pen-yr-heol, Trecenydd ac Eneu'r-
glyn 13.81 1,131.21 1,145.02 

 
Rhymnni 13.77 1,131.21 1,144.98 

 
Dwyrain Rhisga 12.00 1,131.21 1,143.21 

 
Gorllewin Rhisga 23.00 1,131.21 1,154.21 

 
Y Fan 15.23 1,131.21 1,146.44 

 
Gweddill 0.00 1,131.21 1,131.21 

 
 

  
sef y symiau a roddir drwy ychwanegu at y swm yn (2)(e) uchod, symiau'r eitem arbennig 
neu'r eitemau sy'n ymwneud ag anheddau yn y rhannau hynny o ardal y Cyngor a grybwyllir 
uchod wedi'u rhannu ym mhob achos â'r swm yn (1)(b) uchod, a gyfrifwyd gan y Cyngor, yn 
unol ag Adran 34(3) o'r Ddeddf, fel symiau sylfaenol, ei dreth gyngor am y flwyddyn ar gyfer 
anheddau yn y rhannau hynny o'i ardal y mae un neu fwy o eitemau arbennig yn ymwneud â 
hwy; 
 

Page 7



 
 

 

 ff)   
Bandiau Prisio A  B C D E F G H I 

 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

          
          Cyngor Bwrdeistref 
Sirol 754.14 879.83 1,005.52 1,131.21 1,382.59 1,633.97 1,885.35 2,262.42 2,639.49 

          Cynghorau 
Cymunedol 

         Cwm Aber 12.59 14.69 16.79 18.89 23.09 27.29 31.48 37.78 44.08 

Argoed 10.00 11.67 13.33 15.00 18.33 21.67 25.00 30.00 35.00 

Bargod 13.36 15.59 17.81 20.04 24.49 28.95 33.40 40.08 46.76 

Bedwas, Tretomos a 
Machen 16.08 18.76 21.44 24.12 29.48 34.84 40.20 48.24 56.28 

Coed Duon 13.33 15.56 17.78 20.00 24.44 28.89 33.33 40.00 46.67 

Caerffili 10.33 12.06 13.78 15.50 18.94 22.39 25.83 31.00 36.17 

Cwm Darran  11.83 13.81 15.78 17.75 21.69 25.64 29.58 35.50 41.42 

Draethen,Tŷ'n-y-coed-
cae a Rhydri 16.21 18.91 21.61 24.31 29.71 35.11 40.52 48.62 56.72 

Gelligaer 10.35 12.07 13.80 15.52 18.97 22.42 25.87 31.04 36.21 
Llanbradach a Phwll-y-
pant 14.59 17.03 19.46 21.89 26.75 31.62 36.48 43.78 51.08 

Maes-y-cwmwr 15.30 17.85 20.40 22.95 28.05 33.15 38.25 45.90 53.55 

Nelson 11.84 13.81 15.79 17.76 21.71 25.65 29.60 35.52 41.44 

Tredegar Newydd 8.43 9.84 11.24 12.65 15.46 18.27 21.08 25.30 29.52 

Pen-yr-heol, Trecenydd 
ac Eneu'r-glyn 9.21 10.74 12.28 13.81 16.88 19.95 23.02 27.62 32.22 

Rhymni 9.18 10.71 12.24 13.77 16.83 19.89 22.95 27.54 32.13 

Dwyrain Rhisga 8.00 9.33 10.67 12.00 14.67 17.33 20.00 24.00 28.00 

Gorllewin Rhisga 15.33 17.89 20.44 23.00 28.11 33.22 38.33 46.00 53.67 

Y Fan 10.15 11.85 13.54 15.23 18.61 22.00 25.38 30.46 35.54 

Gweddill 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 

 
 

Bandiau Prisio A  B C D E F G H I 

 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Cyfansymiadau ar gyfer Ardaloedd Cynghorau Cymunedol 

     Cwm Aber 766.73 894.52 1,022.31 1,150.10 1,405.68 1,661.26 1,916.83 2,300.20 2,683.57 

Argoed 764.14 891.50 1,018.85 1,146.21 1,400.92 1,655.64 1,910.35 2,292.42 2,674.49 

Bargod 767.50 895.42 1,023.33 1,151.25 1,407.08 1,662.92 1,918.75 2,302.50 2,686.25 

Bedwas, Tretomos a 
Machen 770.22 898.59 1,026.96 1,155.33 1,412.07 1,668.81 1,925.55 2,310.66 2,695.77 

Coed Duon 767.47 895.39 1,023.30 1,151.21 1,407.03 1,662.86 1,918.68 2,302.42 2,686.16 

Caerffili 764.47 891.89 1,019.30 1,146.71 1,401.53 1,656.36 1,911.18 2,293.42 2,675.66 

Cwm Darran  765.97 893.64 1,021.30 1,148.96 1,404.28 1,659.61 1,914.93 2,297.92 2,680.91 

Draethen,Tŷ'n-y-coed-
cae a Rhydri 770.35 898.74 1,027.13 1,155.52 1,412.30 1,669.08 1,925.87 2,311.04 2,696.21 

Gelligaer 764.49 891.90 1,019.32 1,146.73 1,401.56 1,656.39 1,911.22 2,293.46 2,675.70 

Llanbradach a Phwll-
y-pant 768.73 896.86 1,024.98 1,153.10 1,409.34 1,665.59 1,921.83 2,306.20 2,690.57 

Maes-y-cwmwr 769.44 897.68 1,025.92 1,154.16 1,410.64 1,667.12 1,923.60 2,308.32 2,693.04 

Nelson 765.98 893.64 1,021.31 1,148.97 1,404.30 1,659.62 1,914.95 2,297.94 2,680.93 

Tredegar Newydd 762.57 889.67 1,016.76 1,143.86 1,398.05 1,652.24 1,906.43 2,287.72 2,669.01 
Pen-yr-heol, 
Trecenydd ac Eneu'r-
glyn 763.35 890.57 1,017.80 1,145.02 1,399.47 1,653.92 1,908.37 2,290.04 2,671.71 

Rhymni 763.32 890.54 1,017.76 1,144.98 1,399.42 1,653.86 1,908.30 2,289.96 2,671.62 

Dwyrain Rhisga 762.14 889.16 1,016.19 1,143.21 1,397.26 1,651.30 1,905.35 2,286.42 2,667.49 

Gorllewin Rhisga 769.47 897.72 1,025.96 1,154.21 1,410.70 1,667.19 1,923.68 2,308.42 2,693.16 

Y Fan 764.29 891.68 1,019.06 1,146.44 1,401.20 1,655.97 1,910.73 2,292.88 2,675.03 

Gweddill 754.14 879.83 1,005.52 1,131.21 1,382.59 1,633.97 1,885.35 2,262.42 2,639.49 
 

Page 8



 
 

 
 
 
 
sef y symiau a roddir drwy luosi'r symiau yn (2)(e) a (2)(f) uchod â'r nifer sydd, yn y gyfran a nodir yn 
Adran 5(1) o'r Ddeddf, yn gymwys i anheddau a restrir mewn band prisio penodol wedi'i rannu â'r nifer 
sy'n gymwys yn y gyfran honno i anheddau a restrir mewn band prisio D penodol, a gyfrifir gan y 
Cyngor, yn unol ag Adran 36(1) o'r Ddeddf, fel y symiau i'w hystyried ar gyfer y flwyddyn mewn 
perthynas â chategorïau o anheddau a restrir mewn gwahanol fandiau prisio.  
 
 
3. Nodi bod y prif awdurdod praeseptio, ar gyfer y flwyddyn 2019/2020, wedi datgan y symiau 

canlynol mewn praeseptau a roddwyd i'r Cyngor, yn unol ag Adran 40 o Ddeddf Cyllid Llywodraeth 
Leol 1992, ar gyfer pob un o'r categorïau o anheddau a ddangosir isod: - 

Bandiau Prisio A  B C D E F G H I 

 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Awdurdod Praeseptio 

         
          Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a 
Throseddu Gwent 170.35 198.75 227.14 255.53 312.31 369.10 425.88 511.06 596.24 

 

 
 
4. Ar ôl cyfrifo'r cyfanswm ym mhob achos o'r symiau yn (2)(ff) a (3) uchod, bod y Cyngor, yn unol ag 

Adran 30(2) o Ddeddf Cyllid Llywodraeth Leol 1992, drwy hyn yn gosod y symiau canlynol o Dreth 
y Cyngor ar gyfer y flwyddyn 2019/2020 ar gyfer pob un o'r categorïau o anheddau a ddangosir 
isod: - 

 
Bandiau Prisio A  B C D E F G H I 

 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

          Cwm Aber 937.08 1,093.27 1,249.45 1,405.63 1,717.99 2,030.36 2,342.71 2,811.26 3,279.81 

Argoed 934.49 1,090.25 1,245.99 1,401.74 1,713.23 2,024.74 2,336.23 2,803.48 3,270.73 

Bargod 937.85 1,094.17 1,250.47 1,406.78 1,719.39 2,032.02 2,344.63 2,813.56 3,282.49 

Bedwas, 
Tretomos a 
Machen 940.57 1,097.34 1,254.10 1,410.86 1,724.38 2,037.91 2,351.43 2,821.72 3,292.01 

Coed Duon 937.82 1,094.14 1,250.44 1,406.74 1,719.34 2,031.96 2,344.56 2,813.48 3,282.40 

Caerffili 934.82 1,090.64 1,246.44 1,402.24 1,713.84 2,025.46 2,337.06 2,804.48 3,271.90 

Cwm Darran  936.32 1,092.39 1,248.44 1,404.49 1,716.59 2,028.71 2,340.81 2,808.98 3,277.15 

Draethen,Tŷ'n-y-
coed-cae a 
Rhydri 940.70 1,097.49 1,254.27 1,411.05 1,724.61 2,038.18 2,351.75 2,822.10 3,292.45 

Gelligaer 934.84 1,090.65 1,246.46 1,402.26 1,713.87 2,025.49 2,337.10 2,804.52 3,271.94 

Llanbradach a 
Phwll-y-pant 939.08 1,095.61 1,252.12 1,408.63 1,721.65 2,034.69 2,347.71 2,817.26 3,286.81 

Maes-y-cwmwr 939.79 1,096.43 1,253.06 1,409.69 1,722.95 2,036.22 2,349.48 2,819.38 3,289.28 

Nelson 936.33 1,092.39 1,248.45 1,404.50 1,716.61 2,028.72 2,340.83 2,809.00 3,277.17 

Tredegar 
Newydd 932.92 1,088.42 1,243.90 1,399.39 1,710.36 2,021.34 2,332.31 2,798.78 3,265.25 

Pen-yr-heol, 
Trecenydd ac 
Eneu'r-glyn 933.70 1,089.32 1,244.94 1,400.55 1,711.78 2,023.02 2,334.25 2,801.10 3,267.95 

Rhymni 933.67 1,089.29 1,244.90 1,400.51 1,711.73 2,022.96 2,334.18 2,801.02 3,267.86 

Dwyrain Rhisga 932.49 1,087.91 1,243.33 1,398.74 1,709.57 2,020.40 2,331.23 2,797.48 3,263.73 

Gorllewin Rhisga 939.82 1,096.47 1,253.10 1,409.74 1,723.01 2,036.29 2,349.56 2,819.48 3,289.40 

Y Fan  934.64 1,090.43 1,246.20 1,401.97 1,713.51 2,025.07 2,336.61 2,803.94 3,271.27 

Gweddill 924.49 1,078.58 1,232.66 1,386.74 1,694.90 2,003.07 2,311.23 2,773.48 3,235.73 

 
 

  
 

Page 9



 
 

  
 
 
 
5. STRATEGAETH FLYNYDDOL RHEOLI'R TRYSORLYS, DANGOSYDDION MATERION 

ARIANNOL CYLLID CYFALAF A PHOLISI DARPARIAETH ISAFSWM AR GYFER 2019/20 
 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn manylu ar Strategaeth Flynyddol y Cyngor ar 

gyfer Rheoli'r Trysorlys, Dangosyddion Materion Ariannol Cyllid Cyfalaf a Pholisi Darpariaeth 
Isafswm Refeniw ar gyfer 2019/20. Nodwyd bod yr adroddiad wedi'i gyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor 
Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau ar 15 Ionawr 2019. 

 
 Yn unol â gofynion deddfwriaethol, Canllawiau a Chodau Ymarfer Llywodraeth Cymru, mae'n 

ofynnol i'r Cyngor gymeradwyo Strategaeth Rheoli'r Trysorlys yn flynyddol, sy'n nodi ei 
strategaethau benthyca a buddsoddi ar gyfer y flwyddyn sydd i ddod.  Mae hefyd yn ofynnol i'r 
Cyngor gymeradwyo a chyhoeddi nifer o ddangosyddion sy'n berthnasol i Gyllid Cyfalaf a 
Rheoli'r Trysorlys, a pharatoi Datganiad Polisi Darpariaeth Refeniw Lleiafsymiol Blynyddol.  
Gofynnwyd i'r Aelodau nodi nifer o newidiadau i ddull benthyca a buddsoddi'r Cyngor wrth 
symud ymlaen, gan gynnwys symud i ffwrdd o fuddsoddiad mewn Swyddfeydd Rheoli 
Dyledion oherwydd y gyfradd llog isel. 

 
 Diolchodd yr Aelodau i'r Swyddogion am yr holl waith caled sy'n gysylltiedig â pharatoi'r 

adroddiad a gofynnwyd am eglurhad mewn perthynas â chyfleoedd ar gyfer enillion cynyddol 
o fuddsoddiadau.  Dywedodd y Swyddog fod y Cyngor yn y chwartel uchaf ar enillion 
buddsoddi a chadarnhaodd fod cyfleoedd ar gael i gynyddu enillion wrth symud ymlaen, fodd 
bynnag roedd enillion cynyddol hefyd yn golygu cynnydd mewn risg, ac y byddai angen i 
Aelodau drafod lefel y risg yn erbyn gwobr sydd i'w gael.  I'r perwyl hwn, anogodd y Swyddog 
yr Aelodau i fynychu'r seminar a drefnwyd gydag Arlingclose Limited, Ymgynghorydd Rheoli 
Trysorlys y Cyngor. 

 
 Ar ôl ystyried yr adroddiad yn llawn, cafodd ei gytuno a'i eilio bod yr argymhellion a 

gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog yn cael eu cymeradwyo a thrwy'r system bleidleisio 
electronig, a thrwy nodi bod 3 wedi ymatal, cytunwyd arni gan y mwyafrif oedd yn bresennol. 

 
  PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo:- 
 
  (i) y Strategaeth Flynyddol ar gyfer Rheoli'r Trysorlys 2019/20; 

 
(ii) adolygu'r strategaeth bob chwarter o fewn adroddiadau monitro'r Rheoli'r 

Trysorlys a gyflwynir i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau, a dylid cyfeirio 
unrhyw newidiadau a argymhellwyd i'r Cabinet, yn y lle cyntaf, ac i'r Cyngor am 
benderfyniad.  Bydd yr Awdurdod hefyd yn paratoi adroddiad hanner blwyddyn 
ar weithgareddau Rheoli'r Trysorlys; 

 
(iii) gosod Dangosyddion Materion Ariannol ar gyfer Rheoli'r Trysorlys ar gyfer y 

blynyddoedd ariannol 2019/20 i 2021/22 fel yr amlinellwyd yn Atodiad 5 yr 
adroddiad; 

 
(iv) gosod Dangosyddion Materion Ariannol ar gyfer Cyllid Cyfalaf ar gyfer y 

blynyddoedd ariannol 2019/20 i 2021/22 fel yr amlinellwyd yn Atodiadau 6 a 7 
yr adroddiad; 

 
(v) gosod y polisi Darpariaeth Isafswm Refeniw ar gyfer 2019/20 yn unol ag 

Atodiad 8 yr adroddiad;  
 

Page 10



 
 

(vi) parhad strategaeth fuddsoddi 2018/19 a'r benthyca i sefydliadau ariannol a 
Chorfforaethau yn unol â'r meini prawf statws credyd lleiafsymiol a ddatgelwyd 
o fewn yr adroddiad; 

 
(vii) mae'r Awdurdod yn benthyca £27.4 miliwn (er ei fod yn gohirio £14.29 miliwn i 

2020/21) i'r Gronfa Gyffredinol gefnogi rhaglen gyfalaf 2019/20 a £44.2 miliwn 
ar gyfer rhaglen SATC y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai;  

 
(viii) mae'r Awdurdod yn parhau i fabwysiadu'r raddfa graddio fuddsoddi fel meini 

prawf statws credyd lleiafsymiol fel ffordd o asesu cymhwysedd credyd 
gwrthbartïon addas wrth osod buddsoddiadau; 

 
(ix) mae'r Awdurdod yn mabwysiadu'r terfynau hyd ariannol a buddsoddi fel y'u 

nodir yn Atodiad 3 yr adroddiad. 
 
6. ADRODDIAD STRATEGAETH GYFALAF 2019/20  
 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a gyflwynodd yr Adroddiad Strategaeth Gyfalaf ar gyfer 

blwyddyn ariannol 2019/20 yn unol â'r Cod Materion Ariannol a gyflwynwyd gan Ddeddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 2003.  Nodwyd bod yr adroddiad wedi'i gyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac 
Adnoddau fel eitem wybodaeth. 

 
 Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau bod yr adroddiad Strategaeth Gyfalaf yn ofyniad newydd ar gyfer 

2019/20 ac amlinellodd yr egwyddorion a'r fframwaith ar y lefel uchel iawn sy'n llywio cynigion 
buddsoddi cyfalaf yr Awdurdod.  Y prif nod yw cyflwyno rhaglen fforddiadwy o raglen gyfalaf 
sy'n gyson â'r strategaeth ariannol ac sy'n cyfrannu at gyflawni blaenoriaethau ac amcanion y 
Cyngor fel y'u nodir yng Nghynllun Corfforaethol yr Awdurdod, ystyried risgiau cysylltiedig, 
cydnabod cyfyngiadau ariannol dros y tymor hwy a rhoi gwerth am arian. 

 
 Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog Adran 151 gan nad oedd yr adroddiad ond yn cyflwyno'r fframwaith 

nid oedd unrhyw oblygiadau ariannol ynghlwm wrth yr adroddiad. 
 
 Cwestiynodd Aelod y ffordd orau i Aelodau wneud sylwadau ar eitemau gwybodaeth na 

chawsant eu hystyried trwy drafodaeth. Nodwyd y broses a chytunwyd y byddai'r 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn egluro hyn wrth ddosbarthu eitemau gwybodaeth. 

 
 Ar ôl ystyried cynnwys yr adroddiad, cafodd ei gynnig a'i eilio bod yr argymhellion a 

gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog yn cael eu cymeradwyo a thrwy'r system bleidleisio 
electronig, a thrwy nodi bod 1 wedi ymatal, cytunwyd arni gan y mwyafrif oedd yn bresennol. 

 
  PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo'r Adroddiad Strategaeth Cyfalaf blynyddol. 
 
 
7. PENODI DIRPRWY SWYDDOG COFRESTRU ETHOLIADOL 
 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cyngor i benodi 

Dirprwy Swyddog Etholiadol.   
 

Nodwyd mai Prif Swyddog Cofrestru Etholiadol y Cyngor yw'r Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro ac un 
o gyfrifoldebau allweddol y rôl honno yw cynnal gwrandawiadau mewn perthynas ag unrhyw 
adolygiadau cofrestru neu wrthwynebiadau a dderbyniwyd i gais gael ei gynnwys ar y Gofrestr 
o Etholwyr.  Mae gan y gwrandawiadau hyn amserlen ddeddfwriaethol ac o'r herwydd efallai y 
bydd achlysuron pan na fydd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro ar gael o bosibl gan beri fod y 
Cyngor yn torri'r ddeddfwriaeth.  Argymhellwyd felly y dylid gwneud penodiad parhaol i swydd 
y Dirprwy Swyddog Cofrestru Etholiadol er mwyn dileu'r risg honno.  
 

Page 11



 
 

Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau, er y byddai gan y Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Etholiadol hefyd yr 
awdurdod i ganiatáu a gwrthod ceisiadau i gofrestru, ni fyddai'n gallu gweithredu gan y byddai 
wedi gwneud y penderfyniad gwreiddiol. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyried cynnwys yr adroddiad, cafodd ei gynnig a'i eilio y dylid cymeradwyo'r 
argymhellion a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog, a thrwy gyfrwng y system bleidleisio 
electronig, cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD penodi Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol yn Ddirprwy 
Swyddog Cofrestru Etholiadol. 
 

 
8 PWYLLGOR SAFONAU - PENODI AELODAU ANNIBYNNOL 
  

Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cyngor i benodi 
Aelod Annibynnol i'r Pwyllgor Safonau ac i ystyried yr argymhelliad ar gyfer penodi dau 
berson wrth gefn. 
 
Hysbyswyd yr Aelodau bod Panel Penodi wedi'i sefydlu i ystyried yr holl geisiadau a 
dderbyniwyd.  Roedd cyfansoddiad y Panel yn cynnwys Aelod Etholedig, Cynghorydd 
Cymuned, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Safonau ac Uchel Siryf Gwent, a oedd yn gweithredu fel yr 
Aelod Panel Lleyg. 
 
Cyflawnodd pedwar ymgeisydd y meini prawf a chawsant eu gwahodd i gyfweliad ar 21 
Ionawr 2019. Yn dilyn y cyfweliadau, roedd y Panel o'r farn y dylid ystyried un o'r ymgeiswyr 
i'w penodi ar unwaith a dylid gwahodd dau o'r ymgeiswyr i fod wrth gefn ar gyfer unrhyw 
swyddi gwag yn y dyfodol.  Nodwyd y byddai dwy swydd wag arall ar gyfer aelodau 
annibynnol yn codi ym mis Hydref eleni, gan fod yr Aelodau presennol wedi gwasanaethu 
gydag uchafswm o 2 dymor ar y Pwyllgor Safonau. 
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau am eglurhad ar y broses recriwtio a dethol o ran addasrwydd 
ymgeiswyr a gofynnwyd am ystyriaeth i ddarparu ‘portreadau' o apwyntiadau a argymhellir fel 
y gall y Cyngor fodloni eu hunain am eu haddasrwydd. 
 
Cadarnhaodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol y broses yr oedd y Panel wedi'i dilyn er 
mwyn gwneud yr argymhelliad gerbron y Cyngor ac os oedd yr Aelodau'n dymuno gweld mwy 
o gefndir ar gyfer ymgeiswyr yn y dyfodol gellid edrych ar hyn wrth symud ymlaen. 
 
Ar ôl ystyried yr adroddiad yn llawn, cafodd ei gynnig a'i eilio bod yr argymhellion a 
gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog yn cael eu cymeradwyo a thrwy'r system bleidleisio 
electronig, a thrwy nodi bod 3 wedi ymatal, cytunwyd arni gan y mwyafrif oedd yn bresennol. 
 
 PENDERFYNWYD:- 
 

(i) penodi Mr Christopher Finn am gyfnod o 6 mlynedd fel Aelod Annibynnol o'r 
Pwyllgor Safonau;  

 
(ii) cymeradwyo sefydlu rhestr wrth gefn o Aelodau Annibynnol a phenodi Mr 

Jonathan Card a Mrs Linda Davies i'r Pwyllgor Safonau am 6 mlynedd pan 
fydd y ddwy swydd wag arall ar gyfer Aelodau Annibynnol y Pwyllgor Safonau 
ar gael ym mis Hydref 2019. 

  
 

 
 
Terfynwyd y cyfarfod am 18:45 
 

Page 12



 
 

 
 

Wedi'i gymeradwyo fel cofnod cywir ac yn amodol ar unrhyw newidiadau neu gywiriadau a 
gytunir arnynt ac a gofnodir yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhelir ar 16 Ebrill 2019 ac fe'u 
llofnodwyd gan y Maer. 
 

_______________________ 
      MAER 
 
 

Page 13



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 14



  

 

 

 

Y CYNGOR 
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD YN NHŶ PENALLTA, YSTRAD MYNACH 
AR DDYDD MAWRTH 5 MAWRTH 2019 AM 5.00PM 

 

 

YN BRESENNOL:  
 

Y Cynghorydd M. Adams - Maer 
Y Cynghorydd J. Simmonds - Dirprwy Faer 

 
 

Cynghorwyr: 
 

  C. Andrews, a. Angel, J. Bevan, P.J.. Bevan, L. Binding, A. Collis, D. Cushing, C. Cuss, W. 
David, M. Davies, D.T. Davies, C. Elsbury, K. Etheridge, M. Evans, A. Farina-Childs, Mrs C. 
Forehead, A. Gair, Ms J. Gale, N. George, C. Gordon, R.W. Gough, L. Harding , D. Harse, D. 
Havard, V. James, M. James, Mrs B. Jones, S. Kent, G. Kirby, Mrs A. Leonard, C.P. Mann, B. 
Miles, S. Morgan, Mrs G. Oliver, B. Owen, T. Parry, Mrs L. Phipps, D.V. Poole, D.W.R. 
Preece, J. Pritchard, J. Ridgewell, J.E. Roberts, R. Saralis, Mrs M.E. Sargent, G. Simmonds, 
S. Skivens, Ms E. Stenner, C. Thomas, A. Whitcombe, R. Whiting, L G. Whittle, T. Williams, 
W. Williams a B. Zaplatynski 

 
 

Ynghyd a: 
 

C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro), M.S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau 
Dros Dro), R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), 
R. Tranter (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a'r Swyddog Monitro), L. Donovan (Pennaeth 
Gwasanaethau Pobl), D. Beecham (Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Etholiadol) ac A. Dredge 
(Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor) 

 
 

a: 
 

D. Powell, S. Williams, M. Redmond ac R. Evans (Comisiwn Ffiniau a Democratiaeth Leol 
Cymru) a K. Beirne (Cyfarwyddwr y Cytundeb Dinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd). 

 
 

TREFNIADAU FFILMIO AR GYFER GWE-DDARLLEDU A PHLEIDLEISIO 
 

 Atgoffodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro'r rheiny oedd yn bresennol fod y cyfarfod yn cael ei 
ffilmio ac y byddai ar gael i'r cyhoedd ar ffurf byw ac archif trwy wefan y Cyngor. Dywedodd y 
byddai penderfyniadau'n cael eu gwneud drwy'r system bleidleisio electronig. 

 
 

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU DROS ABSENOLDEB 
 

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y cynghorwyr Mrs E. Aldworth, C. Bezzina, 
S. Cook, K. Dawson, N. Dix, Ms E. Forehead, J.E. Fussell, D.T. Hardacre, A. Higgs, A. 
Hussey, L. Jeremiah, G. Johnston, Ms P. Leonard, Mrs P. Marsden, Mrs D. Price, J. Scriven a 
J. Taylor.  

Page 15

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7



  

2. CYHOEDDIADAU’R MAER 
 
 Cyfeiriodd y Maer at y digwyddiadau a'r ymweliadau y mae ef a'r Dirprwy Faer wedi 

ymgymryd â hwy ers y cyfarfod diwethaf gan gyfeirio'n benodol at wylio cynhyrchiad 'The Boy 
who bit the Castle', ym mhen uchaf y Cwm ac arddangosfa Addysg Gorfforol yn Ysgol Gyfun 
Coed Duon.  Aeth hefyd fel siaradwr gwadd i 'The Inner Wheel' yng Nghaerffili ac roedd yn 
siomedig i orfod hysbysu'r Aelodau bod y sefydliad hwn yn dod i ben ac anogodd yr Aelodau i 
gefnogi ac annog sefydliadau o'r fath lle bo hynny'n bosibl.   

 
 
3. I DDERBYN DEISEBAU O DAN REOL GWEITHDREFN 28(3) 
 
 Derbyniodd y Maer y deisebau canlynol a gyflwynwyd gan Aelodau ar ran trigolion lleol a 

nododd y byddent yn cael eu cyfeirio at y Gyfadran briodol i gael sylw: 
 

(i) Materion rheoli traffig yn Stryd Dôl-y-felin, Caerffili - Cynghorydd P. Bevan; 
 
(ii) Mesurau tawelu traffig gwell ar Heol Bloomfield, Coed Duon - Cynghorydd A. Farina-

Childs. 
 
 
4.  CYFLWYNO GWOBRAU 
 
 Ni chyflwynwyd unrhyw wobrau yn y cyfarfod. 
 
 
5.  DATGANIAD O FUDDIANNAU 
 
 Datganodd y Cynghorydd A. Whitcombe fuddiant personol mewn perthynas ag eitem 10 ar yr 

agenda - Cytundeb Dinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd.  Dywedodd y Swyddog Monitro 
nad oedd hyn yn fuddiant personol ac nid oedd yn rhagfarnu ac fel y cyfryw nid oedd yn 
ofynnol i'r Cynghorydd Whitcombe adael yr ystafell pan gyflwynwyd yr adroddiad.  Cofnodir y 
manylion gyda'r priod eitem. 

 
 
6. COFNODION - 22AIN IONAWR 2019 
 

PENDERFYNWYD yn amodol ar gofnodi bod y Cynghorydd J. Bevan wedi bod yn 
bresennol, fod y cofnodion wedi eu cymeradwyo fel cofnod cywir ac wedi eu harwyddo 
gan y Maer. 

 
  Cyfarfod y Cyngor a gynhaliwyd ar y 22ain Ionawr 2019 (Rhifau Cofnodion 1 – 12). 
 
 
7.  I DDERBYN AC ATEB CWESTIYNAU O DAN REOL GWEITHDREFN 10 (2) 
 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r Cwestiynau canlynol dan Reol Gweithdrefn 10 (2).  Yn unol â'r 

diwygiadau i'r cyfansoddiad, rhoddir yr atebion hefyd.   
 
 
1) CONTRACTAU TG GYDA CBSC 
 
 At yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Corfforaethol gan y Cynghorydd Kevin Etheridge. 
 
 I ofyn i'r Aelod Cabinet restru nifer, pennawd a chostau contractau TG gyda CBSC ac a yw'n 

credu, er budd cost-effeithiolrwydd ac effeithlonrwydd, eu bod yn addas at y diben, ac a yw'n 
credu eu bod yn sicrhau'r gwerth gorau am arian i'r sefydliad, ac os bydd yn diffinio pa 
fecanweithiau sydd ar waith ar hyn o bryd i werthuso ac adolygu'r contractau hyn. 

Page 16



  

 
 YMATEB GAN Y CYNGHORYDD C GORDON (AELOD CABINET DROS WASANAETHAU 

CORFFORAETHOL). 
 
Ar hyn o bryd, mae gan y Cyngor 200 o gontractau TG o fewn y gofrestr contractau 
corfforaethol, er bod y gofrestr wrthi'n cael ei diweddaru.  Y bwriad yw rhoi'r contractau ar y 
gofrestr drwy raglen rhesymoli.   
 
Mae swyddogion o'r Gwasanaethau Digidol a Chaffael yn cydweithio i dynnu sylw at 
gontractau sydd â'r potensial i gael eu rhesymoli dros y tair blynedd nesaf.   Bydd angen 
cwblhau'r rhaglen dros amser er mwyn cyflawni ein hymrwymiadau cytundebol cyfredol a 
sicrhau y caiff ei hariannu'n gywir.   
 
Mae'r holl gontractau cyfredol yn cael adolygiadau rheolaidd ac wedi bod yn destun caffael 
ffurfiol, felly, gallant ddangos gwerth am arian yn eu ffurf bresennol.  Wrth symud ymlaen, 
bydd gwerth am arian yn rhan o'r rhaglen resymoli a fydd yn sicrhau bod yr holl systemau yn 
addas i'r diben ac yn bodloni gofynion cyflenwi yn y dyfodol. 
 
Mae gwerth amcangyfrifedig cyfredol ein contractau TG presennol dros 5 mlynedd yn hafal i 
£14.6 miliwn. Fodd bynnag, nid yw hon yn gyllideb sy'n perthyn i'r adran TG ar ei phen ei hun, 
ac mae'r cyllidebau ar gyfer rhai systemau yn cael eu cadwamcangyfrifedig gan gyfadrannau. 
 
Mae'r ymarfer rhesymoli contractau yn un agwedd yn unig ar yr amrywiaeth eang o waith sy'n 
cael ei wneud ar draws y Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid a Digidol.  
 
Bydd yr Aelodau'n ymwybodol bod yr awdurdod ym mis Awst 2018 wedi recriwtio Liz Lucas yn 
Bennaeth Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid a Digidol a bod Liz wedi cwblhau'r penodiadau i'w 
huwch dîm yn ddiweddar. 
 
Dros y misoedd nesaf, bydd Strategaeth Cwsmeriaid a Digidol Ddrafft ar gyfer y Cyngor yn 
cael ei chwblhau a bydd yn destun ymgynghori ehangach. Bydd y Strategaeth yn nodi sut 
mae'r Cyngor yn bwriadu defnyddio technoleg i gefnogi trawsnewid ei wasanaethau a 
rhyngwyneb cwsmeriaid.  Mae'r gwasanaeth hefyd yn cyflwyno porth cwsmeriaid newydd ac 
ap ffôn clyfar a fydd yn galluogi defnyddwyr i wneud cais am wasanaeth 24/7 yn ogystal â 
chefnogi'r gwaith o gyflwyno gweithio hyblyg, dod â'ch Dyfais eich hun ar gyfer Aelodau, 
datrysiad teleffoni newydd a chynllun peilot o Microsoft Office 365. Edrychaf ymlaen at roi'r 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i'r Aelodau am y cynnydd dros y misoedd nesaf. 
 
 

2) UWCHGYNLLUN DRAFFT YSTRAD MYNACH  
 
 At y Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod Cabinet dros yr Economi, Seilwaith, Cynaliadwyedd a 

Phencampwr Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol gan y Cynghorydd Brenda Miles. 
 
 Mae'r Uwchgynllun Drafft Ystrad Mynach yn cael ei ymgynghori arno ar hyn o bryd.  Mae hyn 

yn amlwg yn newyddion da i Ystrad Mynach a'i chymdogion agos, gan gynnwys Nelson.  Ond 
a all yr Aelod Cabinet roi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i mi ynghylch ble yr ydym o ran cefnogi 
ffyniant ar draws y fwrdeistref ac yn fwy cyffredinol efallai ar draws y rhanbarth? 

 
 YMATEB GAN Y CYNGHORYDD SEAN MORGAN, DIRPRWY ARWEINYDD AC AELOD 

CABINET DROS YR ECONOMI, SEILWAITH A CHYNALIADWYEDD 
 
 Mae Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili a Phrifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd ehangach yn symud i gyfnod 

o newid trawsnewidiol a buddsoddiad digyffelyb.  Mae llofnodi'r Cytundeb Dinesig Prifddinas-
Ranbarth Caerdydd yn arwydd o fuddsoddiad digyffelyb o £1.2 biliwn ar gyfer y rhanbarth.    

 
 Bydd yr Aelodau'n ymwybodol bod y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro heno yn adrodd ar waith 

cynnydd y Cabinet ar y Cyd o ran cyflawni mentrau'r Cytundeb Dinesig. 

Page 17



  

 
 Dros y misoedd diwethaf, mae swyddogion wedi bod yn canolbwyntio ar greu'r conglfeini ar 

gyfer cyflawni strategaeth economaidd ac adfywio lleol sy'n gyson ac yn manteisio i'r eithaf ar 
y cyfleoedd a ddaw yn sgil Gweithgareddau'r Cytundeb Dinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth 
Caerdydd yn y maes hwn dros y misoedd diwethaf ac mae wedi cynnwys: 

 
o Penodi Pennaeth Adfywio a Chynllunio newydd a chytuno ar dîm Adfywio a Chynllunio 

newydd â ffocws. 
o Datblygu a chymeradwyo Strategaeth Adfywio'r Cyngor "Sylfaen ar gyfer Llwyddiant 2018-

2023" 
o Creu Bwrdd Prosiect Adfywio - sydd wedi datblygu Pecyn Cymorth Blaenoriaeth i 

brosiectau a Rhestr Prosiectau Cyfalaf Blaenoriaeth Caerffili, a bydd y ddau ohonynt yn 
llywio rhaglen ddarparu wedi'i blaenoriaethu a chyfres o brosiectau yn y dyfodol. 

o Creu Cronfa Datblygu Adfywio gwerth £300 mil - wedi'i hategu gan gyllid datblygu pellach 
gwerth £1.2 miliwn a gymeradwywyd gan y Cyngor yn Chwefror 2019 

o Creu strategaeth fuddsoddi a gweledigaeth ar gyfer Caerffili ddi-garbon yn gweithio gyda 
Llywodraeth Ganolog a Llywodraeth Cymru sy'n cynnwys bysiau trydan a gwesty newydd. 

o Cymeradwyo siop leiniau i ddatgloi parseli unigol o dir ar gyfer tai fforddiadwy, a gyflenwir 
drwy ddatblygwyr bach/canolig ledled y fwrdeistref sirol. 

o Cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i ddechrau gyda rhaglen o dai cyngor fforddiadwy newydd, a 
fydd yn cynnwys y technolegau ynni a digidol diweddaraf i ddarparu "cartrefi gydol oes".   

o Mae gwelliannau i'r Metro wedi'u trefnu ar gyfer rheilffordd Cwm Rhymni yn ystod 2022, 
gan gynyddu amleddau a lleihau amseroedd teithio. 

o Menter ar y cyd â Llywodraeth Cymru i ddatblygu tir yn Nhŷ Du, Nelson, ar gyfer 
datblygiad defnydd cymysg newydd sy'n cynnwys cartrefi newydd arloesol, tai fforddiadwy 
a chynllun cyflogaeth. 

o Buddsoddiad pellach i gyrchfan twristiaeth Cwmcarn. 
o Cynnydd sylweddol o ran darparu'r seilwaith ym Mharc Busnes Oakdale i ddiwallu 

anghenion busnesau newydd. 
o Hynt y gwaith o ehangu Ystâd Ddiwydiannol y Lawnt, Rhymni ar gyfer busnesau newydd a 

Hyb Mentergarwch Rhanbarthol Parc Busnes Caerffili mewn partneriaeth a'r Ganolfan 
Arloesi a Menter. 

 
 Yn gysylltiedig â hyn, mae Tasglu'r Cymoedd wedi nodi blaenoriaethau strategol ar gyfer y 

rhanbarth ac wedi nodi Caerffili ac Ystrad Mynach fel canolfannau strategol gyda'r 
blaenoriaethau o ganlyniad i ffocws Llywodraeth Cymru. 

 
 Mae'r Cyngor yn llunio cyfres o uwchgynlluniau, i nodi'r cyfleoedd datblygu ac adfywio ar gyfer 

lleoliadau strategol yn y fwrdeistref sirol yn y dyfodol.  Er mwyn defnyddio cyllid Tasglu'r 
Cymoedd, mae'r cyntaf o'r rhain wedi'i baratoi ar gyfer ardal basn Caerffili (cymeradwywyd 
gan y Cyngor ym mis Gorffennaf 2018).  Mae'r uwchgynllun ar gyfer Ystrad Mynach yn cael ei 
ymgynghori arno ar hyn o bryd ac mae cynllun Blaenau'r Cymoedd wrthi'n cael ei ddatblygu, 
gydag uwchgynlluniau Coed Duon a Choridor Trecelyn i Risga i ddilyn.  Er bod y ffocws 
cychwynnol wedi bod ar adfywio ffisegol, mae sylw swyddogion bellach yn troi tuag at 
agweddau economaidd a chymdeithasol y triongl adfywio. 

 
 Er bod hyn yn sicr yn gyfnod ariannol anodd iawn, rydym yn rhagweithiol iawn yn ein dull o 

weithredu – yn annibynnol a thrwy bartneriaethau fel y Cytundeb Dinesig ac o ganlyniad, mae 
hwn yn gyfnod cyffrous i Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili. 

 
 
 ADRODDIADAU GAN SWYDDOGION  
 
 Ystyriwyd yr adroddiadau canlynol. 
 
 
 

Page 18



  

8. CYFLWYNIAD - YSTADEGAU ETHOLIADOL CAERFFILI - COMISIWN FFINIAU CYMRU 
 

 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r cyflwyniad a draddodwyd gan D. Powell, S. Williams, M. Redmond ac 
R. Evans o Gomisiwn Ffiniau a Democratiaeth Leol Cymru.   

 

 Nodwyd y broses adolygu ac eglurwyd bod y Comisiwn yn annibynnol o Lywodraeth Cymru a 
phleidiau gwleidyddol a'i fod yn adrodd yn uniongyrchol i Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros 
Lywodraeth Leol a Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus.  Llywodraethir y Comisiwn gan Ddeddf 
Llywodraeth Leol (Democratiaeth) (Cymru) 2013 a Pholisïau'r Comisiwn.  Bydd yr adolygiad 
yn cynnig patrwm wardiau etholiadol ar gyfer ardal gyfan y Cyngor ac nid dim ond lle mae 
lefelau o anghydraddoldeb etholiadol.  Crynhowyd y meini prawf statudol sy'n cynnwys 
cyflawni cydraddoldeb etholiadol, hunaniaeth gymunedol a llywodraeth leol effeithiol a 
chyfleus.  Mae'r Comisiwn wedi datblygu polisi ar faint cynghorau gyda CLlLC a Llywodraeth 
Cymru ar gyfer Cymru gyfan.  Nododd yr Aelodau'r diffiniad a sut y mae'r Comisiwn wedi 
gosod cyfyngiadau ar faint Cynghorau a sut y cymhwysir y polisi. 

 

 Eglurwyd y broses o sut y bydd y Comisiwn yn rheoli blociau adeiladu wardiau etholiadol, a 
thrafodwyd manteision wardiau un aelod ac aml-aelod.  Hysbyswyd yr Aelodau am y 
dystiolaeth y bydd/na fydd y Comisiwn yn ei hystyried fel rhan o'r adolygiad.  Rhoddwyd 
pwyslais ar y gofyniad am gynrychiolaethau effeithiol, oherwydd caiff hyn ei farnu yn ôl 
ansawdd y dystiolaeth a gyflwynir i'r Comisiwn.  Esboniwyd y gall y Cyngor helpu trwy 
ddarparu cynllun neu wneud awgrymiadau sy'n cael eu darparu'n ddigon cynnar yn y broses, 
sy'n ystyried y Sir gyfan i'r un graddau, yn nodi cysylltiadau Cymunedol ac yn dilyn y rheolau, 
Deddfwriaeth a Pholisïau'r Comisiwn. 

 

 I gloi, cafodd amserlen y broses adolygu ei gosod allan gyda chyfnod ymgynghori cychwynnol 
o 12 wythnos yn dechrau ar 7fed Mawrth 2019 i'r 29ain Mai 2019 a cham olaf y gwaith fydd y 
wardiau newydd a ddaw i rym ar gyfer etholiadau Llywodraeth Leol ym mis Mai 2022. 

 

 Trafododd yr Aelodau'r broses adolygu a cheisiwyd sicrwydd y byddai'r ffigyrau a ddarparwyd 
drwy gydol y broses yn cael eu gwirio gan y bydd hyn yn cael effaith ddynamig ar wardiau 
unigol.  Mynegwyd pryderon ynghylch y ffaith nad yw llawer o breswylwyr ar y gofrestr 
etholiadol.  Mae'n un o ofynion y Ddeddf y gall y Comisiwn gymryd y rhain i ystyriaeth ynghyd 
â ffigyrau a ddarparwyd gan y Swyddfa Ystadegau Gwladol a bydd yr holl ffigyrau a gasglwyd 
yn cael eu cyhoeddi ar ddechrau'r cyfnod ymgynghori.  Cafwyd eglurhad yn y ffaith bod 
deddfau gwahanol yn gymwys i'r Alban a Chymru.  O ran yr adolygiad, eglurwyd bod y 
Gweinidog dros Lywodraeth Leol wedi rhoi cylch gwaith i'r Comisiwn gynnal yr arolwg cyn yr 
etholiad 2022, sy'n gyfrifoldeb statudol.  Holodd Aelod a fyddai gostwng yr oedran pleidleisio i 
16 yn cael ei ystyried fel rhan o'r adolygiad.  Bydd 3 llinyn o gydraddoldeb etholiadol ar gyfer 
2022 a bydd y rhai rhwng 16 a 18 mlwydd oed yn dod yn rhan o'r ail gyfran ar gyfer 2024.  
Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau na fydd y Comisiwn, mewn perthynas â wardiau un aelod, yn creu 
wardiau a ffiniau newydd yn artiffisial ac y caiff y wardiau cymunedol presennol eu defnyddio 
lle bo hynny'n bosibl.  Mae hwn hefyd yn fater y gall y gweithgor ei ystyried.  Mewn ymateb i 
ymholiad gan Aelod, eglurwyd y dylai Aelodau gyflwyno sylwadau ynglŷn â'u wardiau eu 
hunain yn ystod y cyfnod ymgynghori cychwynnol, pryd y caiff y cynigion drafft eu hystyried.   

 

 Gofynnodd Aelod am eglurhad ynghylch ystyried uno wardiau ac eglurwyd y gallai hyn fod yn 
rhywbeth i'r Comisiwn ei ystyried os oes angen gwella amrywiaethau etholiadol.  O ran 
cynghorwyr tref a chymunedol, nodwyd na fydd y trefniadau hyn yn cael eu hystyried o fewn 
yr arolwg hwn oni bai y ceir newid i'r ffin a'r effaith ganlyniadol ar y cynghorau cymunedol o 
fewn arolwg cymunedol.  Ni fydd y Comisiwn yn cynnig unrhyw wardiau 4 aelod newydd, 
gallant gadw'r 2 ward bresennol os cânt eu cefnogi oni bai bod y Cyngor yn cynnig trefniadau 
eraill.   

 

 Diolchodd y Maer i gynrychiolwyr y Comisiwn Ffiniau am y cyflwyniad manwl ac am ymateb i 
gwestiynau yn ystod y drafodaeth.  Nododd yr Aelodau gynnwys y cyflwyniad.  

Page 19



  

9. AROLWG ETHOLIADOL O GAERFFILI 
 
 Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro yr adroddiad yn gryno gan ei fod yn ymwneud yn 

uniongyrchol â'r eitem flaenorol a phwysleisiodd y neges glir ei bod yn bwysig bod y Cyngor 
yn gweithio gyda'r Comisiwn wrth symud ymlaen â'r adolygiad hwn.  Diben yr adroddiad yw 
sefydlu gweithgor i ddrafftio cynigion i'w cyflwyno i Gomisiwn Ffiniau a Democratiaeth Leol 
Cymru fel rhan o arolwg etholiadol y fwrdeistref sirol.  Ar ôl ei sefydlu, bydd y gweithgor yn 
rhoi adroddiad ar ei gynigion i gyfarfod y Cyngor ar 4ydd  Mehefin 2019 ar gyfer 
cymeradwyaeth y Cyngor.  Rhaid anfon y cynigion at Gomisiwn Ffiniau a Democratiaeth Leol 
Cymru erbyn 5ed Mehefin, i'w ystyried.  Mae'r adroddiad yn hysbysu'r Aelodau am yr 
amserlen ar gyfer yr adolygiad.  Pwysleisiodd Arweinydd y Cyngor yr angen i drefnu 
cyfarfodydd y gweithgor cyn gynted â phosibl.   

 
 PENDERFYNWYD:- 
 

(i) Dylid nodi'r amserlen fras ar gyfer yr adolygiad a sefydlu gweithgor 
aelod/swyddog sy'n cynnwys y canlynol:- 

 
- Y Cynghorydd David Poole, Arweinydd y Cyngor a 3 aelod arall o'r grŵp 

Llafur 
 

- Y Cynghorydd Colin Mann, arweinydd Plaid Cymru ynghyd ag 1 aelod arall 
o grŵp Plaid Cymru 

 
- Y Cynghorydd Kevin Etheridge, y Grŵp Annibynnol 

 
- Mr Rob Tranter – Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a'r Swyddog Monitro 

 
- Mr David Beecham, Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Etholiadol 

 
(ii)  y gweithgor i gyflwyno adroddiad ar ei gynigion i gyfarfod y Cyngor ar 4ydd 

Mehefin 2019 ar gyfer cymeradwyaeth y Cyngor.  Yna caiff y cynnig ei anfon at 
Gomisiwn Ffiniau a Democratiaeth Leol Cymru, erbyn 5ed Mehefin 2019, i'w 
ystyried. 

 
 
10. Y CYTUNDEB DINESIG PRIFDDINAS-RANBARTH CAERDYDD 
 
 Datganodd y Cynghorydd A. Whitcombe fuddiant personol mewn perthynas â'r eitem hon gan 

ei fod wedi rheoli prosiect sy'n gysylltiedig â'r Cytundeb  Dinesig. Cynghorodd y Swyddog 
Monitro fod hyn yn fuddiant personol nad yw'n rhagfarnu ac, oherwydd hynny, nid oedd yn 
ofynnol i'r Cynghorydd Whitcombe adael yr ystafell pan gyflwynwyd yr adroddiad, a gallai 
gymryd rhan yn y ddadl a'r bleidlais. 

 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r Cyflwyniad a draddodwyd gan Ms K. Beirne (Cyfarwyddwr y Cytundeb  

Dinesig).  Roedd y cyflwyniad yn rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am gyflymder a chynnydd y 
Cytundeb  Dinesig hyd yma ac yn tynnu sylw at y cyfleoedd sydd ar gael i'r economi fyd-eang.  
Nododd yr heriau a wynebwyd a'r cryfderau allweddol hefyd.  Trafodwyd y pwyntiau allweddol 
o gynnydd ac esboniwyd y canllawiau buddsoddi.  Darparwyd enghraifft lle buddsoddwyd 
arian sylweddol mewn Prosiect Lled-Ddargludyddion cyfansawdd yng Nghasnewydd gan y 
Cytundeb  Dinesig a Chronfa Fuddsoddi Ehangach y Cytundeb  Dinesig.  Nododd Ms Beirne 
y manteision lu y mae'r prosiect hwn wedi'u creu o ran economi a chreu swyddi yn y dyfodol.  
Cyfeiriodd at y Metro Plus a'r rhaglen newydd gyda'r nod o ddiogelu seilwaith yn y dyfodol a 
mynd i'r afael ag anghydbwysedd rhanbarthol o gwmpas y Metro.  I gloi, rhoddodd grynodeb o 
fanteision 'Beth sydd yn hyn i Gaerffili'.  Diolchodd y Maer i'r Cyfarwyddwr am ddod i Gyfarfod 
y Cyngor a chyflwyno'r cyflwyniad manwl.   

 

Page 20



  

 Crynhodd y Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro yr adroddiad a hysbysodd yr Aelodau fod y Cytundeb  
Dinesig yn cynnwys buddsoddiad o £1.2 biliwn, gan gynnwys datblygu Metro De Cymru; 
cymorth ar gyfer arloesi a seilwaith digidol; datblygu sgiliau a helpu pobl i ddychwelyd i'r 
gwaith; hyrwyddo menter a thwf busnesau; a gweithgarwch ehangach ym maes adfywio a 
thai.  Mae ganddi uchelgais i ddarparu 25,000 o swyddi newydd yn y rhanbarth ac ysgogi hyd 
at £4 biliwn o fuddsoddiad gan y sector preifat a chynnydd o 5% o ran Gwerth Ychwanegol 
Gros.  Ers ei sefydlu yn ôl yn 2017, mae seiliau'r Cytundeb  Dinesig wedi esblygu'n sylfaenol.  
Yn arbennig, yn ystod y misoedd diwethaf, cynhaliwyd asesiad o "sefyllfa barod" y rhaglen ar 
gyfer y cyfnod nesaf o'i defnyddio.  Mae hyn wedi cynnwys canolbwyntio ar ffactorau 
llwyddiant critigol craidd megis gwella dylanwad gyda buddsoddwyr a chyllidwyr; cynyddu'r 
aliniadau strategol er mwyn ysgogi buddsoddiad newydd; yr angen am ddata da i gefnogi 
penderfyniadau; a Chynllun Twf Economaidd a Diwydiannol newydd i osod cyfeiriad.  Ymhlith 
y prif heriau mae'r ymdeimlad o frys ynghylch effaith gwyro oddi wrth yr Undeb Ewropeaidd, 
colli cronfeydd strwythurol a'r angen i gystadlu â rhanbarthau a sefydliadau eraill er mwyn 
sicrhau adnoddau – drwy Strategaeth Ddiwydiannol Llywodraeth y DU – y ganolfan newydd o 
fuddsoddiadau economaidd ac arloesi rhanbarthol.  Yn y cyd-destun hwn, mae gan y 
Cytundeb  Dinesig arwyddocâd newydd – y tu hwnt i raglen ariannu.  Mae angen creu mwy o 
gadernid; y gallu i gystadlu; yr angen i "ganolbwyntio ar herio" ac yn cynyddu cynaliadwyedd 
economaidd.  Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn nodi'r ymyriadau y mae'r Cytundeb  Dinesig wedi eu 
rhoi ar waith i sicrhau ei bod mewn sefyllfa dda i fanteisio i'r eithaf ar y cyfleoedd sydd ar gael 
er mwyn gwella ffyniant y rhanbarth ar sail gynaliadwy. 

 
 Ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd, a oedd yn cefnogi'r adroddiad a'r argymhelliad, ei fod yn credu 

bod y Cytundeb  Dinesig wedi dod yn uchelgeisiol ac mai'r Cytundeb  Dinesig fydd un o'r 
pethau gorau sydd wedi digwydd i Gaerffili. 

 
 Trafododd yr Aelodau gyflwyniad yr adroddiad a'i gynnwys.  Dywedodd Aelod ei fod yn teimlo 

bod y cyflwyniad wedi magu hyder a bod angen cyfleoedd ar Gaerffili ar gyfer prosiectau 'ar y 
silff'.  Mae rhai Aelodau wedi teimlo eu bod wedi ymddieithrio oddi wrth y broses gan nad 
ydynt wedi cael gwybod am gynigion nac wedi ymgynghori arnynt cyn i argymhellion gael eu 
gwneud.  Mewn ymateb, dywedodd swyddogion fod y Bwrdd yn ei gyfnod cynnar ac y bydd 
ymgysylltu a chyfathrebu â'r Aelodau yn digwydd wrth symud ymlaen.  Cafwyd eglurhad 
mewn ymateb i nifer o gwestiynau a godwyd gan Aelodau a oedd yn cynnwys swyddogaeth 
cefn swyddfa'r Cytundeb  Dinesig.  Cadarnhawyd nad yw'r staff wedi cael eu recriwtio eto am 
fod angen cyflwyno strwythur arfaethedig i'r Cabinet Canolog a fydd yn cynnwys cymysgedd o 
brofiadau yn y sector preifat a chyhoeddus a fydd yn cynnig set sgiliau amrywiol.  Bydd naw 
aelod o Brifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd yn bresennol yn y gynhadledd MIPIM yr wythnos nesaf 
sef prif ddigwyddiad eiddo a thir y byd a bydd Caerffili yn cael ei chynrychioli gan yr 
Arweinydd a'r Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro.  Bydd digwyddiadau a gweithdai yn cael eu mynychu 
gyda'r bwriad o gyflwyno cryfderau cystadleuol o bob un o'r meysydd sy'n cael eu cynrychioli. 

 
 Ar ôl ystyried yr adroddiad yn llawn, cafodd ei gynnig a'i eilio bod yr argymhelliad yn 

adroddiad y Swyddog yn cael ei gymeradwyo a thrwy'r system bleidleisio electronig cytunwyd 
yn unfrydol ar hyn. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD bod cynnwys yr adroddiad yn cael ei nodi ac y dylid cymeradwyo 
rhaglen y Cytundeb Dinesig fel y'i diffiniwyd gan gyd-Gabinet y Cytundeb Dinesig 
Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd. 

 
 
11. CYHOEDDI'R DATGANIAD POLISI CYFLOG 2019/20 A GWEITHREDU STRWYTHUR 

CYFLOGAU A GRADDIO NEWYDD Y CYDGYNGOR CENEDLAETHOL 
 
 Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a'r Swyddog Monitro i'r Aelodau ei bod yn 

dderbyniol i swyddogion aros yn y Siambr gan nad oedd eu telerau a'u hamodau unigol yn 
cael eu penderfynu.   

 
 Mae'n rhaid i'r Cyngor ystyried a chytuno ar y polisi cyflog blynyddol.    

Page 21



  

 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cyngor llawn ar gyfer 

cyhoeddi Polisi Cyflog 2019/20 yr Awdurdod a hefyd cymeradwyaeth i weithredu a chyhoeddi 
Strwythur Cyflog a Graddio newydd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili y Cydgyngor 
Cenedlaethol. 

 
 Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau fod Deddf Lleoliaeth 2011 yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i awdurdodau 

lleol ddatblygu eu Polisi Cyflog a'i wneud yn gyhoeddus. Mae hyn yn cynnwys pob agwedd ar 
Dâl y Prif Swyddogion (gan gynnwys rhoi'r gorau i ddal y swydd), a hefyd mewn perthynas â'r 
"cyflogau isaf" yn y Cyngor, esbonio'u Polisi ar y berthynas rhwng taliadau i Brif Swyddogion a 
grwpiau eraill.  Mae'r darpariaethau yn Neddf Lleoliaeth 2011 sy'n ymwneud â datganiadau 
Polisi Cyflog ond yn berthnasol i gyflogeion a gaiff eu penodi a'u rheoli'n uniongyrchol gan y 
Cyngor. Felly, nid yw'n ofynnol i weithwyr sy'n cael eu penodi a'u rheoli gan benaethiaid 
ysgol/Cyrff Llywodraethu gael eu cynnwys o fewn cwmpas datganiadau'r Polisi Cyflog.  Mae 
hyn yn adlewyrchu'r sefyllfa unigryw o ran deddfwriaeth cyflogaeth lle mae pob cyflogai ysgol 
yn cael ei gyflogi gan yr awdurdod lleol, ond penaethiaid/cyrff llywodraethu sy'n gwneud 
penderfyniadau ynghylch penodi a rheoli gweithwyr o'r fath yn bennaf, fel sy'n briodol. 

 
 Atgoffwyd yr Aelodau bod strwythur Cyflogau a Graddio'r Cydgyngor Cenedlaethol ar gyfer 

gwasanaethau Llywodraeth Leol wedi'i gyflawni drwy gytundeb ar y cyd â'r undebau llafur, a'i 
roi ar waith o 1af Ebrill 2009.  Darparodd dyfarniad cyflog y Cydgyngor Cenedlaethol ar gyfer 
2018–20 yr amod bod Awdurdodau Lleol yn gorfod gweithredu strwythur cyflog a graddio 
newydd o'r 1af Ebrill 2019 h.y. ail flwyddyn y dyfarniad cyflog y cytunwyd arno.  Cyfeiriwyd yr 
Aelodau at atodiad 2 a thudalen 10 yn atodiad 1 sy'n gosod strwythur tâl a graddio arfaethedig 
diwygiedig y Cydgyngor Cenedlaethol yn sgil cytundeb ar y cyd â'r undebau llafur.  Er mwyn 
lleihau'r aflonyddwch a'r dryswch i weithwyr, mae'r Cyngor wedi seilio strwythur cyflog a 
graddio arfaethedig y Cydgyngor Cenedlaethol o amgylch graddfa dâl 1af Ebrill 2019 y 
Cydgyngor Cenedlaethol heb unrhyw amrywiad lleol.  Nodir prif bwyntiau'r strwythur cyflog 
newydd ym mharagraff 5.14 yr adroddiad. 

 
 Diolchodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd a'r Aelod Cabinet dros Gyllid, Perfformiad a Llywodraethu i'r 

swyddogion am y gwaith caled a wnaed wrth gwblhau'r Polisi Cyflog.   
 
 Ar ôl ystyried yr adroddiad yn llawn, fe'i symudwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid cymeradwyo'r 

argymhelliad a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog.   
 
 Yna symudwyd ac eiliwyd diwygiad, gan fod bandiau cyflog penodol fel y'u nodir yn Atodiad D 

i'r adroddiad (y bandiau hynny yn amrywio o'r Prif Weithredwr i lawr i fand B) yn cael eu rhewi 
ar unwaith.  Yn unol â Rheol Gweithdrefn 15.5 (1), gwnaed cais am bleidlais wedi'i chofnodi, 
ac fe'i cymerwyd â llaw gan y Swyddog Monitro. 

 
 O blaid y cynnig: 
 
 Cynghorwyr P.J. Bevan, L. Binding, D. Cushing, M. Davies, C. Elsbury, K. Etheridge, A. 

Farina-Childs, R.W. Gough, M. James, S. Kent, C.P. Mann, B. Owen, T. Parry, Mrs M.E 
Sargent, G. Simmonds, S. Skivens, L G. Whittle (17) 

 
 Yn erbyn y cynnig: 
 
 Cynghorwyr M. Adams, C. Andrews, J. Bevan, A. Collis, C. Cuss, W. David, M. Evans, Mrs C. 

Forehead, A. Gair, Ms J. Gale, N. George, L. Harding, D. Harse, D. Havard, V. James, Mrs B. 
Jones, G. Kirby, Mrs A. Leonard, B. Miles, S. Morgan, Mrs G. Oliver , Mrs L. Phipps, D.V. 
Poole, D.W.R. Preece, J. Pritchard, J. Simmonds, Miss E. Stenner, C. Thomas, A. 
Whitcombe, R. Whiting, W. Williams a B. Zaplatynski (32). 

 
 Felly, collwyd y diwygiad. 
 
 Yna cymerwyd y cynnig gwreiddiol drwy'r system bleidleisio electronig ac wrth nodi bod 15 yn 

Page 22



  

erbyn ac 1 yn ymatal, cytunwyd ar hyn gan y mwyafrif a oedd yn bresennol.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog i wneud y 
canlynol:- 
 
i) Bod y Datganiad Polisi Cyflog 2019/20 (Fersiwn 8) yn cael ei gytuno a'i 

gyhoeddi ar wefan y Cyngor. 
 
ii) Y dylid cytuno i dalu cyfradd yr awr Cyflog Byw Sylfaenol o £9.00 yn weithredol 

o 1af Tachwedd 2018. 
 
iii) Dylid cytuno ar strwythur diwygiedig y Cydgyngor Cenedlaethol ar gyfer cyflog 

a graddio a'i roi ar waith o'r 1af Ebrill 2019. 
 
iv) Dylid cytuno ar yr egwyddor o gymathu ac yna cynyddu'r broses o drosglwyddo 

staff i'r strwythur cyflogau a graddio diwygiedig o'r 1af Ebrill 2019. 
 
 
12. HEPGOR Y RHEOL 6 MIS YNGHYLCH PRESENOLDEB CYNGHORWYR 
 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad oedd yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cyngor Llawn i ganiatáu 

estyniad i'r Rheol Presenoldeb chwe mis ar gyfer y Cynghorydd Dianne Price yn unol ag 
Adran 85 (1) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.   

 
 Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau nad yw'r Cynghorydd Dianne Price wedi llwyddo i fynychu 

cyfarfod o'r Cyngor ers yr 20fed Medi 2018 oherwydd salwch helaeth a thriniaeth feddygol 
barhaus.  Derbyniwyd cais gan Swyddog Monitro'r Cyngor i ystyried cymeradwyo estyniad i'r 
Rheol Presenoldeb chwe mis arferol er mwyn galluogi'r Cynghorydd Price i aros yn ei swydd 
nes ei bod yn gallu ailddechrau dyletswyddau arferol pan fydd yn dychwelyd i gyflwr iechyd 
da.  Roedd aelodau o bob un o'r grwpiau gwleidyddol yn cefnogi'r argymhelliad yn llwyr yn yr 
adroddiad ac yn estyn eu dymuniadau gorau i'r Cynghorydd Price. 

 
 Ar ôl ystyried yr adroddiad yn llawn, fe'i symudwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid cymeradwyo'r 

argymhelliad a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog.  Cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar y system 
bleidleisio electronig.  

 
Penderfynwyd y caiff absenoldeb cyfredol o holl gyfarfodydd y Cyngor a'r Pwyllgorau y 
Cynghorydd Dianne Price, o ganlyniad i'w salwch, eu hawdurdodi a'u cymeradwyo am 
gyfnod pellach o chwech mis sy'n dod i ben ar 20fed Medi 2019, neu hyd nes y bydd 
yn ailddechrau ei phresenoldeb os yw hynny'n gynharach, yn unol ag adran 85 o 
Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 

 
 
13. HYSBYSIAD O GYNNIG – ABSENOLDEB RHIENI I GYNGHORWYR 
 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r hysbysiad o gynnig a gyflwynwyd gan y Cynghorydd A. Leonard ac a 

gefnogwyd gan y Cynghorwyr P. Marsden, E. Stenner ac L. Phipps.  Cyflwynwyd yr hysbysiad 
o gynnig i'r Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 6ed Chwefror 2019 ac mae'n bodloni'r 
meini prawf a nodir yng nghyfansoddiad y Cyngor ac yn unol â Rheolau Gweithdrefn y 
Cyngor.  

 
 Nododd y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd fod yr hysbysiad o gynnig yn gofyn i'r 

Cyngor alw ar Lywodraeth Cymru i ailystyried yr hawliau presennol o ran absenoldeb 
mamolaeth, tadolaeth a mabwysiadu i gynghorwyr, fel y deddfwyd ym Mesur Llywodraeth 
Leol (Cymru) 2011 (Rhan 2) a bod y Cyngor yn anfon y Polisi Absenoldeb Rhieni drafft ar 
gyfer Cynghorwyr (a atodwyd i'r adroddiad) at Lywodraeth Cymru i'w ystyried.  Diben yr 
hysbysiad o gynnig yw rhoi hawl decach i gynghorwyr gael absenoldeb rhieni ar ôl rhoi 
genedigaeth neu fabwysiadu a sicrhau bod cynghorwyr sydd â phlant ac ymrwymiadau gofalu 

Page 23



  

eraill yn cael cymorth fel y bo'n briodol.  Cefnogodd y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
yr hysbysiad o gynnig.   

 
 Lleisiodd yr Aelodau eu cefnogaeth mewn perthynas â'r hysbysiad o gynnig a chytunwyd bod 

y cynnig gwreiddiol i adlewyrchu'r cynigion yn gydradd â'r Polisi Absenoldeb Rhieni sydd ar 
gael i Swyddogion y Cyngor.  

 
 Ar ôl ystyried yr adroddiad yn llawn, fe'i symudwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid cymeradwyo'r 

argymhelliad a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog.  Cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar y system 
bleidleisio electronig.  

 
  PENDERFYNWYD y dylid cefnogi'r hysbysiad o gynnig. 
 
 
 Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 8.00pm. 
 
 
 Wedi'i gymeradwyo fel cofnod cywir, ac yn amodol ar unrhyw ddiwygiadau neu gywiriadau y 

cytunwyd arnynt a'u cofnodi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 16eg Ebrill 2019, fe'u 
llofnodwyd gan y Maer. 

 
 

_______________________ 
MAER 

 

Page 24



 

 
 

 
COUNCIL – 16TH APRIL 2019 

 
SUBJECT: REVIEW OF SCRUTINY 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR CORPORATE AND EDUCATION 

SERVICES 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To report on the findings of the scrutiny self-evaluation and scrutiny workshops and make 

recommendations.  
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 This report outlines the history and background to the scrutiny function in order to provide 

context to the recent Wales Audit Office report, ‘Scrutiny Fit for the Future’.  The report gives 
the findings of the scrutiny self-evaluation questionnaire sent to all members in October 2018 
and the finding from the scrutiny workshop sessions.  The report provides options and 
suggests areas for improvement which members are asked to consider.  

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Council is asked to consider the following: 
 
3.2 To change the names of Education for Life and Health Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny 

Committees, so they reflect the terms of reference for the respective scrutiny committee and 
no longer refer to the former Caerphilly Community Strategy.  

 
3.3 Endorse which Scrutiny Committee Structure is preferred from the options as set out in 5.18: 
 

• Option 1 - Retain the current number of 4 scrutiny committees plus Partnerships but re-
align the terms of reference to address the workloads of each scrutiny committee.  

• Option 2 - Reduce the number of committees to 3 to align them to the responsibilities to 
each of the Corporate Directors.  

• Option 3 - Increase the number of Scrutiny Committees to 5 to recognise the workloads in 
respect of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee and Regeneration and Environment 
Scrutiny Committee and create a Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee. 

• Option 4 - Increase the number of Scrutiny Committees to 5 to recognise the workloads in 
respect of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee and create a separate Housing 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 
3.4 If there is an increase in the number of scrutiny committees, that this is reviewed 12 months 

after the change is implemented.   
 
3.5 Determine if the frequency of committee meetings should continue on a six weekly basis, 

should the number of scrutiny committee’s increase to 5.  

Page 25

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 9



3.6 Determine if the number of Members who sit on scrutiny should continue to be 16 should the 
number of scrutiny committee’s increase to 5. 

 
3.7 To ensure that scrutiny committee Chairs and Vice Chairs are consulted on all reports to their 

respective scrutiny committee, in a timely fashion and where applicable, in order to allow them 
to ensure that the information requested by the scrutiny committee is included. 

 
3.8 Further develop public engagement with the scrutiny process by use of social media and 

utilising the existing Council mechanisms and also consider options to webcast scrutiny 
committee meetings. 

 
3.9 Further develop scrutiny specific training as detailed in point 5.25 to be monitored by the 

Scrutiny Leadership Group. 
 
3.10 Remove the Cabinet Member statement from Scrutiny Committee agendas with Cabinet 

Members presenting reports to scrutiny committee for their portfolio areas and answering 
questions on those reports, with the assistance of officers to answer technical queries. 

 
3.11 Include on scrutiny committee agendas a specific agenda item for the scrutiny committee to 

carry out policy development work. This can carry across a number of meetings and 
outcomes can be reported with recommendations.    

 
3.12 To agree that a scrutiny improvement action plan will be developed following approval of 

recommendations by full Council and subsequently monitored by Scrutiny Leadership Group.  
 
3.13 That Council give authority to the Monitoring Officer to amend the Council constitution to 

reflect any decisions in respect of scrutiny committee structure, size and terms of reference 
that are agreed by Council from this report.  

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To address the areas for improvement highlighted by WAO and also the issues identified from 

the self-evaluation and scrutiny workshops.  To improve the scrutiny function and develop an 
improvement action plan.  

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
 Background 
 
5.1 Scrutiny at Caerphilly County Borough Council was established in 2000 as a result of the 

Local Government Act 2000, and was revised following the Audit Commission report 
‘Democratic Renewal’ in 2003.  As a result of an Audit Commission report, Council 
established the Modernisation Working Group (MWG) who recommended revised 
arrangements in respect of scrutiny; full Council approved these in May 2005.  

 
5.2 In 2012/13 WAO carried out a national study of scrutiny across Wales.  The WAO used the 

responses of all 22 local authorities to produce their report ‘Good Scrutiny?  Good Question?’ 
published in May 2014.  Following the submission of the Council’s final self-evaluation to 
WAO a Scrutiny Improvement Action Plan (SIAP) was drafted.  Council approved the SIAP in 
October 2013 which was produced before WAO published the findings of the national study. 

 
5.3 The Wales Audit Office report ‘Follow-up of the Special Inspection and Reports in the Public 

Interest’, dated January 2015 identified further improvements scrutiny.  The Improving 
Governance Project Board (IGPB) had overall responsibility for overseeing the improvements 
to scrutiny and reported to Council in October 2015.  

 

Page 26



5.4 These actions were all completed by May 2016 aside from the self-evaluation that was carried 
out November 2016 and a peer review process completed by April 2017.  The findings were 
reported to Scrutiny Leadership group in July 2017 with a recommendation to carry out a 
further self-evaluation twice per council term in order to monitor performance.  This was 
endorsed by Democratic Services Committee in September 2017 and also Council in October 
2017.  The self-evaluation was planned for late Autumn 2018.  

 
 WALES AUDIT OFFICE REVIEW – SCRUTINY FIT FOR THE FUTURE 
 
5.5 Wales Audit Office carried out a review of the scrutiny function across all 22 Welsh local 

authorities in order to establish how ‘fit for the future’ they are in responding to current 
challenges such as the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015, scrutiny of Public Services 
Boards and continued pressure on public finances.  The WAO also looked at the progress 
made in addressing the recommendations from their earlier national improvement study ‘Good 
Scrutiny? Good Question’. 

 
5.6 The proposals for improvement to the scrutiny function are as follows: 
 
 P1 - Improving the provision of training and development opportunities for members to help: 
 

a. improve their understanding of their role in overview and scrutiny; 
b. develop their skills to be able to scrutinise effectively; and 
c. improve their understanding and consideration of the Well-being of Future Generations Act 
when undertaking scrutiny activity by providing further training. 
 
P2 - Clarifying the role of Cabinet Members within the overview and scrutiny process to 
ensure that arrangements support transparency and accountability. 
 
P3 - Setting clear priorities and actions for improvement for the scrutiny function taking into 
account current and future challenges. 

 
5.7 Wales Audit Office has published their national feedback and has highlighted the following six 

key areas for councils to reflect on: 
 

• In some councils there remains some fundamental confusion and misunderstanding 
around roles and responsibilities in practice. 

• Many councils still say they need to improve the way they engage with the public. 
• Improvements are needed to the way councils prioritise and then plan their scrutiny 

activity to improve its impact 
• Some councils may need to consider reviewing support and training for scrutiny 

committee members. 
• Most councils do not routinely evaluate the effectiveness of their scrutiny functions. 
• Welsh Government and Councils need to consider how these themes impact on local 

governance arrangements role. 
 
5.8 Finally WAO have identified six steps to better scrutiny in Wales, as follows: 
 

• Know your role 
• Know your powers and what’s ‘possible’ in scrutiny 
• Know what you are trying to achieve 
• Plan your scrutiny work to achieve your aims 
• Design support arrangements to achieve your aims 
• Regularly evaluate the effectiveness of scrutiny activity and make changes based on 

feedback 
 

Page 27



5.9 The proposals for improvement specific for Caerphilly, as detailed in 5.6 above, were reported 
to Scrutiny Leadership Group on 11th October 2018 and Audit Committee on 16th October 
2018, where it was agreed that an action plan would be developed to address the areas for 
improvement.  

 
5.10 The methodology for identifying further improvements to scrutiny was arranged as follows: 
 

• To progress the planned self-evaluation as agreed by Council in October 2017, the 
questionnaire to be based upon the ‘Characteristics for Good Scrutiny’  

• Workshops to be held with Members and senior officers to consider the proposals from 
WAO and identify improvements. 

• Develop recommendations which will be monitored by an action plan and overseen by 
Scrutiny Leadership Group. 

 
 Self-Evaluation Questionnaire 2018 
 
5.11 The self–evaluation questionnaire was sent to all councillors and senior officers in October 

2018.  There were a total of 63 responses and when compared to the responses of the 
previous questionnaire in 2016, there was very similar level of responses (29 Councillors and 
36 Officers).  The following table gives a breakdown of the responses to the more recent 
questionnaire: 

 
Respondent 
(possible) 

Responses Percentage of 
possible 
responses 

Percentage of total 
responses received 

Scrutiny Member (59) 27 46% 43% 
Cabinet Member (9) 1 11% 2% 
Non-Scrutiny Member 
(3) 

2 67% 3% 

Other (2) 1 50% 2% 
Total Members (73) 31 42% 49% 
Officers (98) 31 32% 49% 
Not indicated 1 n/a 2% 
Totals (171) 63 37% n/a 

 
Note: 1 person indicated and stated that they were not in a political group and therefore did 
not have a scrutiny place, therefore indicated in brackets are the number of Members that this 
applies to, although the second Member may have responded as a non-scrutiny member. 

 
5.12 The results from each of the questions in the questionnaire for 2018 along with a comparison 

for the results from 2016 are attached at appendix 1. 
 
5.13 The results for each question are broadly the same when comparing responses for 2016 with 

2018.  However there were some changes for the following statements: 
 

• Scrutiny has a valued role in the council's improvement arrangements - show a 10% 
increase in those disagreeing, and 8% reduction in those strongly agreeing.  

• Overview and scrutiny meetings and activities are well-planned – shows a 15% increase 
with those agreeing and a 17% reduction in those strongly agreeing. With a 5% increase 
by those who disagree.  

• Overview and scrutiny meetings and activities are chaired effectively – shows a 16% 
increase in those agreeing and 6% reduction in those strongly agreeing.  

• Scrutiny operates non-politically – shows a reduction in those who strongly disagree and 
disagree of 3% and 9% respectively and a 20% increase in those who agree. 

 
 The responses also show a desire to increase the amount of independent evidence based 

work with measurable outcomes, and also engaging more with the public and challenge of 
decision makers.     

Page 28



 Workshops  
 
5.14 In addition to the self-evaluation questionnaire two workshops were arranged for scrutiny 

committee members and Cabinet and Corporate Directors.  The sample of the feedback from 
the workshops and a sample of the comments from the questionnaire responses have been 
collated under the following headings (the feedback is in italics, and where appropriate is an 
officer response in order to provide context and suggest solutions to address the issues 
raised): 

 
 Scrutiny Committees 
 
 Questionnaire comments: 3 Agenda items reduces debate so important items are tabled as 

information only - don't agree.  Cross Party Chairs - ability does not seem to count unless you 
are in the ruling group. Many Members still put ward issues before their Scrutiny role. 
Meetings should take place in the day. Less members on the committee. 

 
 Workshop comments: The workload of Policy and Resources has been heavily balanced 

with Housing related matters.  With the work moving towards post WHQS in 2020 we should 
set up a new scrutiny committee for Housing and disband the Caerphilly Homes Task Group, 
allowing tenants to be co-opted onto the new Housing Scrutiny Committee.  Look at the titles 
for scrutiny committees, Health Social Care & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee doesn’t look at 
health related items very often the majority of agenda items are social services.  

 
 Officer Response: The titles of the scrutiny committees were originally set up in 2003 (point 

5.1) and were aligned to the themes of the former Caerphilly community strategy which 
ceased in 2013.  However since then the Living Environment and Regeneration have merged 
to form Regeneration and Environment, leaving Education for Life and Health Social Care and 
Wellbeing.  Therefore it may now be appropriate to look at the names and composition for all 
the scrutiny committees.  

 
 Analysis of the number of reports discussed by Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 

since May 2017, shows that 42 reports have been considered by the committee on the main 
agenda with 24 of those housing related.  Information items are circulated to all Members and 
the committee can choose to add the report to a future agenda for discussion, it is a matter for 
the scrutiny committee to prioritise.  

 
 The times of meetings are in accordance with the questionnaire issued to all councillors 

following the local government elections, as required in the Local Government (Wales) 
Measure 2011.  

 
 Pre-meetings and Meeting Attendance 
 

Workshop comments: Need better attendance at Scrutiny.  The (pre-meeting) time should 
be included on the agenda, and attendance monitored. Concerns were raised that not all 
scrutiny members attend pre-meetings.  
 
Officer Response: This has been monitored by Scrutiny Leadership Group who received a 
report on 11th October 2018.  The report showed that over a 12 month period that generally 
most scrutiny committee members who are present at scrutiny committee meetings attend the 
pre-meeting.  It was also suggested that should a member arrive late or leave early that it be 
included in the minutes.  In order for this to be accurately reflected it would need to be 
announced in order to be picked up by the minute taker, as in some cases members leave 
and then return. 
 
Regularity of Scrutiny Meetings  
 
Workshop comments: A 6 week gap is too long.  
 

Page 29



Officer Response: Research across Wales has shown that local authorities can have 
between one main scrutiny committee (supported by a number of subject panels or groups) to 
three, four, five or six committees.  The total number of meetings range from fourteen to 74 
meetings per annum and membership can range from five to thirty six. For the majority of 
local authorities the frequency of meetings is either monthly, 6 weekly or 8 weekly.  However 
the size and regularity can also differ between committees within a local authority.  Wales 
Audit Office has also commented in feedback that scrutiny should move away from the 
traditional committee approach and think more about impact.   
 
Reports 
 
Questionnaire comments: The volume of information presented to members at times is too 
great to really absorb to allow proper debate and scrutiny in the meetings.  This is evidenced 
by Members regularly asking questions that are answered in the reports. 
 
Workshop comments Chair & Vice Chairs should be consulted with, reports are too long and 
need a good summary.  
 
Officer Response: Following the last scrutiny review in 2015, Scrutiny Leadership Group 
(SLG) was tasked with reviewing the quality of reports for 12 months following the 
implementation of the changes to scrutiny.  In that timescale SLG held two workshop sessions 
and reviewed sample of reports, the Interim Monitoring Officer attended and took on board the 
views of SLG to feed back to CMT.  Since then the report template has been changed to 
provide a summary and recommendations on the first page and also state how the proposals 
will link into Corporate Priorities.  
 
Work Programmes and Engagement 
 
Questionnaire comments: Whilst scrutiny has been somewhat streamlined, it still does not 
appear to be functioning at a strategic level and properly scrutinising council policies and 
services to any great extent.  The agenda is also still heavily officer driven.  I think a 
significant amount of Scrutiny time is dedicated to pre-decision scrutiny and much less toward 
policy shaping.  Members are often afforded the opportunity to ask parochial or ward based 
questions to the strategic issues under discussion and this can sometime detract from the 
focus on the matter in hand. 
 
Workshop comments: Committees need to be more involved & supported to understand 
issues; Ownership.  Need to look forward, use social media, Newsline should publicise the 
work programmes, we should use modern IT such as an Application, Webcasting.  More 
witnesses at meetings; triangulation of evidence is important. More deep dive single topic 
meetings.  Purpose and Key issues to be clearer and we should reduce frequent changes. 
Consider offering scrutiny training to community councils to raise awareness of the function. 
 
Officer Response: The role of scrutiny is as follows: 
 
• To ensure service delivery is in line with expected performance standards  
• Help shape new council policies and services  
• Monitor the Council’s budgets  
• Holding decision makers to account  
• Undertaking reviews of council policies and services  
• Representing the views of local communities 

 
 In order to assist scrutiny committees to decide what topics will be included in work 

programmes, a prioritisation matrix was developed following the scrutiny review in 2015.  
Scrutiny committees use this when developing their work programmes at the annual work 
programme workshop and it asks that the following is considered: 

 

Page 30



• Is the issue of strategic importance? 
• Is there concern of poor performance or has a significant budgetary issue has been 

identified? 
• Is it an issue highlighted by an Auditor, Regulator or Inspector identified areas for 

improvement?  
• Has the issue been identified as a corporate priority or identified as a service or corporate 

risk? 
• Is there a change to Legislation or Guidance requiring Policy change? 
• Is there evidence of public dissatisfaction (e.g. Public Satisfaction Survey) 
• Is the topic timely? 
• Will scrutiny be able to make recommendations? 
 
The work programme is also on the agenda for discussion at every programmed meeting and 
Members can suggest topics and agree witnesses to be invited.  The work programmes are 
published with each agenda pack and also have a page on the external website.  There is 
further work that can be done in this area through use of social media to engage with the 
public and perhaps consider webcasting of scrutiny committee meetings.  

 
Performance Management  
 
Workshop comments: Needs improvement.  
 
Officer Response: It is difficult to respond to this comment as there is no context.  Scrutiny 
committees have an annual performance management meeting when they will review 
performance.  The new performance framework will see performance information produced on 
a quarterly basis and reported to dedicated scrutiny meetings twice per annum.  

 
Task and Finish 
 
Workshop comments: Need to do more policy development.  
 
Officer Response: There has been limited use of task and finish groups work during the past 
two years, although Members have had the opportunity to take part in working groups such as 
Street Scene, Waste and 21st Century Schools. Perhaps the balance of work needs to be re-
considered with more task and finish group work and less pre-decision scrutiny.  
 
Outcomes and Influence 
 
Questionnaire: The administration can only better itself if it is willing to listen to (and accept) 
criticism and take on board ideas that may come from outside of the corporate management 
and leadership team. 
 
Officer Response: This could be addressed by carrying out more policy development work at 
meetings of scrutiny with strategic topics identified and time allocated on every agenda.  The 
committee could consider one topic over a number of meetings, where witnesses and 
independent evidence could be heard.  The scrutiny committee could then draw conclusions 
and make recommendations.  

 
Training 
 
Questionnaire comments: I’m not sure that scrutiny members do a lot of evidence based 
challenging - the process is more akin to a Q and A session which is a very different animal 
 
Workshop comments: More specific scrutiny & service focussed. Members need to 
concentrate on one committee and specialise. Attendance an issue, more E-Learning and 
refreshers needed.  Develop a schedule of all training for diaries.  Put recorded versions of 
training on Portal.  Short good practice guides, peer observations internal and external, more 
flexible, more detail on content, mandatory, skills based. Scrutiny committees could hold a 
short de-brief after the meeting.  Newly elected members could be offered as part of their 
induction training on reports structure and also a buddy scheme. 

Page 31



 
Officer Response: There are 16 Councillors on each scrutiny committee and 5 Members sit 
on more than one committee (not including Policy and Resources sitting as Partnerships).  It 
may be difficult for members from smaller political groups to avoid sitting on more than one 
committee and ‘specialise’.  Since 2017 there have been two scrutiny committee training 
sessions, and the training programme for 2018 -2020 included skills training such as chairing 
and questioning.  A number of seminars have been held which included the following topics: 
 
• MTFP (September 2017 & January 2018)  
• Treasury Management  
• Aneurin Bevan University Health Board  
• 21st Century Schools  
• Civil Parking Enforcement  
• Sport and Leisure Strategy  
• Universal Credit 
 
Feedback from Democratic Services Committee asked that all training and seminars to be 
sent out as meeting request to allow Members to accept and automatically add to their diaries.   
 
Cabinet Member Role  
 
Questionnaire comments: ‘The Cabinet Member statement does not add value and actually 
takes up meeting time which could be devoted to the main work programme.’ ‘Executive 
Members need to research subjects not read off a script and refer to officers.’ ‘There are 
examples of Cabinet members giving effective answers/feedback to scrutiny questions but 
questions are also passed on to officers on numerous occasions’. ‘There are other more 
appropriate mechanisms for publicising Cabinet Member activity.’ 
 
Workshop comments: ‘Cabinet Members should answer more questions, Statements are 
more like newsletters and not relevant to the meeting.’ ‘Cabinet member(s) should sit opposite 
the chair and questions addressed to them by default.’ ‘Officers are only there to answer 
technical questions’. ‘Cabinet member should have full knowledge of the agenda and their 
area.’ ‘There is limited added value of the statements’. ‘Cabinet members would need to 
prepare in order to introduce reports at scrutiny’. ‘However there is the benefit that cabinet 
members can set out the purpose of reports against their cabinet priorities and the corporate 
plan.’ 
 
Officer Response: Cabinet Member statements were introduced in 2005 (point 5.1) and 
having compared with other Welsh local authorities, there are none that have such a 
statement on the agenda. Comparison shows that two local authorities have space on the 
agenda for questions to the Cabinet Member. However with the recent changes to questions 
to Cabinet at full Council and the changes to the report format with the summary and 
recommendations on the front page, it may be opportune to remove the statement altogether, 
as this would also allow more time for debate for main agenda items.  
 
Future Challenges 
 
Workshop comments: ‘Distracted by austerity, Wellbeing of Future Generations should be 
the main focus’, ‘concerns that scrutiny doesn’t have enough knowledge’. ‘It is important that 
members are made aware of legislative changes and the impact on service areas, such as 
social care’. ‘Scrutiny committees should make time on their agendas for looking ahead and 
not always look back.’ 

 
5.15 Conclusions 
 
5.16 In order to address the issues highlighted by the self-evaluation and the Member workshops 

the following options have been identified. 
 

Page 32



 Scrutiny Committee Names 
 
5.17 The scrutiny committee names were aligned with the former Caerphilly Community Strategy 

which expired in 2013.  This has continued in respect of Health Social Care and Wellbeing 
and also Education for Life, this may the time to remove this link and re-name them to reflect 
their terms of reference.  

 
 Scrutiny Committee Structure 
 
5.18 There are a few options available to respond to the issues identified during this review: 
 
 Option 1 
 
 Retain the current structure of four scrutiny committees plus Partnerships and re-align the 

terms of reference to address the workloads, as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In this structure Education Scrutiny Committee terms of reference would remain the same.  
Social Services and Housing Scrutiny Committee will take on Housing responsibility in line 
with the responsibility of the Corporate Director for Social Services and Housing.  The scrutiny 
committee would consider the remainder of the WHQS programme and the legacy, once the 
programme is completed.  
 
Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee would no longer be responsible for Housing and 
Property Services could also be removed, recognising the need to re-balance agendas and 
ensure that all of the responsibilities of the committee have more committee time.  In addition 
the committee also meet as the Partnerships Scrutiny Committee, twice per annum; this may 
increase to reflect the development in the outcomes of the Public Services Board Wellbeing 
Plan.  
 
Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee would take on Property Services 
responsibility in line with the responsibility of the Corporate Director for Communities.  

 
 Option 2 
 
 Reduce the number of committees to 3 and align them to the responsibilities to each of the 

Corporate Directors, renaming them as follows: 
 
 
 
 
  

The responsibility for scrutiny of the Public Services Board (Partnerships Scrutiny Committee) 
would need to be attached to one of above.  The Social Services and Housing scrutiny 
committee would consider the remainder of the WHQS programme and also the legacy once 
the programme is completed.  
 
Option 3 
 
Increase the number of Scrutiny Committees to 5 to recognise the workload in respect of 
Housing reports upon Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee and also take into account 
the workload of Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee.  This could be addressed 
by the formation of the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee (Regeneration would 
consist of both Planning and Regeneration items).  The creation of a scrutiny committee for 

Education Scrutiny 
Committee 

Social Services 
and Housing 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Policy and 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Regeneration 
and Environment 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Corporate and 
Education Scrutiny 
Committee 

Social Services and 
Housing Scrutiny 
Committee 

Communities 
Scrutiny Committee 

Page 33



Housing and Regeneration would be an opportunity to bring together two service areas that 
have a connection in terms of community regeneration and affordable housing.  The scrutiny 
committee would be responsible for the Regeneration Strategy, the Economic Strategy and 
also City Deal.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 If the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee were to be created it would take on the 
scrutiny of the remainder of the WHQS programme and also the legacy once the programme 
is completed.  This proposal would create a further senior salary. 

 
 Option 4 
 
 Increase the number of Scrutiny Committees to 5 to recognise the workloads in respect of 

Housing reports to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee and create a separate Housing 
Scrutiny Committee.  In addition remove the connections in the titles of Health Social Care & 
Wellbeing and Education for Life to the Caerphilly community strategy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
  
 
 

If the Housing Scrutiny Committee were to be created it would take on the scrutiny of the 
remainder of the WHQS programme and also the legacy once the programme is completed.  
This proposal would create a further senior salary. 

 
 Meeting Attendance 
 
5.19 Attendance at Pre-meetings has been monitored by Scrutiny Leadership Group and 

essentially the majority of members who attend the main meeting also attend the pre-meeting.  
With regard to actual meeting attendance this is published on the council website and also 
included in Members Annual reports. Individual Chairs or groups may wish to address this on 
a broader or individual basis.  

 
 Regularity of Scrutiny Meetings 
 
5.20 Research across Wales has shown that less than half of other local authorities’ scrutiny 

committees meet on a 6 weekly basis. If the number of meetings per committee were to be 
increased this would have an impact upon staff resources in terms of servicing and arranging 
the meetings.  This would also have an impact upon the demands on Members time.  If it is 
considered appropriate to increase the regularity the overall size of each committee 
membership should be considered, and perhaps reducing the committee size to 12 or 14 
members.  Any increase in the number of scrutiny committees should also consider the 
regularity of meetings and the size of membership.  

Education Scrutiny 
Committee 

Policy and Resources 
Scrutiny Committee 
plus Partnerships 
Scrutiny Committee 

Social Services 
Scrutiny Committee 

Housing and 
Regeneration 
Scrutiny Committee 

Environment 
Scrutiny Committee 

Education Scrutiny 
Committee 

Policy and Resources 
Scrutiny Committee 
plus Partnerships 
Scrutiny Committee 

Social Services 
Scrutiny Committee 

Housing Scrutiny 
Committee 

Regeneration and 
Environment Scrutiny 
Committee 

Page 34



 Reports 
 
5.21 Arrangements should be put in place to ensure that scrutiny Chairs and Vice Chairs are 

consulted on all reports to Scrutiny in a timely fashion and where applicable, to allow them the 
opportunity to ensure that the information requested by the scrutiny committee is included.  

 
 Work Programmes and Engagement 
 
5.22 Scrutiny committees can shape their own work programmes but perhaps further training could 

be provided to help them further develop the skills and knowledge to decide on the most 
appropriate topics.  The confidence to select fewer but more strategic topics and the time and 
resources to support independent work should address these concerns.  The prioritisation 
matrix for deciding which reports should be added to the work programme is highlighted 
during the annual work programme workshop and also when the scrutiny committee consider 
an individual Member or public requests to add an item to the work programme.  Additional 
officer capacity has been provided to support task and finish groups and also develop public 
engagement. In addition we could look at developing webcasting of meetings to further 
promote the work of scrutiny. 

 
Performance Management 

 
5.23 The new performance framework will be in place for 2019/20, scrutiny committees will be 

asked to hold two dedicated performance management meetings per annum.  The framework 
will include a Directors summary, progress against service priorities, service performance 
against agreed KPIs, customer intelligence, a snapshot of sickness and the service budget 
position, a risk profile and a conclusion with agreed actions. 

 
Outcomes and Influence 
 

5.24 This links into the work programmes and also task and finish group work.  The need for 
members training and also the additional support from a new scrutiny officer will provide more 
assistance to the scrutiny function and enable more independent work.  Allowing space on 
each scrutiny agenda for policy development should encourage more independent outcome 
focussed meetings.  

 
 Training 
 
5.25 There are several opportunities to develop member training further, the programme has 

already offered pre-meeting training, chairing skills and questioning skills.  This links into the 
WAO proposal for improvement, point 5.6.  It is suggested that the following training is added 
to the member development programme: 

 
• Re-run the questioning skills training. 
• Develop E-learning opportunities and video wherever possible.  
• Offer a range of scrutiny function training to include work programmes. 
• Advertise the wide range of scrutiny good practice guides already available from the 

WLGA and located on the Members Portal. 
• Arrange further peer observations, or direct Members to webcasting of other councils’ 

scrutiny committees. 
• Ensure the feedback is considered when devising the next Member Induction 

Programme. 
• Wellbeing of Future Generations Workshop – already planned.  

 
Cabinet Member Role 
 

5.26 The feedback indicates that the purpose and need for a Cabinet Member Statement is no 
longer required.  The changes to report format with the summary and recommendations on 
the front page would seem to be an opportunity to give the Cabinet Members a more central 
role to introduce reports on each scrutiny agenda.  The scrutiny committee could then ask the 
Cabinet Member questions that relate to the strategic aims of the report.  Officers would then 

Page 35



respond to any questions relating to operational or technical matters.  This also links into the 
specific WAO recommendations to provide clarity to the Cabinet member role, point 5.6.  This 
also complies with Welsh Government Guidance on Executive and Alternative arrangements 
2006.  The guidance states that: “The executive and overview and scrutiny committees should 
always bear in mind that it is for the elected executive to answer questions about its policies 
and decisions.  When officers appear to answer questions their contribution should, as far as 
possible, be confined to questions of fact and explanation relating to policies and decisions.” 

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 The assumptions in this report assume that Members agree that the issues identified by 

Wales Audit Office and also the self-evaluation questionnaire will be addressed by the 
feedback during discussion at the Member workshop and the proposals and options 
suggested in this report.  

 
6.2 There are some options that relate to the number of scrutiny committees and their terms of 

reference. If it is decided to increase the number or frequency of scrutiny meetings further 
sufficient resources would need to be made available to support those changes.  

 
 
7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 The operation of scrutiny is a statutory function that ensures that members have the 

opportunity to properly scrutinise council policies including the Corporate Plan.  
 
7.2 Corporate Plan 2018-2023 
 
 Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all 

 
 Objective 2 - Enabling employment 

 
 Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes throughout the 

county borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s well-being 
 

 Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that increases 
opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impacts on the environment 
 

 Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with 
the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 
 

 Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being. 
 
 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 The self-evaluation proposals contribute to the following Well-being Goals within the 

Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2016 by ensuring that scrutiny function 
evaluates its effectiveness and identifies areas for improvement.  An effective scrutiny 
function can ensure that council policies are scrutinised against the following goals:-  

 
• A prosperous Wales* 
• A resilient Wales* 
• A healthier Wales* 
• A more equal Wales* 
• A Wales of cohesive communities* 
• A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language* 
• A globally responsible Wales* 

Page 36



9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The scrutiny self-evaluation questionnaire included questions on involving a wide range of 

evidence and perspectives, with a wide variety of internal and external stakeholders.  The aim 
was to evaluate the scrutiny function and identify any further areas for improvement.  

 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Further additional resource in Democratic Services will be required to support additional 

committees, or increased frequency of meetings, if members make that decision.  The cost of 
an additional part time committee services officer would be £17,685.  A further senior salary 
will be payable if the number of scrutiny committees is increased, at an additional cost of 
£8,700.  This growth will increase the savings target in the Authority’s MTFP for 2020/21.  As 
the Budget has been set for 2019/20 any additional part year costs for this financial year will 
need to be taken from corporate service reserves. 

 
10.2 There may also be associated costs for webcasting of all scrutiny committee meetings that 

would have to be subject to a tender exercise. If there are any additional costs these will need 
to be funded by growth for 2020/21, with any in year additional costs being funded from 
corporate service reserves. 

 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 If the frequency of scrutiny committee meetings is increased to every 4 weeks, this would 

create additional workload for Democratic Services staff who are already working at full 
capacity.  There would also be additional burden if an additional scrutiny committee is 
created. An additional part time committee services officer would be required to support the 
team.  

 
11.2 The benefit of the recent appointment of a scrutiny officer may be diminished in supporting 

these additional meetings and thus lessen the opportunity to support task and finish groups in 
more in-depth work.  

 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 There has been significant consultation in developing this report; all 73 Councillors and the 

Management Network were asked to complete the self-evaluation questionnaire in October 
2018.  In addition all Scrutiny Committee Members, Cabinet Members and the Corporate 
Directors were invited to attend the scrutiny workshops held in January and March 2019.  

 
12.2 There was one response that highlighted the experience of Policy and Resources Scrutiny 

Committee in respect of the WHQS programme, referenced the cross party working group 
and the significant focus of the scrutiny committee in achieving improvements.  They 
suggested that the WHQS element of Housing should be retained by Policy and Resources 
Scrutiny Committee until the completion of the programme.   

 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000. 
 
13.2 Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011. 
 
 

Page 37



Authors: Catherine Forbes-Thompson, Interim Head of Democratic Services  
 Rob Tranter Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
Consultees: Richard Edmunds Corporate Director Education and Corporate Services 
 Christina Harrhy, Interim Chief Executive 
 Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services and Housing 

Mark S Williams, Corporate Director Communities 
 Councillor Barbara Jones, Deputy Leader Finance, Performance and Governance 
 Councillor James Pritchard, Chair Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 

Councillor Gez Kirby, Vice Chair Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor Tudor Davies, Chair Regeneration & Environment Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor Christine Forehead, Vice Chair Regeneration & Environment Scrutiny 
Committee 
Councillor Derek Havard, Chair Education for Life Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair Education for Life Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor Lyndon Binding, Chair Health Social Care & Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee 
Councillor John Bevan, Vice Chair Health Social Care & Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee 
Councillor Dave Poole, Leader of Council 
Councillor Colin Mann, Leader Plaid Cymru Group 
Councillor Kevin Etheridge, Leader Independents Group 
Councillor Nigel Dix 
Councillor Kevin Dawson 

  Nicole Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance and Section 151 Officer 
 Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
 Steve Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement 
 
Background: 
Guidance for County and County Borough Councils in Wales On Executive And Alternative 
Arrangements 2006 - No. 56 
Council 17th May 2005 agenda item 4.4 
Council 8th October 2013 agenda item 7.3 
Wales Audit Office ‘Good Scrutiny Good Question?’ May 2014 
Council 10th October 2017 agenda item 8 
Council 6th October 2015 agenda item 10 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 - Scrutiny Self-Evaluation Questionnaire 2018 – Comparison with 2016 
 

Page 38



Appendix 1 

Scrutiny Self-Evaluation Questionnaire 2018 – Comparison with 2016 

Scrutiny has a clearly defined role in the council's improvement arrangements 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 6% 62% 29% 2% 
2016 2% 6% 58% 31% 3% 
Scrutiny has a valued role in the council's improvement arrangements 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 0% 18% 52% 29% 2% 
2016 2% 8% 49% 37% 5% 
Scrutiny have the dedicated officer support it needs from officers 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 0 0 53% 41% 7% 
2016 2% 6% 47% 39% 6% 
Scrutiny members have the training and development opportunities they need 
to undertake their role effectively 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 11% 44% 21% 22% 
2016 2% 8% 55% 22% 14% 
The scrutiny process receives effective support from the Council’s Corporate 
Management team who ensure it receives high quality information in a timely 
manner 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 0 3% 53% 32% 11% 
2016 This question wasn’t included in 2016 
Scrutiny is recognised by the Executive and Corporate Management team as an 
important council mechanism for community engagement 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 3% 10% 48% 27% 13% 
2016 2% 6% 56% 27% 10% 
Scrutiny inquiries (Task & Finish Group) are non-political 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 13% 59% 16% 11% 
2016 3% 13% 56% 13% 16% 
Scrutiny inquiries (Task & Finish Group) are methodologically sound  
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 8% 64% 8% 19% 
2016 2% 9% 61% 9% 19% 
Scrutiny inquiries (Task & Finish Group) incorporate a wide range of evidence 
and perspectives 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 8% 60% 13% 18% 
2016 2% 10% 54% 21% 14% 
Scrutiny is member-led and has `ownership` of its work programme 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 13% 57% 21% 8% 
2016 2% 11% 55% 28% 5% 
 

Page 39



Appendix 1 

Scrutiny takes into account the views of the public, partners and regulators, 
whilst balancing between prioritising community concerns against issues of 
strategic risk and importance 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 3% 13% 62% 11% 11% 
2016 0% 19% 53% 19% 9% 
Stakeholders have the ability to contribute to the development and delivery of 
scrutiny forward work programmes 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 5% 10% 62% 18% 6% 
2016 0% 11% 59% 17% 13% 
Overview and scrutiny meetings and activities are well-planned 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 0% 10% 73% 14% 3% 
2016 0% 5% 58% 31% 6% 
Overview and scrutiny meetings and activities are chaired effectively 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 0 3% 74% 19% 3% 
2016 5% 5% 58% 25% 8% 
Overview and scrutiny meetings and activities make best use of the resources 
available to it 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 13% 65% 11% 10% 
2016 0% 6% 69% 17% 8% 
Scrutiny is characterised by effective communication to raise awareness of, and 
encourage participation in democratic accountability 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 16% 56% 19% 8% 
2016 0% 11% 65% 14% 10% 
Scrutiny operates non-politically 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 25% 59% 11% 3% 
2016 5% 39% 39% 11% 6% 
      
Scrutiny deals effectively with sensitive political issues, tension and conflict 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 19% 51% 13% 16% 
2016 3% 14% 62% 14% 6% 
Scrutiny builds trust and good relationships with a wide variety of internal 

stakeholders 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 11% 68% 6% 13% 
2016 0% 16% 58% 15% 11% 
Scrutiny builds trust and good relationships with a wide variety of external 
stakeholders  
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 3% 11% 62% 6% 18% 
2016 0% 17% 52% 14% 17% 

Page 40



Appendix 1 

 

Scrutiny regularly engages in evidence based challenge of decision makers 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 3% 19% 60% 14% 3% 
2016 2% 18% 58% 18% 5% 
Scrutiny regularly engages in evidence based challenge of service providers 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 3% 21% 56% 14% 6% 
2016 0% 23% 58% 13% 7% 
Scrutiny provides viable and well evidenced solutions to recognised problems 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 5% 26% 47% 13% 10% 
2016 2% 26% 44% 16% 13% 
Nonexecutive members provide an evidence based check and balance to 
Executive decision making 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 0 16% 65% 10% 10% 
2016 3% 13% 55% 15% 15% 
Decision makers give public account for themselves at scrutiny committees for 
their portfolio responsibilities 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 2% 11% 67% 19% 2% 
2016 5% 13% 60% 16% 7% 
Overview and scrutiny enables the 'voice' of local people and communities 
across the area to be heard as part of decision and policy-making processes 
 Strongly disagree Disagree Agree Strongly Agree Don’t know 
2018 3% 16% 67% 10% 5% 
2016 3% 18% 63% 8% 8% 
 

Page 41



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 42



 

 
 

 

COUNCIL – 16TH APRIL 2019 
 

SUBJECT: THE USE OF ELECTRONIC VOTING DATA 
 

REPORT BY: HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES & MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To seek the agreement of council for the publication of members’ names in the electronic 

voting information packs published after each meeting of council.    
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 To regularise the publication of electronic voting information after meetings of the council so 

that members names will be published rather just than the numbers voting for, against or 
abstaining on decisions which is the current practice of the council.   

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That council approve the inclusion of members’ names on how they voted in the electronic 

voting information packs published following each meeting of council.  
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To make publically available the information that the council already holds on how each 

individual member has voted at a meeting of council. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 At a meeting of council on the 23rd April, 2013, council agreed to introduce electronic voting 

for its meetings of council.    
 
5.2 It was felt that the use of the electronic voting system for meetings of council will improve 

transparency of decision making.  The system automatically displays in the council chamber 
how members have voted on a motion and generates a hard copy of how each member has 
voted.  The record showing the numbers of members who voted and how they voted is 
subsequently published on the council’s website the day after each meeting.   

 
5.3 Even though the council holds the information on how each member has voted, the practice of 

the council has been to only publish the numbers of how members voted when the electronic 
voting packs are published.  The names of the members are only published where a recorded 
vote has been requested in the chamber. 

 

Page 43

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 10



5.4 Moving forward, the intention is that the members’ names and how they voted will be made 
available when the electronic voting packs are published.  The council holds the information 
and if a request for the information was received under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, 
then it would have to be released.  Therefore, it is felt that it would be good practice for the 
council to publish the information. 

 
5.5 If members wish for a recorded vote to take place at the meeting of council, then that can still 

be requested if 10 members support the proposal.  
 
5.6 Conclusion 
 
 As the council already holds the information, it is good practice to automatically publish it in 

the electronic voting pack. 
 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 That the council continues to adopt the electronic voting procedure at its meetings of council.  
 
 
7. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
7.1 The report contributes to the each of the following Well-being Goals within the Well- being of 

Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015: 
 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive communities 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language 

 A globally responsible Wales 
 
 
8. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no specific equalities implications that directly affect the council arising from the 

report. 
 
 
9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 None. The council chamber is already equipped with an audio/visual system that allows 

members to vote electronically.  The costs in maintaining the electronic voting system are met 
from existing budgets.   

 
 
10. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are none. 
 
 
11. CONSULTATIONS 
 
11.1 This report has been sent to the Consultees listed below and all comments received are 

reflected in this report. 
 

Page 44



12. STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 The Local Government Act 2000. 
 
 
Author: Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer 
 trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Consultees: Cllr D Poole, Council Leader 
 Cllr B Jones, Cabinet Member for Finance, Performance & Governance 
 Cllr C Mann, Leader, Plaid Cymru Group 
 Cllr K Etheridge, Leader, Independent Group 
 Christina Harrhy, Interim Chief Executive 
 Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director – Education & Corporate Services 
 Lisa Lane, Deputy Monitoring Officer 
 

Page 45



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 46



 

 
 

 
COUNCIL – 16TH APRIL 2019 

 
SUBJECT: YSTRAD MYNACH MASTERPLAN 
 
REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To advise members on the main issues identified by respondents during the public 

consultation exercise carried out between 28th January and 8th March 2019 on the Draft 
Ystrad Mynach Masterplan.  

 
1.2 To approve the amended Ystrad Mynach Masterplan, as Supplementary Planning Guidance 

to the Adopted Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan Up To 2021 and as a tool 
for guiding regeneration activity in the wider Ystrad Mynach area. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 On 16th January 2019 Cabinet approved publication of the Ystrad Mynach Masterplan 

(Consultation Draft) for the purposes of a formal public consultation process.  The consultation 
period began on 28th January and ended on 8th March 2019.  

 
2.2 In total 54 responses were received during the consultation period.  A Report of Consultation 

has been prepared that addresses the responses to the Draft Ystrad Mynach Masterplan.  
The Report considers the issues that have been raised, provides officer responses to those 
issues and makes recommendations on the proposed course of action.  The Report of 
Consultation is included as Appendix 1 to this report.  

 
2.3 The principle issues raised in the responses are: 
 

• Expansion of the Centre for Sporting Excellence; 
• Completion of cycle track at Cwm Calon; 
• Redevelopment of the former Penallta Colliery Buildings; and  
• Ystrad Mynach Park and Ride. 

 
2.4 Comments have also been made on the Vision, Strategic Objectives, the Development 

Strategy and the site specific proposals.  These have been addressed in the Report of 
Consultation.  As a result of the responses and the issues raised a number of changes are 
proposed to be made to the Draft Masterplan and are indicated as track changes in the 
amended Masterplan document.   

 
2.5 Minor typographical and updating changes are also included in the amended document that is 

appended to the report as Appendix 2. 
 
2.6 Due to the size of the documents, copies of all appendices have been placed in the Members’ 

Group Rooms and Members’ Library for their information and the electronic version of these 
documents can be viewed via the following link:- 
http://www.democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=127&MId=11422 

Page 47

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 11

http://www.democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=127&MId=11422


3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That the Council considers the representations received as part of the public consultation 

exercise and endorses the officer recommendations set out in the Report of Consultation. 
 
3.2 That the Council formally adopts the Ystrad Mynach Masterplan as Supplementary Planning 

Guidance to the Adopted Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan up to 2021, and 
as a tool for guiding regeneration activity in the wider Ystrad Mynach area.  

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To provide a policy basis for the future development and regeneration of Ystrad Mynach and 

the wider area. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
 Background 
 
5.1 The Cardiff Capital Region City Deal represents an unprecedented investment in the 

regeneration and growth of South East Wales.  The City Deal Agreement sets out a series of 
priorities and recommendations for the future growth and investment within the Cardiff Capital 
Region of which Caerphilly County Borough is part. 

 
5.2 ‘A Foundation for Success’, the over-arching regeneration strategy for the county borough, 

was approved in July 2018 and it provides the strategic framework for regeneration activity 
across the county borough over the next five years.  The Ystrad Mynach Masterplan is the 
second in the series of supplementary Masterplans to support ‘A Foundation for Success’ and 
provides more detailed proposals for the regeneration of the Ystrad Mynach area, which is 
part of the Valleys Task Force (VTF) Strategic Hub.  The suite of masterplans is intended to 
provide more detailed and specific area-based proposals for the regeneration and 
revitalisation of their respective areas. 

 
5.3 The Valleys Task Force Initiative identifies Caerphilly / Ystrad Mynach as one of seven 

Strategic Hubs in the South Wales Valleys that will act as a focus for public investment and 
provide opportunities for the private sector to invest and create new jobs through existing 
business growth and the promotion of new business start ups.   

 
5.4 On the 2 October 2018, the Cabinet Secretary for Finance presented his draft Budget to the 

National Assembly, and announced £25m to create seven strategic hubs across the South 
Wales Valleys, Caerphilly / Ystrad Mynach being one of those hubs. 

 
 Public Consultation Exercise 
 
5.6 A public consultation was held in respect of the Draft Ystrad Mynach Masterplan between 

Monday 28th January and Friday 8th March 2019.  
 
5.7 Consultation emails were sent to a range of stakeholders, including organisations delivering 

services within Ystrad Mynach and the wider area, equalities organisations, AMs, MPs, all 
CCBC members, all town and community councils and neighbouring authorities. 

 
5.8 Posters advertising the consultation were displayed in libraries across the County Borough 

and in post offices within the Masterplan area.  The consultation was also advertised through 
the Council’s website and social media channels including a video slideshow and media 
releases.  

 

Page 48



5.9 Letters were sent to all retailers in Ystrad Mynach town centre advising them that the 
consultation was taking place and how they could get involved. Officers also visited a number 
of businesses to advise them of the key proposals within the document and to explain how 
they may be affected. 

 
5.10 Consultation documents were placed in all libraries in the County Borough An exhibition was 

available to view in Ystrad Mynach Library throughout the consultation period. Three staffed 
consultation events were held in Ystrad Mynach library on Wednesday 13th February (am), 
Saturday 16th February (am) and Tuesday 19th February (pm) to allow members of the public 
to discuss the draft proposals with officers.  

 
5.11 Further consultation with the business community was undertaken at the business breakfast 

event organised by the Council on 12 February 2019. The event was hosted by Transcend 
Packaging on Dyffryn Business Park and 54 businesses attended. A manned exhibition was 
set up for the event and the views of the business community were sought throughout the 
event. 

 
 Draft Ystrad Mynach Masterplan - Key Issues Raised 
 
5.12 In total 54 responses were received during the consultation period.  A Report of Consultation 

has been prepared that addresses the responses to the Draft Ystrad Mynach Masterplan.  
The Report considers the issues that have been raised, provides officer responses to those 
issues and makes recommendations on the proposed course of action.  The Report of 
Consultation is included as Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
5.13 Respondents were asked to comment on the Vision, Strategic Objectives, Development 

Strategy and site specific proposals, and the responses have been grouped in the Report of 
Consultation to reflect this. 

 
5.14 A range of issues have been raised through the responses and these are addressed in the 

Report of Consultation.  The main issues raised in the responses are:  
 

• Expansion of the Centre for Sporting Excellence;  
• Completion of cycle track at Cwm Calon; 
• Redevelopment of the former Penallta Colliery Buildings; and   
• Ystrad Mynach Park and Ride.  

 
5.15 There were a number of representations received from Cwm Calon residents in addition to a 

representation from the Cwm Calon Community Association.  The issues that were raised in 
these representations are primarily centred around: completion of the cycle path to link Cwm 
Calon more effectively with Ystrad Mynach; the provision of facilities such as a shop and 
public house; and concern over the condition of the former Penallta Colliery buildings. 

 
5.16 Whilst there were objections to the Centre for Sporting Excellence and the expansion of 

Ystrad Mynach Park and Ride these also received representations of support the proposals.  
 
 Conclusion  
 
5.17 The Report of Consultation sets out each of the issues with an Officer Response and a 

recommendation for any amendments or action. The Report of Consultation sets out a 
number of proposed amendments to the Draft Masterplan.  There are also a small number of 
changes arising from typographical errors and factual updating that are also proposed. All of 
the proposed amendments have been included as track changes in the amended Ystrad 
Mynach Masterplan which is appended to this report as Appendix 2.   

 
 

Page 49



6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 No assumptions have been made in respect of this Report and all representations have been 

considered through the appended Report of Consultation. 
 
 
7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 The following Council plans and policies are relevant to the Ystrad Mynach Masterplan:  
 
 A Foundation for Success 2018-2023  
 
7.2 A Foundation for Success 2018-2023 is the over-arching Regeneration Strategy which seeks 

to provide the strategic framework for the future regeneration of the County Borough.  This 
Strategy will be supported by a suite of action plans and strategies aimed at capturing 
regeneration opportunities and developing key sites and premises.   

 
7.3 The Ystrad Mynach Masterplan is the second of the suite of Masterplans. 
 
 Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan up to 2021 
 
7.4 The Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan (LDP) was adopted on 23 November 

2010.  The LDP sets out the Council's land use policies and proposals to control development in 
the county borough up to 2021, and provides the basis by which planning applications will be 
determined consistently and appropriately. 

 
7.5 If approved, the Ystrad Mynach Masterplan will form Supplementary Planning Guidance to the 

adopted LDP. 
 
 Corporate Plan 2018-2023 
 
7.6 Appendix 3 of the amended Ystrad Mynach Masterplan provides an initial assessment of the 

projects identified within the Masterplan against the National Well-being Goals and the 
Council’s Corporate Well-being Objectives, as set out within the Corporate Plan 2018 – 2023. 

 
 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 The aim of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act is to improve the social, 

economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by changing the way local 
authorities and public bodies think, act and make decisions with the overall objective being to 
create a Wales where we want to live both now and in the future.  The Act also sets a duty on 
public bodies to ensure that everything that they do is in accordance with the sustainable 
development principle (the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of 
future generations to meet their own needs).  

 
8.2 Appendix 2 of the amended Ystrad Mynach Masterplan clarifies how the Masterplan relates to 

and reflects the Well-Being Act.  In addition, Appendix 3 of the amended Ystrad Mynach 
Masterplan sets out an assessment of the contribution each site-specific project would make 
to both the National Well-being Goals and the six Corporate Well-being Objectives. 

 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  An Equalities Impact Assessments (EIA) has been prepared to consider the potential 

equalities impact of proposals within the Ystrad Mynach Masterplan.  The EIA is included as 
Appendix 3 to this report.  The EIA highlights that many of the proposals and projects included 
are at an initial stage and therefore there is insufficient detail to fully assess the impact of 
particular actions.  The EIA will be kept under review to ensure the equalities impact is 
assessed as project proposals are prioritised and as delivery plans are prepared. 

Page 50



 
9.2 Consultation with the public on this document has been undertaken in line with the Corporate 

Consultation and Monitoring Guidance, ensuring that all minority groups in the community 
have had the opportunity to take part in the consultation exercise. 

 
9.3 Two representations in respect of equalities impact were raised through the consultation.  

These representations are addressed directly in the Report of Consultation and the equalities 
impact is considered in the EIA.  

 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The Ystrad Mynach Masterplan provides an indication of regeneration schemes that could be 

pursued in partnership with others within Ystrad Mynach and the wider area.  Any financial 
implications for the Council arising from future actions/schemes contained in this document 
will be subject of consideration through the governance procedure overseen by the 
Regeneration Project Board and the Cabinet.  

 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no direct personnel issues arising from the Ystrad Mynach Masterplan.  
 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 All responses from consultations have been incorporated into the report. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Local Government Act 2000. 
 
 
Author: Lisa James, Senior Planner, Strategic & Development Plans 
Consultees: Cllr David Poole, Leader 
 Cllr. Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Environment & Public Protection Cllr Sean 

Morgan, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy, Infrastructure, 
Sustainability & Wellbeing of Future Generations Champion 

 Mark S Williams, Interim Corporate Director of Communities 
 Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services 
 Nicole Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance 
 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services / Monitoring Officer 
 Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning and Strategy 
 Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure   
 Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning  
 Mark Williams, Interim Head of Property 
 Robert Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection, Community and Leisure Services 
 Shaun Couzens, Chief Housing Officer  
 Tim Stephens, Planning Services Manager 
 Allan Dallimore, Regeneration Service Manager 
 Clive Campbell, Transportation Engineering Manager 
 Jared Lougher, Sport and Leisure Development Manager 
 
 

Page 51



Appendices: 
Due to the size of the documents, copies of all appendices have been placed in the Members’ Group 
Rooms and Members’ Library for their information and the electronic version of these documents can 
be viewed via the following link:-   
http://www.democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=127&MId=11422 
 
Appendix 1 Report of Consultation 
Appendix 2 Amended Ystrad Mynach Masterplan 
Appendix 3 Equalities Impact Assessment 
 

Page 52

http://www.democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=127&MId=11422


Appendix 1 

1 
 

Draft Ystrad Mynach Masterplan 

Report of Public Consultation (March 2019) 

Introduction 

This report has been prepared following public consultation on the Draft Ystrad Mynach 
Masterplan held in early 2019. It summarises the key issues that were raised as part of the 
consultation, together with the officer's response to the issues raised and any proposed 
changes to the Draft Masterplan.  

Public Consultation 

The Draft Masterplan was published for consultation on Monday 28 January 2019. 
Comments were invited on the Draft Masterplan, which were required to be submitted to the 
Council by no later than Friday 8 March 2019, the closing date for the consultation. 
 
Consultation emails were sent to a range of stakeholders, including, organisations delivering 
services in Ystrad Mynach and the wider area, equalities organisations, AMs, MPs, all 
Caerphilly County Borough Council elected members, all town and community councils and 
neighbouring authorities.  
 
Posters advertising the consultation were displayed in a number of locations within the 
Masterplan area, and the consultation was also advertised on the Council’s website and 
social media channels including a video slideshow and media releases.  
 
A consultation letter was sent to all retailers in Ystrad Mynach town centre advising them 
that the consultation was taking place and how they could get involved. Officers visited a 
number of businesses within the town centre to advise them of the key proposals within the 
document and how the Draft Masterplan may affect them. 
 
The consultation material was placed in all libraries in the County Borough, and an exhibition 
was available to view in Ystrad Mynach Library for the duration of the consultation period. 
Three staffed consultation events were held in Ystrad Mynach Library on Wednesday 16th 
February (am), Saturday 19th February (am) and Tuesday 19th February (pm) to allow 
members of the public to discuss the Draft Masterplan with officers.  
 
Further consultation with the business community was undertaken at the business breakfast 
event organised by the Council on 12 February 2019. The event was hosted by Transcend 
Packaging on Dyffryn Business Park and 54 businesses attended. A manned exhibition was 
set up for the event and the views of the business community were sought throughout the 
event. 

A total of 54 responses were received on the Draft Masterplan. 6 were submitted using a 
paper representation form, 10 responses were sent via email and 2 letters were received. 
The remaining 36 responses were submitted using an online representation form.  
 
Respondents were asked to provide a postcode in order to determine the broad 
geographical area that respondents lived in. The analysis of the postcode information 
indicated that of those who provided this information, 35 respondents lived within the Draft 
Masterplan area. 
 
Respondents were asked for their views on the Vision, Strategic Objectives and 
Development Strategy of the Masterplan. Respondents were also able to comment on site 
specific proposals and identify any additional proposals that they considered should be 
included within the Draft Masterplan.  

Page 53



Appendix 1 

2 
 

The report sets out the responses in relation to the questions asked on the Vision, Strategic 
Objectives and Development Strategy. Representations made in respect of site specific 
proposals are included under the relevant Strategic Objective. Only those projects that have 
been the subject of representations (either of support, comment or objection) have been 
included within the report.  

Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
In line with the Council’s Equalities Monitoring procedures, respondents were asked whether 
any of their answers to questions in the survey were impacted by any of the following (age, 
disability, ethnic origin, gender, gender reassignment, marital status, religious belief or non-
belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or other languages, nationality or responsibility for any 
dependents). 
 
One respondent stated that elderly and middle aged people should be encouraged to cycle 
regularly on protected tracks. This will reduce the Valleys curse of obesity, diabetes, and 
early death. Youngsters can develop an early cycling habit, which can be maintained 
throughout life. https://www.sustrans.org.uk/news/more-cycling-could-prevent-34000-life-
threatening-illnesses-seven-major-uk-cities-2040 with huge economic benefits.  The Draft 
Masterplan encourages active, healthy lifestyles by identifying Active Travel and cycling 
projects.   
 
Another respondent confirmed that she was happy to provide her personal details.  The 
respondent also stated her religious belief.  The respondent did not refer to any particular 
questions or proposals. 
 

Page 54



Appendix 1 

3 
 

Q2 Is the Vision for Ystrad Mynach and the wider area fit for purpose? 
 

The Draft Masterplan sets out the following Vision for Ystrad Mynach and the wider area: 

“To develop and enhance Ystrad Mynach as a significant business, service and employment area and as a Strategic Economic Hub within the 
Cardiff Capital Region.   
It will be a thriving business, retail, leisure and tourism destination with exemplary sporting facilities, an exceptional learning area and incredible 
green spaces. 
 
It will be an exciting, vibrant place where businesses will want to locate, develop and grow and where people will desire to live, work and visit. 
 
Its communities will be attractive and sustainable with excellent links to the Metro and the residents will feel safe, aspire to succeed and live 
active and healthy lives.” 
 
Respondents completing the paper and online survey were asked whether they considered that this Vision was fit for purpose. 74% (31) of 
representors that responded to this question indicated that they considered that the Vision was fit for purpose.  

The following representations were made about the specific wording of the Vision: 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Support for the Vision. The representations of support are 
noted.   

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

Against this changing context we are supportive of the vision and 
objectives of the master plan, in particular that it should become a 
“Strategic Economic Hub within the Capital Region”, given the 
transformation in recent years there is a strong foundation for 
achieving the vision proposed by the document and through the next 
iteration of the LDP. The objectives set out also provide a strong 
framework for implementing and achieving the vision. We believe that 
these strongly reflect the Well Being Goals and placemaking 
objectives of the Welsh Government. 

The representation of support is 
noted. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

P
age 55



Appendix 1 

4 
 

The vision is slightly ambitious and unrealistic. It is considered that the vision is 
ambitious and aspirational but not 
unrealistic. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

The Vision is trying to make the area into something that will create 
impossible road network conditions.   

The Vision promotes attractive and 
sustainable communities with 
excellent links to the Metro. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

For the vision is to be compliant with PPW10 and the Welsh 
Government aspirations for greater sustainable development and 
placemaking then the need for new housing to support the economic 
growth aspirations need to be accepted and clearly stated. 

The Draft Masterplan supports ‘A 
Foundation for Success’ which is the 
regeneration strategy for the county 
borough.  The Draft Masterplan 
identifies opportunities for the 
regeneration and growth of the study 
area.  
 
However the Draft Masterplan is not 
the vehicle for allocating sites for 
housing.  This is more appropriately 
considered through the Local 
Development Plan (LDP). 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

The Vision and Strategic Objectives are positively drafted in 
accordance with guidance outlined within Planning Policy Wales 
(Edition 10, December 2018). However, in order to ensure that the 
Vision is realised, it is imperative that the policies and guidance within 
the Masterplan is equally positive. 

The representation is noted.  It is 
considered that the Masterplan in its 
entirety is a positive document. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

The proposals will continue on the recent policy to build on any green 
or empty space that exists in Ystrad Mynach, it will increase traffic and 
create additional bottlenecks, which are already problematic at certain 
times of the day and will have a significant impact on those who live 
within the area.  

The county borough has an increasing 
population that will require additional 
housing in the future.  In addition to 
this the Cardiff Capital Region City 
Deal seeks significant growth in 
economic activity that will also need to 
be catered for. 
 
It should be noted that The Draft 
Masterplan identifies opportunities for 

 No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

P
age 56



Appendix 1 

5 
 

regeneration of the Draft Masterplan 
Area. 
 
The Draft Masterplan is not the 
vehicle for allocating sites for housing.  
This is more appropriately considered 
through the LDP. 
 
The Draft Masterplan also includes 
proposals for the improvement of 
public transport, park and ride and 
Active Travel, all of which will assist in 
reducing traffic on the roads. 

 Need to concentrate on services and roads & parking The Draft Masterplan supports ‘A 
Foundation for Success’ which is the 
regeneration strategy for the county 
borough.  The Draft Masterplan 
identifies opportunities for the 
regeneration and growth of the study 
area.  
 
Key infrastructure providers including 
Council departments are routinely 
consulted on planning applications 
and their comments are given due 
consideration when determining 
planning applications.   

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

There is very little emphasis on residents – it feels the focus is on 
business/employment/links with Cardiff.   
 
Too much emphasis on Tourism. 

Central to the vision is the ability to 
enhance the role of the area as a 
strategic economic hub that supports 
local communities, providing 
employment, retail, leisure and 
recreation facilities which will benefit 
all residents as well as encourage 
greater Tourism opportunities. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

P
age 57



Appendix 1 

6 
 

The vision does not propose any timelines for the delivery of the 
enhancements  
 

The representation is noted.  
However, one of the key motivations 
behind the preparation of the Draft 
Masterplan is to identify projects that 
could benefit from funding in the short, 
medium and long term.  Many of the 
projects will require funding to be 
brought forward and will be dependant 
upon when funding becomes 
available. Therefore, at this stage, 
there are no specific timelines for 
delivery. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

The vision makes no allowances to accommodate the needs of a 
significantly ageing population. 
 

The Draft Masterplan supports ‘A 
Foundation for Success’ which is the 
regeneration strategy for the county 
borough.  This strategy includes a 
wide range of initiatives to support 
people of all ages.  
 
The Draft Masterplan is not the 
vehicle for allocating sites for housing 
for an ageing population this is more 
appropriately considered through the 
Local Development Plan. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

 
Other representations relating to the vision were submitted, but these also referenced specific projects. These representations are considered 
under the sections relating to the specific project. 
 

P
age 58



Appendix 1 

7 
 

 

Q3 Do you agree or disagree with the Strategic Objectives? 

80% (33) of representors that responded to this question agreed with the Strategic Objectives.  

The following representations were made about the Strategic Objectives: 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
The strategic objectives are unnecessary. The strategic objectives are considered 

necessary to support the vision for the Draft 
Masterplan Area.  They will drive delivery and 
translate directly into specific projects and 
proposals. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

D) Create an exemplary sport, leisure and educational 
cluster.   
Currently the facilities are not open to the public unless you 
are an elite sport person.  It would be useful to consider the 
statement to include how the public and community benefits 
from this strategic objective.  This includes considering the 
use of school sports facilities how they may benefit, ensuring 
how the extension from school sports will continue into 
community sport (irrespective of 'excellence').  
 
I also like to see how the new sporting facilities may realise 
opportunities leading the next generation that live in the area 
e.g. a habit of lifelong participation.   
 
In essence, I would like the strategic objective to consider the 
local community and how they would benefit if there was a 
wider range of sporting facilities that benefit us all and not 
just the few - This would mean disability groups, schools, old 
persons and working people from a healthy 24/ facilities use 
point of view.  It can be combined as a sporting event venue 
with a local gym facility.  Both work hand in hand, and the 

The Centre for Sporting excellence is open to 
the public and is available to the community.  
 
Expansion of facilities would increase its 
positive impact on Ystrad Mynach, provide 
significant tourism benefits and create spin offs 
which would benefit the foundational economy. 
 
As there is a multiplicity of uses within the 
area, the Draft Masterplan suggests that the 
site should be the subject of a separate 
masterplan or design brief that will consider all 
proposals and potential future uses for the 
land, including expansion of Trinity Fields 
School and Resource Centre and partnership 
working with Coleg y Cymoedd.  This design 
brief will be subject to its own public 
consultation. 
 
It should also be noted that this is not the only 
recreational facility in the masterplan area that 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

P
age 59



Appendix 1 

8 
 

economy would simple flourish more.    
 

the community can use.  The Sue Noake 
Leisure Centre is located within Ystrad Mynach 
and there a number of football and rugby 
pitches as well as playgrounds, skate parks, 
youth shelters and MUGAs.  

F) Maximise enjoyment of the many green assets within and 
surrounding the Masterplan Area.  
Encourage the use of green spaces, including the Country 
Parks, to enhance quality of life and promote well-being. 
Enhance the objective by committing to improving 
considerably the air quality in Ystrad Mynach and the 
surrounding area.  Some of the schools in the area are 
already landlocked and air quality is extremely poor in those 
areas.  Probably below the EU standard.  The ambition 
should be to reduce emissions, in and around, Ystrad 
Mynach.  Strategically if this is endorsed this could flow 
through to Ystrad Mynach 'Clean Air Zone' as an 'Ystrad' 
brand. Ultimately a Metro hub without this statement would 
be disappointing given the diesel output around the town is 
high in my opinion  

Recent air quality monitoring indicated that air 
quality levels within Ystrad Mynach are 
acceptable and do not give rise for concern. 
 
Notwithstanding this, the Draft Masterplan 
promotes Active Travel and public transport 
initiatives to encourage more sustainable 
means of travel. 
 
The Council has also adopted its Electric 
Vehicle Strategy and the Draft Masterplan 
supports the development of charging points 
for electric vehicles within the Masterplan area.   
 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

1). Community Strategy. 
one of the main objectives should be  'Community Strategy'  
The development of communities is lacking.  Housing 
development has failed to create this - just houses.  Although 
a challenge the 'community strategy or objective' should aim 
to deliver the benefits of growth and regeneration to local 
people to ensure no community in the masterplan is left 
behind.    
 
A great place to work, live and learn is a good strategic 
objective (which is already mentioned in the document), but 
other important components are left out, such as a place of 
opportunity for everyone, tackling poverty and deprivation 
etc.  This is something Ystrad needs.  If the hub takes off, the 
long term strategic benefit should be about the individuals 

Objective K attempts to address many of the 
issues raised. However, the Objective wording 
should be amended to encourage residents to 
feel part of the exciting opportunity that the 
regeneration and growth of the area presents.  
 
In addition, Welsh Government has recently 
produced Planning Policy Wales, Edition 10 
which requires a placemaking approach to plan 
making, planning policy and decision making.   
 
Development proposals should create 
sustainable places and create the conditions to 
bring people together, making them want to 
live, work and play in areas with a sense of 

Amend Objective K to 
read:- 
 
Ensure all 
communities within 
the Masterplan area 
are able to engage in 
and benefit from a 
bigger and better 
Ystrad Mynach. 

P
age 60



Appendix 1 

9 
 

feeling part of a 'bigger' Ystrad/A bigger village - empower 
the community to connect in someway. If the strategic 
objectives only focus on business economics it will lose sight 
on the community.     
 

place and well-being. 
 
This approach will be reflected in any new or 
revised Local Development Plan. 

2) Clean Air and Clean Living  
Given the Well Being Act, a strategic objective in respect of 
Clean Air, Clean Living should be included.   
 
If Ystrad is to be on the map of places to visit it has to be 
different.  A 'Clean Living' objective would mean a place 
where you can purchase fresh produce 'markets', a town that 
is an 'ethical' centre such as 'fairtrade', and no drive- through 
Macdonalds or major fast food outlets that consume plastics.   

The representation is noted, however the 
changes requested cannot be delivered 
through the planning system and, as a result, 
they are beyond the scope of the Masterplan 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

2.4E - extremely vague & overlaps with 2.4F  It is acknowledged that our green spaces and 
Country Parks are integral to the county 
borough’s tourism offer.  However, it is 
considered that maximising enjoyment of the 
many green assets within the Masterplan area 
warrants its own separate strategic objective.  

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

None of the objectives are 'SMART', i.e. Specific, 
Measurable, Achievable, Realistic & Time-bound. 

A masterplan by its very nature needs to be 
aspirational if it is to deliver the anticipated 
growth and regeneration for the area. 
 
One of the key motivations behind the 
preparation of the Draft Masterplan is to 
identify projects that could benefit from funding 
in the short, medium and long term.  City Deal 
is a 20 year programme so it is entirely 
reasonable that the majority of projects do not 
have certain timeframes or funding streams 
assigned to them at this time. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

 

P
age 61



Appendix 1 

10 
 

 

Q4 Do you agree with the Development Strategy? 

77% (27) of representors that responded to this question agreed with the Development Strategy.  

The following representations were made about the Development Strategy: 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
We note that the Development Strategy reflects the current LDP and if it is to be 
adopted as Supplementary Planning Guidance then it cannot introduce new policy. 
We are supportive of the approach taken and are strongly of the view that it is 
appropriate to intensify existing employment uses and provide facilities such as 
improved transportation links including provision for park and ride in close proximity to 
existing train stations. 
Post 2021 the Master Plan is likely to need to be updated to reflect the longer term 
requirements and in order to achieve the vision and objectives over the duration of an 
extended LDP period it will need to identify additional opportunities and infrastructure 
requirements. Notwithstanding that, it will need to be reviewed shortly, we believe that 
it forms a useful starting point in order to inform and shape the LDP Review and how 
the Council’s future requirements are met. 

The representation of 
support is noted. 

No amendment to 
the document 
should be made 

 
Transport 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
The parking strategy should not include proposals for charging at park & 
ride facilities. This is counter intuitive as it will discourage travel by public 
transport and increase on street parking in residential streets, which is 
already a major issue for streets close to Ystrad Mynach train station.   

This would need to be part of a 
balanced approach that would be 
consistent in the Metro area and that 
would not deter parking.  However 
charges for non rail users should be 
explored. 

No amendment to 
the document 
should be made 

 
Retailing 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
The town centre is a ‘major The Draft Masterplan claims that retailing is a major source of employment in No amendment to the 

P
age 62



Appendix 1 

11 
 

source of employment’ addition to the very many employment uses in the town. 
 
It is maintained that retail is a major source of employment and retail along with 
other town centre that makes a significant contribution on the foundational 
economy that contributes substantially to gross value added (GVA) of the 
county borough. 

document should be 
made.  

 
Residential 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
There has been extensive house building in the Ystrad Mynach 
area over the past decade or so.  How many more houses can be 
realistically accommodated with the knock on effects for local 
schools, doctors, dentists etc. 

The Masterplan does not allocate sites 
for housing or other uses. The 
appropriate vehicle for allocating sites 
for specific uses is the Local 
Development Plan. The Adopted LDP 
contains policies and allocations for 
housing up to 2021. 
 
Key infrastructure providers including 
Council departments are routinely 
consulted on planning applications and 
their comments are given due 
consideration when determining 
planning applications.   

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made 

 
Natural Environment 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
....enhance biodiversity and promote the resilience of ecosystems  
 
This strategy feels like a 'standard' answer to the environment.  I 
think we need to be more ambitious.  We should be suggesting that 
with every house, building or X developed we will plant more trees 
and connect the villages with trees.  What about the First Minister’s 
of Wales ambition to have a National Forest....we should aspire for 

The representation is noted. 
 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

P
age 63



Appendix 1 

12 
 

more trees in the local area to help improve the additionally 
increase of population/polluters. 
 
Renewable Energy 
 

Issues Raised Officer 
Response 

Recommendation 

This is supported by Bryn Group whose continued 
investment at their Anaerobic Digestion (AD) plant assists 
in making a meaningful contribution to the Welsh 
Government’s target to generate 70% of its electricity from 
renewable sources by 2030 and achieve an 80% 
reduction in CO2 levels by 2050 (against 1990 levels). 
The AD facility plays a key role in receiving green and 
food waste collected from local residents in Caerphilly 
CBC and currently produces 1MW every hour of 
renewable electricity, which is utilised on site and sent to 
the National Grid which supplies electricity to South 
Wales. This is equivalent to powering 2,500 homes 24/7 
for a whole year. 
 
The facility is also linked to research projects with South 
Wales University which seek to maximise efficiencies in 
renewable energy generation, support energy security and 
maximise job opportunities in the sector. 
 
Whilst it is not the role of this Masterplan document to 
identify new site allocations (as set out in Para 7.2.2.2 of 
the Welsh Government’s LDP Manual), as a significant 
local employer and important operational facility and 
business to the wider Council area, we would welcome the 
identification of the operations at the Bryn Group within 
the Masterplan. 

The 
contribution 
that the 
facility makes 
to renewable 
energy and 
sustainability 
is 
recognised.    

 
Include new paragraph, 5.23, to include Bryn Group 
renewable energy activities:- 
 
Bryn Group Waste Management and Recycling facility is 
located within the Masterplan area. 
 
It’s Anaerobic Digestion (AD) plant assists in making a 
meaningful contribution to the Welsh Government’s target 
to generate 70% of its electricity from renewable sources 
by 2030 and achieve an 80% reduction in CO2 levels by 
2050 (against 1990 levels). The AD plant plays a key role 
in receiving green and food waste collected from local 
residents in Caerphilly CBC and currently produces 1MW 
every hour of renewable electricity, which is utilised on site 
and sent to the National Grid which supplies electricity to 
South Wales. This is equivalent to powering 2,500 homes 
24/7 for a whole year. 
 
The facility is also linked to research projects with South 
Wales University which seek to maximise efficiencies in 
renewable energy generation, support energy security and 
maximise job opportunities in the sector. 
 
Education and welfare facilities are being promoted at the 
site. 

 

P
age 64



Appendix 1 

13 
 

 

Q5 Do you have any comments to make on specific proposals? 
 
A. PROVIDE THE CONDITIONS TO STRENGTHEN BUSINESS GROWTH AND CAPITALISE ON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Whilst not identified as a specific project within the Masterplan, it should 
be noted that Bryn Group are a significant local employer. Currently, 111 
full-time employees are employed at the site with the majority residing 
within 5km. 
 

The representation of support is 
noted. 

No amendment to 
the document 
should be made.  

Redevelopment &/or re purposing of current business facilities must be 
clearly prioritised over any future new office/commercial developments 

The redevelopment of existing 
premises would be supported.  
However, to encourage new and 
existing businesses to invest in the 
area there is also a need for modern 
new build office accommodation. 

No amendment to 
the document 
should be made.  

Creation of jobs means providing suitably educated people to perform 
those jobs. Why is a Welsh medium Primary school proposed and not 
English medium? 

The Draft Masterplan does not 
propose a Welsh medium school. 

No amendment to 
the document 
should be made.  

 
A-1 Tredomen Business Park  
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

The landowner wishes to meet with the Council to 
discuss proposals further. 

A meeting will be arranged with the landowner and his 
agent. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made.  

Before any additional building of units is undertaken, 
has any analysis been undertaken to identify how many 
existing units are vacant?  
 

There are low vacancy rates within the Masterplan 
area, the latest records, in 2018, indicate 7%. 
 
Often, the reason for empty units is that they do not 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made.  

P
age 65



Appendix 1 

14 
 

‘units will create business and employment 
opportunities’ is an assumption. Where is the evidence 
to support this? Will the Council offer incentives to 
attract these new businesses? Will they offer reduced 
business rates? If so, how will this impact on the ability 
of the Council is deliver existing services without 
income? Will residents be asked to contribute more?   

meet the needs of modern day employers. The 
modernisation of such units would be supported. 
However, to encourage new businesses to invest in 
the Masterplan area, there is also a need for modern 
new build office accommodation. 

Understand the need to create employment 
opportunities but do not see the provision of yet more 
office accommodation as a priority. Existing vacant 
space has yet to be taken up after advertising for 
several months. 
I do not agree with this development especially as it 
would put extra pressure on the A472 and is too close 
to the Penallta Country Park. 

The site is well located off the strategic highway 
network with direct access onto the A472 strategic mid 
cross-valley route, with easy access to the A470 to 
Cardiff and Merthyr, the A469 to Caerphilly and 
eastwards towards Pontypool and Cwmbran. 
 
The Draft Masterplan contains projects that seek to 
improve public transport and enhance active travel 
that will assist in reducing overall traffic levels. 
 
The close proximity to Penallta Park is seen as a 
positive benefit for users of Tredomen Business Park. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made.  

 
A-2 Ty Du, Nelson 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

The HBF does not agree that this site 
should be described as 'a significant 
regional development opportunity' as the 
site is not large enough to be classified 
in this way. 

The scheme includes the creation of new, modern and innovative 
business units in a highly accessible location and forms part of the 
overall Welsh Government business portfolio.   
 
In addition to this an innovative housing development is proposed 
that will realise high quality housing within a quality landscape setting 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made.  

P
age 66



Appendix 1 

15 
 

that will meet the placemaking aspirations set out in Planning Policy 
Wales, Edition 10. 
 
Given this, the term 'a significant regional development opportunity' 
does not seem inappropriate. 
 

Promotion of land for possible expansion 
to the east of the proposal area for 
residential development.  
 
 

The Draft Masterplan has been prepared in accordance with the 
Adopted LDP. 
 
The Draft Masterplan does not allocate sites for specific uses and, as 
such, is not the vehicle to identify new sites. This is more 
appropriately done through a review of the existing plan or the 
preparation of a new LDP.  

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 
A-3 Coopers Court, Caerphilly Road 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Request from landowner of a number of properties within 
Coopers Court to remove the proposal from the document.  

The representation is noted.  The new units 
referred to have already been constructed. 
 
Therefore, the proposal will be removed from 
the document. 

Delete proposal A-3 
from the Amended 
Ystrad Mynach 
Masterplan. 

 
 

P
age 67



Appendix 1 

16 
 

B. CREATE THE CONDITIONS FOR THE AREA TO BECOME A THRIVING METRO HUB  
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Support for the objective. The representation of support is noted.   No amendment to the 

document should be 
made.  

Unsurprisingly no funding has been 
secured for a project that will cost 
millions. A pipe dream that will never 
see the light of day. 

The Metro is a priority in the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal, with over 
£730 million in funding available to deliver the Metro project across the 
region. It represents a significant opportunity to fundamentally improve 
regional transport infrastructure and the Council is fully committed to the 
programme. 
 
One of the key motivations behind the preparation of the Draft 
Masterplan is to identify projects that could benefit from funding in the 
short, medium and long term.  The Cardiff Capital Region City Deal is a 
20 year programme so it is entirely reasonable that projects do not have 
short term funding streams assigned to them at this time. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

 
B-1 Ystrad Mynach Station 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

There is a need to promote the proximity and direction from the town 
centre to the train station.    

It is accepted that there needs to be 
better linkages between the town 
centre and the railway station.  Part of 
this will require better signage and 
notification of the railway station within 
the town centre.  
 
It is, therefore, proposed to amend 
paragraph 6.20 of the Draft 
Masterplan accordingly. 

Amend paragraph 
6.20 to include ‘or to 
direct town centre 
visitors to the railway 
station’. 

The railway station should be more welcoming and the removal of the 
disused café could open up the area into an ‘accessible, inviting and 
welcoming space’. I would also agree with ‘more formalised routes’ 

The support for the station 
improvements is welcomed. 
 

Amend paragraph 
6.22 to include 
reference to the 

P
age 68



Appendix 1 

17 
 

from the station, but would add that additional lighting should be 
provided from the station to the park and could also benefit from 
CCTV.  
 

The potential for additional lighting 
and CCTV is accepted And it is 
proposed to amend paragraph 6.22 to 
reflect this. 

possibility of exploring 
the provision of 
suitable levels of 
additional lighting and 
the potential use of 
CCTV. 

Need to focus on how pedestrians, cyclists and bus users access the 
station. 

The Draft Masterplan acknowledges 
the need for improved pedestrian 
access at the station and also 
promotes measures to improve routes 
and facilities for cyclists.   

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

 
B-2 Ystrad Mynach Extended Park and Ride facility  
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Support for extension of Ystrad Mynach Park and Ride 
facility. 

The representation of support is noted. No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

Support for more parking spaces, away from residential 
streets. 

The representation of support is noted. No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

Support for ‘left in, left out’ traffic movements onto and off 
Nelson Road. 

The representation of support is noted and will 
be shared with the Council’s Infrastructure 
Division. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

Support for extended park and ride facility but this should 
be accessed from main station entrance. 

The support is noted however access to the 
suggested site would not be feasible from the 
main station entrance due to the presence of the 
railway line. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

The timing of such developments should be considered 
along with the availability of additional capacity on the trains 
as there is not currently the provision to entice additional 
people using train rather than cars to Cardiff with the trains 
at full capacity now. 
 

Transport for Wales are investing £738m to 
transform the valleys lines, including the 
Rhymney Line, to improve journey times on new 
rolling stock with greater capacities. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

P
age 69



Appendix 1 

18 
 

Objection to the extended Park and Ride accessed via 
Cedar Way, off Nelson Road:- 

• Nelson Road is already heavily congested 
• Encouraging more traffic would significantly impact 

on number of road movements 
• Access in and out of Cedar Way would be difficult  

 

The Extended Park and Ride at Ystrad Mynach 
is part of the Council’s strategic Park and Ride 
improvement programme. 
 
The traffic impact on the existing road junction 
will need to be assessed and modelled as part 
of any planning application. Any improvements 
to the existing road junction will need to be 
carefully considered with road safety, turning 
movements and the free flow of traffic along the 
A472 in mind. Any commuters choosing to 
switch to public transport (rail) would have the 
benefit of removing traffic from the strategic 
highway network. 
 
It is likely that proposed access would require 
repositioning of the school playing field.  
However, this would result in enhanced playing 
provision and ample green space remaining for 
the public.   

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

• The proposed access route is not indicated in the 
Draft Masterplan 
 

• Objection to loss/repositioning of school playing 
fields 

• Objection to loss of green spaces which are used by 
local residents 

 

• Impact on Air Quality, particularly around schools 
 

Recent air quality monitoring within the area 
indicated that air quality levels are acceptable 
and do not give rise for concern. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

• New Park and Ride proposed at Llanbradach 
negates the need for extra provision at Ystrad 
Mynach 

 

Park and Ride facilities at both Ystrad Mynach 
and Llanbradach are part of the Council’s wider 
strategic Park and Ride improvement 
programme that seeks to reduce car traffic 
throughout the county borough. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

Proposed alternative sites for park and ride facility at:- 
 

• Vacant building site at station approach  
• Land at Station Road (at junction with Hill Street)  

 

There is insufficient land at both of these sites to 
provide any meaningful level of car parking 
provision.   
 
The land at Station Road/Hill Street is 
considered too far from the station to provide a 
functional park and ride facility for the station. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

P
age 70



Appendix 1 

19 
 

 
B-3 Hengoed extended Park and Ride Facility 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Support for the extension of Hengoed Park and Ride facility. The representation of support is noted. No amendment to 

the document should 
be made. 

The timing of such developments should be considered 
along with the availability of additional capacity on the trains 
as there is not currently the provision to entice additional 
people using train rather than cars to Cardiff with the trains 
at full capacity now. 

Transport for Wales are investing £738m to 
transform the valleys lines, including the 
Rhymney Line, to improve journey times on new 
rolling stock with greater capacities. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 
B-4 Reinstatement of the Cwmbargoed Line for Passenger Services 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Support for the extension of the rail network to Nelson The representations of support are noted. No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

Support for new halts at Tredomen and Nelson.  The representations of support are noted. No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

Proposal will be welcomed especially by the residents of 
Nelson. It should lessen car use considerably, especially if 
linked to a park and ride car park 

The representation of support is noted. No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

The creation of ‘new halts at Nelson’ maybe difficult given 
the fact that the old station has been encompassed into a 
building development.    

There is a well situated site for a halt at 
Nelson, east of the Local Centre, adjacent 
to the freight line which could serve a new 
station and a park and ride facility. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

Why a new station at Tredomen?   A new halt at Tredomen would provide 
direct access to employment and business 
opportunities at Tredomen Business Park. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

P
age 71



Appendix 1 

20 
 

This requires other Las to work with us on this.  Do you 
have guarantees from them? 

We have an in principle support from Welsh 
Government, Transport for Wales and 
Merthyr CBC. The proposed reinstatement 
of this line is included as proposals in both 
the Caerphilly and Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Development Plans. It should be noted that 
this is likely to be a long term project. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

While you propose to reinstate the railway line to Dowlais 
Top you have no funding and therefore you are being 
dishonest with us residents and raising expectations. 

The Metro is a priority in the Cardiff Capital 
Region City Deal, with £1.25 billion funding 
available to deliver the Metro project across 
the region. It represents a significant 
opportunity to fundamentally improve 
regional transport infrastructure and the 
Council is fully committed to the 
programme. 
 
One of the key motivations behind the 
preparation of the Draft Masterplan is to 
identify projects that could benefit from 
funding in the short, medium and long term.  
The Cardiff Capital Region City Deal is a 20 
year programme so it is entirely reasonable 
that projects do not have certain funding 
streams assigned to them at this time. 
 
We have an in principle support from Welsh 
Government, Transport for Wales and 
Merthyr CBC. The proposed reinstatement 
of this line is included as proposals in both 
the Caerphilly and Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Development Plans. It should be noted that 
this is likely to be a long term project. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

I am familiar with the Cwmbargoed area so find your 
proposal ridiculous.  There is nothing there, apart from a 

The opportunity exists to extend the line to 
Dowlais Top providing a direct link from 
Ystrad Mynach to Merthyr Tydfil. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

P
age 72



Appendix 1 

21 
 

coal screening plant. 

Is there potential for a rail link between Newbridge and 
Ystrad Mynach. 

The cost would be prohibitive .The 
proposed cross valley bus service would 
fulfil the purpose of connecting the 
settlements, with improved interchange 
facilities, faster journey times and a 
frequency that promotes integration.  

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. Is there an opportunity to connect Ystrad Mynach with 

Abercynon to provide cross valley rail services 

At the end of this section you refer to a Halt at 
Maesycwmmer.  

The reference in Section 7 to a new Halt at 
Maesycwmmer is an error and it is 
proposed to delete it. 

Amend Section 7, Project 
B-4 to remove reference to 
a halt at Maesycwmmer. 

 
B-5 Regional Bus Network 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Full integration required between bus and rail services. 
Passengers should be able to buy a ticket and travel on 
any bus that operates, not have one service specifically 
reserved for train passengers. 

This is a clear priority for the Cardiff Capital 
Region Transport Authority, Welsh Government 
and Transport for Wales. Part of the proposals 
put forward by the successful rail franchise 
operator includes a more comprehensive 
ticketing regime, although the bus operators will 
need to be fully involved. 
 
Further information is available on the Transport 
for Wales website and the latest Welsh 
Government White Paper for ‘Improving public 
transport’. 
 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

Improve bus links to railway station in Ystrad Mynach Improving bus/rail interchange and considering 
improved east west public transport services is 
part of the Core Valley Lines transformation 
programme that Transport for Wales is 

Improve bus services 

P
age 73



Appendix 1 

22 
 

Bus Route required from Cwm Calon down to Train station 
/ Town centre How can the planning for these be 
influenced by the community association, who is 
responsible? 

committed to deliver by 2023. 

Bus service required within Cwm Calon – bus stops 
already exist 
Majority of buses used on the Ystrad Mynach, Nelson, 
Gelligaer route are in an extremely poor state.   
When travelling further afield, from Ystrad Mynach or 
Caerphilly the buses are generally of a much higher 
standard than the buses used to serve Ystrad Mynach, 
Nelson and Gelligaer.   

As a commercial service this is a matter for the 
operators. However, stagecoach recently 
received approval for the funding of 21 new 
electric buses, 16 of which will operate in the 
Caerphilly Basin.  This is the first, in what is 
hoped will be an ongoing programme of 
investment in public transport that will address 
the perceived deficiencies in bus transport. 

Bus lanes need to be included. 
 

Bus lanes are only feasible where there is clear 
evidence that congestion is affecting bus service 
reliability. Generally this is not a major issue 
across the county borough. 

 
B-6 Cycle Parking Facilities 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

‘Secure cycle parking’ and ‘at station bike hire’ will not ‘encourage 
active travel. Commuters to Cardiff will not cycle to the station, 
travel to work in Cardiff then cycle home at the end of the day. 
The ‘introduction of an on-street-at station bike hire facility to 
allow cyclists to leave bikes and use hire bikes to facilitate their 
movement by rail’ is not evidence based.  
 
When travelling from Ystrad Mynach to Gelligaer or Bargoed a 
cyclist has to travel on busy main roads. The terrain is not flat, 
therefore the climate or geography of the area is not conducive to 
such activity.  Furthermore the routes are too dangerous for 

The Council’s Active Travel Integrated 
Network Map, the 15 year plan for 
improving the network of pedestrian and 
cycling routes, was formally agreed by 
Welsh Government in February 2018.   
 
The Map identifies over 100 network 
improvements across the county 
borough. The plan is to be reviewed 
every three years and this will enable 
future improvements to be identified that 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made.  

P
age 74



Appendix 1 

23 
 

inexperienced cyclists. 
 

will link Metro locations and key sites 
within the Masterplan Area, including the 
town centre, continuing to increase 
accessibility throughout Ystrad Mynach 
and the wider area. 

Whilst the masterplan recognises the need for adequate cycle 
parking provision at both existing and new areas discussed within 
the detailed proposals, none of the proposals indicate that any 
thought has been given to integrating the proposed parking 
facilities into any existing or proposed cycle networks. 
 
 
B-7 Cycle Hire Scheme 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Support for the proposed cycle hire scheme The representations of support are 

noted. 
No amendment to the 
document should be made. 

 
Active Travel 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Each of the individual proposals reference the need to improve 
access and facilities for cycling and cyclists, although the maps in 
the master plan do not show all of the current cycle routes 
through the area. However, there is no detailed proposal on how 
the LDP and Active travel plan integrate into the other proposals. 
 
Specific proposals should be included on how the Active travel 
plan proposals will be embodied in each of the development 
plans to ensure that new developments are built to prioritise 
active travel over individual motor transport. 

The Council’s Active Travel Integrated 
Network Map, the 15 year plan for 
improving the network of pedestrian and 
cycling routes, was formally agreed by 
Welsh Government in February 2018. 
 
The Map identifies over 100 network 
improvements across the county borough. 
The plan is to be reviewed every three 
years and this will enable future 
improvements to be identified that will link 
Metro locations and key sites within the 
Masterplan Area, including the town centre, 
continuing to increase accessibility 
throughout Ystrad Mynach and the wider 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

Improve cycle/footpaths and accessibility between communities. 
Improved public transport links will help reduce traffic on the 
roads, however it would be nice if we could have more cycling 
friendly roads, either dedicated cycle lanes or combined cycle 

P
age 75



Appendix 1 

24 
 

and pedestrian pavements. area. 
 
Given the number of routes that are 
included in the Active Travel Integrated 
Network Map, inclusion of all of the routes 
would result in a highly cluttered plan that 
would be very difficult to understand. As a 
result it is not proposed to show all routes 
within the Masterplan but there is cross 
reference to the Active travel plan where 
appropriate. 
 
As part of delivering the Active Travel 
Integrated Network Map proposals, 
feasibility design for sections of this route 
between Ystrad Mynach and Bedwas has 
begun.   

Please fill in the gap between Bedwas and the Sustrans.org.uk 
cycle path north from Pengam lights. All the other valleys have a 
complete network. Pandy Rd Bedwas could easily be sign 
posted, with traffic calming measures to slow down vehicular 
traffic. All new developments, including schools, shops, housing 
estates, should have a separate cycle track to the N-S master 
track. This will encourage youngsters and others to cycle 
regularly, with huge health benefits.  A velodrome might lead to a 
Valleys version of Geraint Thomas! 
 
Improve links with Taff Trail and other regional and national cycle 
and footpaths 
 
 

 

P
age 76



Appendix 1 

25 
 

 

C. MODERNISE AND DEVELOP YSTRAD MYNACH INTO A THRIVING BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL CENTRE 
 
C-1 Ystrad Mynach Town Centre 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

The plans for Ystrad Mynach town centre refer to the promotion 
of “Pop-Up” Galleries in vacant Town Centre buildings. As the 
present Chair of the Bargoed and District Art Society I can 
confirm that this would be energetically supported by local Art 
Societies. I am sure the Caerphilly Art Society, and the other art 
groups in the area would wish to do the same.  Bargoed and 
District Art Society are presently supporting a Caerphilly Borough 
Council art initiative at the Elliot Winding House at New Tredegar, 
and would be very happy to do so in Town Centre buildings. 
 

The representation of support is 
noted. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 
 

Support for improvement of Siloh Square  
Keen to help with new ideas and events for the future. 

Support for this proposal is noted.   
 
The Council would like to work with 
the organisation bringing forward any 
appropriate events. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 
 

I would ask why is ‘there a need to build and enhance the town 
centre offer’.  The town serves the needs of its community, as 
long as the community supports its town.  

The Draft Masterplan aims to promote 
and exploit the town centre so that it 
may attract investment and benefit 
from the regeneration and growth 
proposed in the Draft Masterplan 
area.  
 
Retail lettings are subject to market 
forces and it is beyond the role of the 
Council to directly influence landlords.   
 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 
 The town centre is being decimated. The closure of the pet shop 

and Sheila’s off-licence is shame for the town. Concern regarding 
the future of the banks. 
 
 
What will be done to reverse the current immediate decline in 
retail opportunities in Ystrad Mynach village centre - a number of 
these have closed? 

P
age 77



Appendix 1 

26 
 

What concrete actions will be taken to prioritise the 
redevelopment and re-use of the now vacant retail units in Ystrad 
Mynach village centre? 

Decisions made in respect of bank 
closures are out of the Council’s 
control and are often corporate 
decisions made by people outside of 
Wales  
 
The town centre includes many 
independent retailers such as D 
Emlyn Lloyd, Andrew Berry, 
Bluebelles, CR Flowers, The Card 
Shop, Ashburnes and most recently 
The Wedding House. 
 
It should also be noted that 
hairdressers and other services 
enhance and contribute to the 
vibrancy of the town centre.  Such 
uses also make a significant 
contribution to the foundational 
economy. 
 
In respect of vacant properties the 
Draft Masterplan encourages pop-up 
units and pop up galleries to improve 
the vibrancy and vitality of the town 
centre whilst also increasing footfall. 
 
The evening and night time economy 
has significant growth potential and 
opportunities to expand it should be 
sought. By comparison Caerphilly 
town potentially generates £38m 
through its night-time economy.  
Consequently it is only appropriate 
that the Draft Masterplan seeks to 

No more hair shops please 
Evidence suggests that other developments have impacted on 
the community’s support of the town.  It does not boast a number 
of unique independent retailers. Ystrad Mynach consists of 
takeaways, hairdressers, convenience stores and charity shops. 
 
There are paragraphs on how to develop the pier head, develop 
cafe/restaurant, quality meat and veg outlet. Again we already 
have these in place, why not develop/ support existing business.  
 
You say there is limited scope for expansion of YM town centre.  
There are many empty properties, use them, renovate them, be 
imaginative. 
 
Why develop a ‘more continental atmosphere’? Ystrad is a valley 
community in a former industrialised area. It is not Cardiff bay 
with a lovely outlook. It is overlooked by former colliery slag 
heaps. I’ve never seen those in continental Europe. 
Disagree with comments about night time economy 
The idea of expanding the night time economy is laughable. 
 

P
age 78



Appendix 1 

27 
 

maximise the growth in this sector. 
 

Challenge the assumption that there is ‘a limited range of 
restaurants and family friendly eateries’ as the Beech Tree, The 
Royal Oak, The Coopers Arms and the Viceroy all have a very 
good reputation for food and welcome families.  
 

It is acknowledged that there are pubs 
that serve food and these are family 
friendly, within and around the town 
centre.  The Draft Masterplan should 
be amended to reflect this. 
 
However, there is still a need to 
expand the range of restaurants and 
eateries to support the proposed 
regeneration and growth of the Draft 
Masterplan area. 

Amend paragraph 6.41 to 
read …There are a 
number of family friendly 
pubs that serve food in 
and around the Town 
Centre.  There is however 
a need to expand the 
range of restaurants and 
eateries as these are 
fundamental to enhancing 
Ystrad Mynach’s role as a 
business and visitor 
destination. 

The proposal to put in place Budget hotels and 
pubs/cafe/restaurants goes beyond helping and supporting 
exiting business, breeding unhealthy competition, we are all here 
to survive, and make a living, the plans would seem that job 
increase would be for the construction side. Once project 
completed, the planned hotels and eateries, would detriment 
exiting business.  
 

Whilst Competition is not a matter for 
Planning the Draft Masterplan seeks 
to address known shortfalls, 
especially in terms of visitor 
accommodation, as well as seeking to 
cater for increased demand generated 
through the areas regeneration and 
growth. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 
 

The Draft Masterplan includes a proposal to exploit the Beech 
Tree Hotel by an expansion of facilities.  These are addressed as 
follows:- 
 
Quality Meals - We engage in local sourced produce, and 
support local business. Noels Butchers, Veg of Evans, home- 
made sausages direct from Aga farms, Machen.  
Entertainment - Here at the Beech Tree Hotel, we have a variety 
of entertainment, day/evening. We host artists both professional 
and some local every Friday and Saturday, weekly quiz nights 
and regular fundraisers, pool room – where “families” enjoy. 
Outdoor seating - We are still developing the business and are 

It is acknowledged that the Beech 
Tree Hotel has recently been 
completely renovated and already 
provides all of the facilities suggested 
in the Draft Masterplan.  Therefore the 
statement in the Masterplan will be 
amended accordingly. 
 
The Council would like to work with 
the landowner in bringing forward any 
appropriate improvements. 

Amend paragraph 6.44, 
point 3 to read:- 
 
There is a need to further 
exploit the Beech Tree 
Hotel, a substantial 
building situated in a 
highly prominent location 
within the Town Centre. 
 

P
age 79



Appendix 1 

28 
 

still in our infancy, however, there is adequate outdoor seating, 
with planter that form an enclosed area, that” Families” can sit 
and be ensured their children can’t wander into the carpark. (soon 
to be submitting plans to expand).  
Town centre Accommodation – Over the past year the building 
has been developing and expanding, with the 7 rooms on the 
middle floor into B&B accommodation, with the view to develop 
the top floor with a further 4 rooms. En-suites have been built into 
each of these rooms. 
The function room is planned. 
Potential development at side of library The Council would like to work with 

the landowner in bringing forward any 
appropriate scheme. 

No amendment to the 
document should be made 

Potential development of former Natwest Bank The building is now in private 
ownership.  The Council would like to 
work with the landowner in bringing 
forward any appropriate scheme. 

Amend paragraph 6.44, 
point 4 to read:- 
 
The former Natwest Bank 
building is another key 
building which is currently 
unoccupied.  Liaison with 
the landowner is required 
to encourage a new 
business into the town 
centre. 

Reduce business rates.  Business rates are set by Central 
Government and the Council have no 
powers to influence them. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

Consider that essential maintenance costs business. This is acknowledged. No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

 
C-2 Enhanced Parking Facilities 
 

P
age 80



Appendix 1 

29 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Why is it only ‘likely’ that Parking Enforcement will be introduced 
this year.  It must be introduced.   
 

Caerphilly County Borough Council is 
set to take over Civil Parking 
Enforcement Duties in April 2019. 

Amend paragraph 6.46 to 
reflect this. 

There should be no charges in car parks, Abergavenny with its 
free parking is a huge success. 

 
 
Caerphilly County Borough Council is 
set to take over Civil Parking 
Enforcement Duties in April 2019 and 
this will have an impact on car parking 
throughout the county borough. 
 
Car parking charges will be 
considered corporately as part of a 
fundamental review. 
 
 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 
 

Car parking is free in Nelson, Bargoed and other parts of 
Caerphilly. 
 
The car park at Oakfield Street is under utilised. 
More people would use the car park if it was free. 
 
Free car parking would free up on-street parking and within 
‘residents only’ areas. 
 
Vehicles park illegally on pavement and on yellow lines. 
 
What is the cost effectiveness at the moment of collection of 
parking receipts and the monitoring of vehicles not displaying 
parking tickets? 
 
C-4 Land north of Dyffryn Business Park 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

The identification and recognition of this sites potential for a hotel, 
public house and complementary restaurant or coffee shop with 
drive through facilities is welcomed. The suggestion that this 
opportunity has to await the Review of the LDP is not acceptable. 
The review of the LDP has stalled and in the interim, while a 
policy vacuum prevails documents such as this, once approved 
should be a material consideration, in determining an application. 

The representation of support is noted. 
However, the Draft Masterplan is not the 
vehicle to reconsider the Adopted LDP or its 
allocations as this is appropriately done 
through the preparation of a new LDP. 
 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

We oppose the development of this site due to it being a site of This area of land is not designated as either No amendment to 

P
age 81



Appendix 1 

30 
 

scientific 
interest and an invaluable habitat for wild life. 
 

a Site of Special Scientific Interest or a Site 
of Importance for Nature Conservation 
within the Adopted LDP.  

the document should 
be made. 

 
 
D. CREATE AN EXEMPLARY SPORT, LEISURE AND EDUCATION CLUSTER  
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Support for proposal The representations of support are noted.   No amendment to 

the document should 
be made. 

Inspirational for children to watch 
international matches – positive for 
children 

The representation of support is noted.   

Existing facility seems large enough for 
the events it holds 

The contents of the Representation are noted 

Opposition to expansion of facility:- The Centre for Sporting Excellence is open to the public and is 
available to the community.  
 
Expansion of facilities would increase its positive impact on Ystrad 
Mynach, provide significant tourism benefits and create spin offs 
which would benefit the foundational economy. 
 
The facility does support and develop local rugby and football in 
CCBC through the work undertaken with the governing bodies, the 
Welsh Rugby Union (WRU) and the Welsh Football Trust (WFT).  
 
The facility also has 2 meeting rooms which are available for local 
business or community groups to book. The facility has a strength and 
conditions suite which is available to book for community clubs, but is 
not a traditional fitness gym. Ystrad Mynach does have a local gym 
which is open to the public at the  Sue Noake Leisure Centre, less 
than one mile away from the Centre of Sporting Excellence  
 
Caerphilly County Borough Council’s pricing policy is one of the 
cheapest in South Wales. 

Provides little for local people 
Exclusive facility  
Only for elite sports 
Not accessible for local residents  
Small clubs cannot afford to use 
Small clubs cannot get access 
Parking is limited 
Facility is a drain on the Council’s 
resources 
Gym not available to the public – no 
other gym in the local area 

P
age 82



Appendix 1 

31 
 

 
The CSE has over 150 parking spaces available on site as well as 
over flow options at Ysbyty Ystrad Fawr hospital and Coleg Y 
Cymoedd for special events. 
 
The Centre for Sporting Excellence works with local businesses, and 
teams and supporters who use the facility. 
 

 
Playing fields should remain intact 

As there is a multiplicity of uses that could be accommodated on the 
site, the Draft Masterplan identifies that the site should be the subject 
of a design brief that will consider all proposals and potential future 
uses for the land, along with their associated impacts.  This design 
brief will be the subject of a public consultation exercise in its own 
right. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. What land is available for new facilities 

What happens to tennis courts and 
bowling green 
Where will indoor barn be 
Expansion of Trinity Fields 
New play facilities are required 
Can additional sports be 
accommodated:- 
Ice rink 
Swimming pool 
Athletics track 
 
Improvement of facilities to attract 
mountain bikers and trail runners 

Such facilities are already available within the County Borough at 
Cwmcarn Forest.  The Council will continue to explore opportunities 
for additional facilities, but to date none have been identified for the 
Masterplan area. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

The statement that the sporting village 
will be attracting many visitors who are 
looking to stay in the area is an 
assumption and not evidence based. 

There is already an existing demand for accommodation for teams 
visiting the area and it is a natural corollary that bigger events will 
attract a bigger audience.   
Furthermore the evidence provided by existing hoteliers demonstrates 
that the demand exists. 
 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

Communication and links with town 
centre need to be improved 

Whilst there is new signage on Caerphilly Road to direct visitors to the 
town centre and the railway station, the Masterplan promotes 
additional signage to improve links and connectivity between the 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made.  

P
age 83



Appendix 1 

32 
 

facility and the town centre and vice versa. 
The Centre for Sporting Excellence will always try and promote 
fixtures through social media channels, also on behalf of community 
clubs who have arranged matches at the facility. 

There is a lack of opportunities for 
grassroots sports within the Ystrad 
Mynach area.   
 

The Council’s Sport and Active Recreation strategy sets out the future 
proposals for the Council’s sport and leisure facilities. 
 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 

E. CREATE A VIBRANT AND ACCESSIBLE VISITOR DESTINATION 
 

E-1 Llancaiach Fawr Manor 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Support for proposals for Llancaiach Fawr The representations of support are noted.   No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

To support the opportunity afforded by the Ystrad Mynach 
Masterplan to develop the tourism appeal of Llancaiach 
Fawr Manor, a Manor House which is special and 
important and part of the rich history and heritage of 
Gelligaer. 
 
My wife recognised the rich history and heritage of 
Gelligaer and did much to promote it by carrying out 
detailed research, writing articles, producing booklets, 
giving talks, leading walks and visits and establishing a 
local history group.  She was acknowledged to be an 
authority on the medieval history of Gelligaer and did 
much research on the Prichard family of Llancaiach Fawr 
Manor as well as detailed research of documents of the 
period which gave an insight into the lives of local 
inhabitants. I therefore fully support the proposal to 
develop the tourism appeal of Llancaiach Fawr Manor, a 

P
age 84



Appendix 1 

33 
 

manor house which my wife recognised was of such 
importance and I think that such an investment can have a 
positive impact on the prosperity of the local community. 
This well-run site continues to suffer under-funded 
advertising.  It also would benefit from the more joined up 
approach where the various heritage sites in the County 
Borough were integrated allowing their marketing as part 
of a tourism package. 

The Council’s Destination & Events team supports 
the advertising plans at a number of tourism 
venues, including Llancaiach Fawr Manor.  In light 
of ongoing financial pressures on local authority 
budgets marketing activity is evolving away from 
traditional advertising to focus on digital and social 
media platforms. For example, the website for 
Llancaiach Fawr Manor is currently being updated 
and facebook advertising campaigns are planned 
to promote Llancaiach Fawr Manor.  
 
The Destination & Events Team are also a key 
partner in the Southern Wales Travel Trade 
marketing partnership that produces a number of 
promotional materials and campaigns aimed at 
attracting group visits and organised ‘days out’. The 
guide for Caerphilly outlines a number of suggested 
itineraries where heritage attractions both within 
and outside the county borough feature strongly 
including Llancaiach Fawr Manor.  

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 

E-3 Gelligaer Roman Fort 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Having lived in Gelligaer since marriage in March 1974 (45 years) I 
consider this my homeland where I have spent the largest chunk of my 
life. I would propose that the conservation area of Gelligaer be given a 
large priority with its Roman Fort, proximity to Llancaiach Fawr etc.   
Re-excavation of it would be for me personally like winning the lottery. 
 

The representation of support is 
noted.   

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

P
age 85



Appendix 1 

34 
 

Gelligaer Roman Fort – Absolutely develop this site.  It is of serious 
significance, probably our most important heritage site together with 
Gelligaer Common.  Why not develop a formal litter picking initiative in this 
whole area, including the whole Common with Keep Wales Tidy e.g. 
Llangattock (Powys) Green Valleys litter picking initiative (This won’t cost 
much money will it?). 
I think that the Ystrad Mynach Masterplan can be an opportunity to 
provide the platform to develop the tourism appeal of the rich history and 
heritage of Gelligaer generally.  There is so much available even within 
the village of Gelligaer itself. 
 

E-4 Valley Greyhound Track 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Objection to the inclusion of Valley Greyhound Track due to animal cruelty 
concerns. This should not be encouraged in a public development 
proposal. 

The greyhound track is an existing 
and legal leisure facility that caters 
for an existing demand. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 

E-5 Events 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Currently CCBC are cutting events. The Draft Masterplan encourages expansion of all sorts of 
events, including those run independently of the Council.  

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 

E-7 Heritage Trail 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Hengoed Viaduct is referred to in the Plan as Maesycwmmer Viaduct, this It is acknowledged that the Viaduct Amend all 

P
age 86



Appendix 1 

35 
 

will need to be changed. is incorrectly referenced and it is 
proposed to change this 
accordingly. 

references within the 
document to 
‘Hengoed Viaduct’ 

F. MAXIMISE ENJOYMENT OF THE MANY GREEN ASSETS WITHIN AND SURROUNDING THE MASTERPLAN AREA  

F-2 Parc Penallta 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Support for Parc Penallta and for the proposals. The representations of support are 
noted. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

• Support for camping/glamping provision 
• Support for visitor centre 
• Support for a retail unit or café/pub facilities at Parc Penallta or 

former Penallta colliery is essential for visitors and residents 
 

The representations of support are 
noted. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

A pedestrian crossing is needed from the Cwm Calon/Bath House side of 
the road to the Park as this road is extremely dangerous to cross. This 
would encourage more residents and the local school to use the Park 
more. 

There is an existing secured route 
into the Park leading from Buzzard 
Way under Penallta Road which 
provides a safe, car free route for 
pedestrians. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

A priority should be placed on improving the pedestrian/cycle routes in 
and around the park connecting to nearby Ystrad Mynach town and Cwm 
Calon.  
 
A sufficient green network system encourages more active lifestyles for 
residents of Ystrad but also an efficient way of connecting tourism to 
transport and town links and prospective retail facilities to provide 
refreshments and keep tourism in the area.  
 

The Council’s Active Travel 
Integrated Network Map, the 15 
year plan for improving the network 
of pedestrian and cycling routes, 
was formally agreed by Welsh 
Government in February 2018.   
 
The Map identifies over 100 
network improvements across the 
county borough. The plan is to be 
reviewed every three years and 
this will enable future 
improvements to be identified that 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

P
age 87



Appendix 1 

36 
 

will link Metro locations and key 
sites within the Masterplan Area, 
including the town centre. These 
proposals will continue to increase 
accessibility throughout Ystrad 
Mynach and the wider area. 
 

A family friendly pub in the Cwm Calon development would service not 
only the residents of Cwm Calon but ideally situated to provide 
refreshments to tourists to Parc Penallta and Ystrad Mynach in general, 
providing there is a sufficient network of walkways creating a fluid network 
of safe, eco travelling throughout the Ystrad Mynach area with a central 
hub at the Park / Tredomen Business Park. 
 

This representation is addressed 
under Strategic Objective G. 

This representation 
is addressed under 
Strategic Objective 
G. 

Do not agree unless we introduce further tree planting initiatives in the 
Parc and in the local area. 

Future tree planting and 
landscaping at the Country Parks 
lies outside the scope of the 
Masterplan and will form part of the 
ongoing maintenance and 
enhancement programme for the 
Country Parks. 
 
The Draft Masterplan identifies 
opportunities for enhancing the 
visitor experience and offer at the 
Country Park. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

A visitor centre etc. should not be placed next to the A472  The proposal for a visitor centre 
has been a long standing 
aspiration. 
 
To this end planning permission 
was granted in 2011 to reprofile the 
tip to provide a landform suitable 
for future visitor centre. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 

P
age 88



Appendix 1 

37 
 

 

Green Corridors 

F-6 Gren Way 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Hengoed Viaduct is referred to in the Plan as Maesycwmmer 
Viaduct, this will need to be changed. 

It is acknowledged that the Viaduct is 
incorrectly referenced and it is proposed 
to change this accordingly. 

Amend all 
references within the 
document to 
‘Hengoed Viaduct’ 

 

F-8 The Graig, Hengoed 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Support for walking and cycling links around Cwm Calon The representations of support are 

noted. 
No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

Fully agree with strategy 
Gelligaer Community Council fully supports the extension and completion 
of the cycle track 
As a resident of the ‘pioneering Redrow housing development’ at Cwm 
Calon for the last 7 years  we continue to be frustrated waiting for the 
promised completion of the cycle track that will link the estate to Ystrad 
centre, Hengoed, and the track that leads to Nelson. Again these ideas 
are wonderful but after waiting 7 years already I am not hopeful that I will 
see the completion of this cycle track, or indeed any of the other projects 
in the next 10 years. Unfortunately I feel this is another pipe dream. 
 

Discussions are at an advanced 
stage with the land owner to secure 
the necessary land required to 
allow a cycle link from the estate 
onto the National Cycle Network.  
 
It is acknowledged that the route is 
not complete and this should be 
clarified in the document. 
 
If that scheme is delivered it will be 
for the Authority to manage and 
maintain the route.  
Any improvements to the surface of 

Amend F-8 The 
Graig, Hengoed, 
second point to 
read:- 
 
Provide improved 
footpath/cycle links 
to connect Hengoed 
and Cefn Hengoed 
with the new 
footpath created at 
Cwm Calon.  This 
connects the area 
with Glyngaer to the 

This completion needs to be handled promptly.  Where is the funding to 
complete the existing problems? 
 
Long term ownership for the whole of the path and its environs is 
important. This should be explicit in any planning permissions and in the 
master plan.  Who will be responsible for the maintenance and 

P
age 89



Appendix 1 

38 
 

management of the route and its environment? 
 
Currently, the path is unsightly in places with limited access opportunities 
for maintenance, litter control and in many places the existing stretch of 
path is already degrading. Parts of the banking alongside the path are 
currently the responsibility of the Local Authority, Redrow and Meadfleet 
(the maintenance company paid by Cwm Calon Residents.) With varying 
degrees of quality of maintenance and tidiness. 
 
The existing stretch of footpath at Cwm Calon is of varying surfaces and 
needs to be improved - A full course of Tarmac path would improve the 
longevity and facilitate maintenance. The current path is already 
deteriorating and showing signs of weed ingress. 
 
The wording used seems to suggest that the cycle path running alongside 
Cwm Calon joins up to the main cycle path that leads on to Parc Penallta 
and beyond or in the other direction over the Hengoed Viaduct and 
beyond.  This is not the case.  The path is not complete. 
 

the existing cycleway can be 
considered at that time.  
 
Whilst there is not a cycle route 
directly into Penallta Industrial 
Estate from Cwm Calon, there are 
pedestrian links into the estate and 
also onto nearby cycle routes 
allowing for sustainable modes of 
travel to employment areas. 

north and will 
connect with Ystrad 
Mynach and the 
National Cycle 
Network to the south 
upon completion of 
the route.  This will 
allow access to 
employment 
opportunities at 
Penallta Industrial 
Estate and 
Tredomen Business 
Park as well as 
Ystrad Mynach 
Town Centre and 
Parc Penallta. 

Section 7, F-8 will 
also be amended 
accordingly to 
include:- 

Provision of 
improved Active 
Travel route. 

The route proposed for the cycle path (Cwm Calon) does not seem to 
consider the other proposals for the historic sites in the Colliery buildings 
and onto Gelligaer. Has the potential to link the whole set of historic 
locations been investigated?   
 
Why not Link the footpath to Parc Penallta (as well as Hengoed and Cefn 
Hengoed) by routing through or around Cwm Calon, up past the 
Engineering works / winding wheels and to provide some form of suitable 
crossing point (Lights or Bridge) across the busy road into Parc Penallta, 
then via existing rights of way up to Gelligaer?  

From an Active Travel perspective, 
the objective is to identify the ‘most 
commodious’ routes to improve 
access to employment, education, 
services and facilities to support 
sustainable travel initiatives for 
modal shift. 
 
Routes for leisure and tourism 
purposes generally sit outside of 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

P
age 90



Appendix 1 

39 
 

this and are pursued separately. 
The suggestions will be shared 
with the Council’s Infrastructure 
Division for consideration and 
assessment of what is feasible / 
supportable and how best they 
could be delivered. 

 

G. COMPLETE THE REGENERATION OF THE FORMER PENALLTA COLLIERY SITE 

G1 and G2 Conversion of the Power Hall and Bath House Building 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Support for the proposals The representations of 
support are noted. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

Many reasons for support:- 
• This scheme is long overdue 
• Both buildings are now in poor state of repair  
• unless converted, buildings will have to be demolished 
• Eyesore 
• Unsafe - risk to passers by 
• No sign of private investment.  
• The Council/CADW and WAG have to prioritise this site before it is too 

late. 
• The local authority should be preventing the owners from allowing that to 

happen.   
• Opportunity for flagship development 
• If public and/or private subsidy can be obtained so that the dwellings can 

be sold at a realistic price, this proposal will greatly enhance the area. 
• Investment is needed now, funds made available to make these safe. 
• Plenty of business opportunities in the area 

The Council is aware of the 
deteriorating condition of 
this important group of 
buildings. The council’s 
Building Control and 
Environmental Health 
sections  monitor the 
situation and have, where 
necessary, blocked up 
openings to buildings and 
put up temporary fencing 
along boundaries of the site 
to try to keep trespassers 
out, e.g. around the Power 
Hall. Unfortunately these 
have often been vandalised 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

P
age 91



Appendix 1 

40 
 

• The Penallta Colliery was such an important part of the history of not just 
this area but of South Wales as a whole.   

• Beautiful buildings must be brought back to life 

which then requires their 
reinstatement.  
 
The former owners of the 
site went into liquidation 
and the land and buildings 
were then held by the 
Bank's Receivers and 
marketed for some time 
until a property developer 
expressed interest in this 
site.  The Council is now 
working with this developer 
who is keen to bring these 
buildings back into new and 
beneficial uses. 

How does the plan impose duties of care and enforcement on existing owners of 
the properties to ensure that these plans are enacted on and not that the 
buildings are left alone until either the plan happens or the buildings collapse and 
are lost forever? 
 
Link to the other historic sites in the plan and apply the same logic to link them to 
cycle routes, visitor opportunities etc. 
CCBC should seriously consider the acquisition of the beautiful historically 
important Power Hall for conversion into a tourist attraction (e.g. a mining 
museum) and the Bath House for conversation into a hotel / restaurant facility to 
support the promoted tourism that would derive from both this and Parc Penallta 
with its proposed improved facilities. A bus link from the proposed Metro Hub at 
Tredomen could easily be envisaged to facilitate visitor numbers, as would 
facilities for safe cycle storage at the hotel for users of the Taff and Celtic Trails.  
 

G-3 Land at Winding Wheel Lane 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Support for the proposal. The representations of support are noted. No amendment to 

the document should 
be made. 

Was the site considered for the siting of a hotel?  Either as 
new build or as mentioned above (conversion).  
 
Was any consideration made to provide facilities for the 
community (Community hall, meeting storage etc.) as part of 
any retail development? 
Priority should now be placed on the development of retail and 
employment opportunities for now such a vast residential only 
development.  
 

The original Masterplan for Cwm Calon 
identified this land for commercial opportunities 
and the Council’s LDP allocates the site for 
commercial development. 
 
The Council still considers that suitable uses 
for this site include a small food store, Public 
House, restaurant/café and takeaway and 
some office development. A community facility 
would be considered appropriate. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

P
age 92



Appendix 1 

41 
 

Emphasis on creating a self contained / sufficient community 
that had been promised upon initial development over 10 
years ago.   
Area is unkempt and unmaintained. 
 
There are 650+ homes with plans in place for more new 
homes to be built just next door to the site. 
 
It would be wonderful to see the Colliery Buildings renovated 
to provide business opportunities 

 
The site has been marketed for a hotel 
however no developer has come forward. 
 
The Council will work with any 
developers/providers who may come forward 
with appropriate proposals for this site. 
 
The regeneration and growth identified in the 
Draft Masterplan will give rise to increased 
demand that will make the area more attractive 
to potential investors 

Can mandatory development of facilities be added to any 
planning permission for new developments to this site? 
Require the development of facilities such as shop etc. as part 
of any planning otherwise it will never happen. 

This issue is outside the remit of the Draft 
Masterplan. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 

Additional Cwm Calon Issues 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
What investigations and measures have taken place to 
ensure the additional traffic that the development will 
cause can be handled? 
 
Will the planned / anticipated growth of the school over the 
short and long term be considered in this traffic 
assessment? 
 
The size of the proposed developments in this area give 
rise to concern over traffic and parking. 150+ residences 
plus business traffic will lead to a great increase in that 
part of the estate.  
 
Specifically the second entrance and Cwm Calon Road. 

The type and adequacy of the road junction have 
been considered in depth during the planning 
application stage by way of a Transport 
Assessment. Junction modelling was undertaken to 
assess the capacity of the junction and Road 
Safety Audits undertaken to look at highway safety.  
 
The traffic implications of the development were 
considered as part of the planning permission that 
was granted for the development, including the 
listed buildings. These considerations found that 
the junction had sufficient capacity to 
accommodate the development. Therefore no 
changes to the highway infrastructure are planned. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

P
age 93



Appendix 1 

42 
 

There is already a major issue during school opening and 
closing times.  
Will consideration be made to develop a better junction to 
the main road and other parking areas, to facilitate 
anticipated traffic?  Especially in light of the growth of 
Ysgol Penalltau which has continually grown since its 
creation and has plans for more growth in future.  
 
Potentially with new dedicated junction (light controlled) 
from main road to support access to the developments 
and with the benefit of providing save crossing to Parc 
Penallta from the proposed development as well as from 
the suggested route for the foot / cycle  path. 
 
Majority of streets are not adopted Phases 1 A & B and Phase 2 A have been adopted 

to date. The council are working closely with the 
estate developer to bring about the adoption of the 
remaining elements of the estate. However, this is 
currently being frustrated by adoption issues with 
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water. The Council will continue 
to press the developer to expedite the adoption of 
these elements at the earliest opportunity. 
 
These issues are outside of the remit of the Draft 
Masterplan and therefore no change is proposed to 
the masterplan in these respects. 
 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made.. 

 We pay separately for maintenance of our open spaces 
 CCBC decline to inform us of progress on adoption of 

open spaces and roads 
 Street lighting is for the most part maintained by Redrow. 

 CCBC refuse to provide resources (Grit boxes, litter bins 
and litter collections) on non-adopted roads 

  

Private roads are not under the control of the 
Council.  As a result It is the responsibility of the 
land owner (in this case the estate developer) to 
provide such items / services and residents are 
advised to contact the estate developer.  
 
Where road adoptions have taken place grit bins (3 
No.) and litter bins (approx. 3No.) have been 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

P
age 94



Appendix 1 

43 
 

provided.     
 
These issues are outside of the remit of the Draft 
Masterplan. 

Better signage is needed to prevent the constant stream 
of large lorries that turn into Cwm Calon estate mistaking 
the second entrance for the Penallta Industrial Estate.   
Signs signifying that the GPS sat nav signals are wrong 
are not sufficient.  There needs to be better signage, multi 
national language signage. By the time the drivers see the 
existing signs they have already turned into the estate and 
can't turn around without causing chaos and sometimes 
damage. 
 

Signage has recently been erected and no further 
signage is proposed. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

More parking is needed for the school - Ysgol Penallta.  It 
is chaos at school drop off and pick up times.    

It is acknowledged that there is a particular issue at 
morning drop off and afternoon pick up times.  The 
Council has worked with the school, the eco-team 
and the head teacher to discourage inappropriate 
parking.  
 
The School has developed a School Travel Plan 
which aims to encourage walking and cycling to 
school. The School Travel Plan initiative can help 
address barriers to walking and cycling to school. 
The action plan can be reviewed to include 
initiatives aimed at encouraging parents to park 
responsibly if the review identifies that this is a risk 
or barrier to children accessing the school. 
 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 

P
age 95



Appendix 1 

44 
 

 

H. SUPPORT THE DEVELOPMENT OF HOUSING, INCLUDING AFFORDABLE HOUSING, ON BOTH BROWNFIELD AND GREENFIELD 
SITES IN SUSTAINABLE LOCATIONS 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

There has been extensive house building in the Ystrad Mynach area over the past 
decade or so.  How many more houses can be realistically accommodated with the 
knock on effects for local schools, doctors, dentists etc. 
 

The Draft Masterplan 
identifies sites allocated 
for housing in the 
Adopted LDP, sites with 
planning permission for 
housing and sites with 
known housing 
development pressure. 
 
The Draft Masterplan is 
not the vehicle for 
allocating sites for 
housing.  This is more 
appropriately considered 
through the LDP. 
 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

Although the HBF does not disagree with overall principles of the Development 
Strategy we would comment specifically with regard to the residential section.  The 
HBF is concerned that the plan merely continues to include existing allocated sites 
which have failed to come forward through both the current LDP and previous 
UDP.  This is particularly concerning as the LPA appear to have stalled in bringing 
forward its replacement LDP following the decision in 2016 and the current and 
ongoing lack of a five-year land supply. 
 
Do not agree unless the strategy includes more plantation and encourages 
community strategy (and includes new doctors and English speaking schools being 
built). Nowhere is this discussed in the new strategy or delivery objectives with 
exception of consideration of 21st Century school which I think does not consider 
that wider impacts of the community. 
 
There should be NO housing on greenfield sites FULL STOP.  
 
I do not agree with any further housing developments in the area, especially on 
Greenfield sites.  The area can’t take anymore. 
 
6.90 Remove the words "greenfield sites".       
6.92 Remove the words " both greenfield and"      
 

The Draft Masterplan 
reflects the Adopted LDP 
strategy which promotes 
the sustainable 
development of both 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

P
age 96



Appendix 1 

45 
 

brownfield and greenfield 
sites. 

Removal of the greenfield site indicated on Figure 18. The site is indicated as a 
site with known 
development pressure 
for housing development.  
There is a planning 
application with a 
decision pending. Whilst 
it does not follow that 
permission will be 
granted, it is considered 
appropriate to include 
the site in the Draft 
Masterplan. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

Gelligaer Community Council opposes the development of the Greenfield Site and 
request that it be removed from the plan for the 
following reasons: 
1. It is outside the settlement area as in the adopted LDP 2010, on a greenfield 
site. 
2. It is an incursion into open countryside. 
3. The site proposed is part of the green wedge between villages of Cefn 
Hengoed and Penpedairheol – the wedge would be significantly reduced and could 
lead to the coalescence of the two communities, which residents are firmly 
opposed to. 
4. If granted, the application would provide a precedent for development 
on the opposite side of Hengoed Road, adjacent to Waun Goch & Bryn Canol. 
5. The site is an invaluable habitat for wildlife. A stretch of mature and well 
established hedgerow would have to be removed, at a heavy cost to the 
environment, to accommodate the site road serving the proposed dwellings. 
6. The access road off Hengoed Road is on a bend which could affect highway 
safety. Vehicles coming from the site would lead to an increase in traffic congestion 
in particular approaching the road narrowing travelling south and on Pengam Road 
from Cascade. 
7. The lack of housing land designated by Caerphilly County Borough Council can 

These are matters that 
will be considered as 
part of the planning 
application process and 
are not within the remit of 
the Draft Masterplan. 
 
No changes to the Draft 
Masterplan are, 
therefore, being 
proposed  

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

P
age 97



Appendix 1 

46 
 

be addressed using the following brownfield sites, which are available and have not 
been developed: 
(i)   Site at New Road, Tiryberth, suitable for 173 units 
(ii)  Site at Cwm Calon near the Colliery Baths 
(iii)  Site opposite Derwendeg School, 27 units 
(iv)  32 units have recently been built on land designated for employment at Cwm 
Calon, Ystrad Mynach. 
(v)  There is a further site south of Glyngaer Road, on a greenfield site, 30 units, 
which has fewer disadvantages of the application site. 
8. Gelligaer Community Council were not consulted at the pre-Planning 
consultation stage.  We would have expected to have been consulted at the pre-
planning stage, given the size of the proposed development in our area. 
 
 

I. PROVIDE A SUITABLE LEVEL OF COMMUNITY LEISURE AND EDUCATION FACILITIES TO SUPPORT THE POTENTIAL LEVEL OF 
POPULATION AND HOUSING GROWTH WITHIN THE YSTRAD MYNACH HUB 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Improve leisure facilities!! You talk of closing Pontllanfraith LC and Cefn 
Forest LC - how is that improving facilities, oh, wait, these are in Sirhowy 
Valley, so it doesn't matter - people of Ystrad Mynach or Rhymney Valley 
won't be affected.  

The Council’s Sport and Active 
Recreation strategy sets out the 
future proposals for the Council’s 
sport and leisure facilities. 
 
The Draft Masterplan seeks to 
identify opportunities to regenerate 
and enhance the study area.  

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

Also could areas such as the Sue Noake Centre be better utilised in future 
plans. 

I think the plan lacks cohesion and integration with education and leisure. I 
appreciate that there is a separate strategy for leisure but you can’t have a 
‘masterplan’ for an area without incorporating education and leisure. The 
leisure centre and Lewis school has access to a vast green space that 
would benefit from investment in grass playing surfaces and also the 
possibility to develop a running track and athletics facility. There is a 
complete lack of adequate athletics facilities in the valley and appears to 

The Draft Masterplan reflects 
proposals which are being 
considered as part of the 21st 
Century Schools programme and 
those outlined in the Council’s 
Sport and Active Recreation 
Strategy. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

P
age 98



Appendix 1 

47 
 

be completely ignored.  
 
Rather than build a car park on the school playing field, I would like to see 
a commitment to fully develop the field for the educational development of 
the pupils of both the English and Welsh Language primary schools. I 
would like to see the field developed to provide a small, flat playing facility 
for football and rugby. There could be provision for out of classroom 
learning with growing facilities etc. There could also be provision for 
cycling to encourage and develop the confidence of children to ride a bike 
and ultimately take their bike onto the cycle tracks. 

 
There are no proposals to build a 
car park on school field.  The park 
and ride facility will be provided on 
the operational land currently under 
the ownership of Network Rail. 
 
It is proposed to access the park 
and ride facility across a small area 
of land associated with the school.  
It should be noted that the area will 
be reprofiled as part of this work 
that will ensure enhanced playing 
field provision. 

The quality of buildings at Lewis Girls School is particularly poor, which 
will undoubtedly affect the quality of education provision.     
 

The Draft Masterplan reflects 
proposals which are being 
considered as part of the 21st 
Century Schools programme.   

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

Amalgamation of LLanfabon Infants School and Llancaiach Junior School 
– Masterplan quotes ‘Targets an area of high social deprivation’ Really? I 
would be very surprised. Nelson usually comes out as comparatively 
affluent in the indices of social deprivation study. 
 

It is acknowledged that the 
statement is inaccurate and the 
reference is proposed to be 
removed from the document. 

Remove ‘Targets an 
area of high social 
deprivation’ from 
section 7 of the 
Amended 
Masterplan. 

 

P
age 99



Appendix 1 

48 
 

 

K. ENSURE ALL COMMUNITIES ARE ABLE TO ENGAGE AND BENEFIT FROM THE MASTERPLAN 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Gelligaer Community Council agrees that there should be a priority focus on the 
most deprived communities in our area namely Cefn Hengoed, Hengoed, 
Gelligaer and Tiryberth. 
 
Enabling communities to deliver and an emphasis of communities taking on their 
assets requires a constructive approach from Caerphilly County 
Borough Council, in which expertise and funding is shared with local 
voluntary organisations and groups. 

The representation of support 
is noted. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 

Other Proposals 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Traffic lights installed at the entrance to Ystrad Mynach Station, Lewis 
Street and Nelson Road.   

These proposals are outside the 
remit of the Draft Masterplan, 
however, they will be forwarded to 
the Council’s Infrastructure 
Division. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. Lower speed limit along Nelson Road. 

 
Q7 Do you have additional comments? 

The Study Area 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Think it’s great that Ystrad Mynach has been chosen 
for this. It’s good to see investment going somewhere 
other than the big cities!! Very excited to see how it 

The representation of support is 
noted. 

No amendment to the document should be 
made.  

P
age 100



Appendix 1 

49 
 

pans out. 
 
3.3 indicates ‘good connectivity’ and ‘easy access by 
road to the A470 to the west and Pontypool and 
Cwmbran to the east’. Have you travelled between 
Ystrad Mynach and the A470 or along the A472 
between Ystrad and Maesycwmmer? Easy access 
and good connectivity are not words that I would use. 
 

It remains the Council’s view 
that Ystrad Mynach is 
strategically well positioned on 
the strategic highway network  

No amendment to the document should be 
made.  

Row 4 - 3.4 states "A frequent rail service runs every 
15 minutes from Ystrad Mynach to Cardiff. Phase 2 of 
the Metro project will see trains increased to four per 
hour from Hengoed and Pengam also" - this is 
incorrect as Hengoed and Pengam currently benefit 
from services every 15 minutes already. 

It is acknowledged that the 
increase in services to Pengam 
and Hengoed have already 
taken place. As a result it is 
proposed to amend paragraph 
3.4 to reflect this. 

Amend paragraph 3.4 to read:- 
 
There are three railway stations within the 
area – Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed and 
Pengam.  The stations are on the Rhymney 
Valley line and all have park and ride 
facilities.  During the week days a frequent 
rail service runs every 15 minutes from 
Pengam, Hengoed and Ystrad Mynach to 
Cardiff. 
 
There are less services in the evenings and 
at weekends although these are due to 
increase as part of the Metro programme. 
 
Phase 3 of the Metro project will see the 
introduction of a passenger rail on the 
Cwmbargoed line.   

 

The Draft Masterplan Area 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Support for the Draft Masterplan area The representations of support are noted. No amendment to the 

P
age 101



Appendix 1 

50 
 

Very important to show Valleys communities in a positive light. document should be 
made. 

I am one for developing and making our village a more vibrant 
one, encouraging outsiders visit. 
The village needs to have a more vibrant feel especially for the 
youngsters 
The borough should be considered as a whole.   The Draft Ystrad Mynach Masterplan is the 

second in a series of targeted action plans 
and strategies aimed at capturing 
regeneration opportunities on key sites 
throughout the county borough. 
 
The Caerphilly Basin Masterplan was 
adopted in July 2018.  A Draft Masterplan for 
the Heads of the Valleys is currently being 
prepared.  Masterplans will also be produced 
for Greater Blackwood and Sirhowy and 
Ebbw Valley. 
 
When completed the Masterplans will cover 
the whole of the county borough, providing a 
mechanism for delivering regeneration 
throughout the county borough. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. Yet more money being spent in the Rhymney Valley. There 

are other areas of Caerphilly. 

Yet again, money spent in Rhymney Valley and nothing in 
Islwyn or Sirhowy. Perhaps change the name to Rhymney 
Valley County Borough Council?  

It would be far better if you concentrated your thinking/planning 
on the northern end of the Rhymney valley where there is 
space and good connection with the improved Heads of the 
Valleys Road. 

Proposals unnecessary because Ystrad Mynach is a village.   Ystrad Mynach is a Principal Town, as 
defined in the Adopted LDP. 
 
Furthermore, the area of Caerphilly and 
Ystrad Mynach has been identified as a 
Strategic Hub by the Valleys Task Force as 
an area where public money is focused to 
provide opportunities for the private sector to 
invest and create new jobs. 
 
The Draft Masterplan aims to provide a 
framework for the regeneration and growth of 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. Local residents identify Ystrad Mynach as their “village” and do 

not want to be over developed, lose their identity and become 
a suburb of Cardiff. 
 
No community centre /activity for youngsters.  

P
age 102



Appendix 1 

51 
 

Ystrad Mynach for all residents. 

 
The Context 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Indicates that Ystrad is ‘home to vital public service’, the Police 
Station is not always manned and often inaccessible, Ystrad 
Fawr Hospital lacks an Accident and Emergency department or 
a consultant lead maternity department which results in the 
community having to travel to the Royal Gwent in Newport or 
Prince Charles in Merthyr Tydfil to access vital public services. 
The cost to use the Centre for Sporting Excellence restricts 
access by smaller community groups, furthermore an individual 
athlete is unable to access the well-resourced Strength and 
Conditioning Suite. Therefore the Centre does not provide a 
‘vital public service’ because the public cannot use the facility. 

The police and health services are vital 
services for the county borough.  
 
The level of both of these services is set by 
their respective administrative bodies.  As 
such they are not under the control of the 
Council and it is beyond the remit of the 
Masterplan to set the service levels. 
 
In respect of the Centre for Sporting 
Excellence, whilst community groups can use 
the facility, it is not on reflection a vital public 
service and so reference should be deleted 
from this paragraph.  

Amend paragraph 
4.1, 4th point to 
remove reference to 
the Centre for 
Sporting Excellence. 

Suggestion that ‘pubs restaurants and accommodation remain 
essential to increase dwell time’. I totally disagree. The pubs 
within Ystrad are struggling to remain open. Footfall is down for 
a variety of reasons, but additional competition could see the 
closure of existing hospitality locations. 

The evening and night time economy has 
amazing growth potential, e.g. Caerphilly 
evening economy brings in £38m to its 
economy. Improving the evening/night-time 
offer will have significant economic benefits 
and will cater for increased demand resulting 
from the regeneration and growth throughout 
the study area. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 

Local Development Plan 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
LDP Review & Future additional requirements 
 

The representation 
is noted. 

No amendment to 
the document 

P
age 103



Appendix 1 

52 
 

Whilst the document will inevitably need to be reviewed in order to tie in with the LDP 
Review we believe that the approach taken will be a key consideration in the future of the 
LDP. Indeed, within the area identified (figure 1) there is scope for longer term aspirations 
to be aligned with the review of the LDP. There are a number of issues within the wider 
area that threaten to undermine the sustainability and success of the vision that will need 
to be addressed in the future. 
 
In the first instance, there is an identified infrastructure constraint through Maesycymmer. 
The Council has previously indicated that the strategic network needs to be upgraded in 
order “to ensure ease of movement between Blackwood and Ystrad Mynach and the 
strategic rail network, and thus to the wider Cardiff Capital region” in order to achieve this 
a new bypass of Maesycymmer was previously proposed. This will aide linkages and 
accessibility for residents both within the Authority and beyond to the wider Cardiff 
Network, It will be vital in helping to achieve the vision and objectives in the longer term 
and transforming Ystrad Mynach into a regionally important economic hub. 
 
Secondly, we note that there is likely to be a need to identify additional residential 
allocations to meet needs and to accompany and fuel economic growth. In this regard, 
residential development of a suitable scale in appropriate locations (along with appropriate 
facilities) has the ability to create a truly mixed use, sustainable place where people can 
work, live and play in line with the Placemaking aspirations of the Welsh Government. 
 
Whilst such strategic allocations and infrastructure will be a matter for the review of the 
Local Development Plan, we are strongly of the view that the document in its current form 
provides a basis that can allow for long term economic and social needs to be met and 
can help to facilitate such improvements. Indeed, through the LDP Review we believe that 
there is a major opportunity to build upon the recent growth and investment at Ystrad 
Mynach to ensure that it can become a sub regional hub in line with the overarching vision 
of the document and in line with the Well Being and Placemaking Objectives of the Welsh 
Government. 

should be made. 

The HBF is concerned that future development proposal for one small part of Caerphilly 
Council is being brought forward through a master planning process at this time. We 
consider that an area masterplan should follow the updated LDP or even as part of an 
SDP as many of the proposals are referred to as regionally important.  It appears that 
Caerphilly is trying to plan from the bottom up rather the top down.  In particular, the 

The Draft 
Masterplan does not 
seek to plan from 
the bottom up as it 
does not allocate 

No amendment to 
the document 
should be made. 

P
age 104



Appendix 1 

53 
 

residential proposal appears limited to those that are either currently allocated in the LDP 
or have gained planning permission, as already mentioned many of these are difficult sites 
which have not been developed over a number of plans/years.  Members have advised 
that a number of the identified sites have considerable constraints including H-4 Land to 
the east of the Handball Court, Nelson and H-3 Tir-y-berth, Hengoed (Partmart). 

any site for any 
particular use.  
 
The Draft 
Masterplan has 
been prepared in 
accordance with the 
Adopted LDP and 
will need to be 
amended to reflect 
any revision of the 
Adopted LDP. 

 

Funding and Delivery 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Support for the Draft Masterplan and the proposals contained 
within it. 

The representations of support are noted. No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

Fantastic opportunities for Ystrad Mynach.  Nice to see 
something positive for the area 
In general most of the proposals seem satisfactory.   
Welcome the production of the Master Plan which we strongly 
support and believe provides an opportunity to set out the 
Council’s aspirations and to continue the successes of recent 
years at Ystrad Mynach. Indeed, over the past few years it is 
clearly the case that its role and function has increased and 
broadened in the context of the County Borough and the region 
such that it is now a key hub linking the southern and northern 
corridors with the Heads of the Valleys corridor, and to the wider 
Cardiff region. 
 
It has become the location for a number of vital public services 

P
age 105



Appendix 1 

54 
 

including the Council Headquarters, the Hospital, College, Centre 
of Sporting Excellence and Police Station. The presence of all 
these major services along with more traditional employment 
opportunities at Dyfryn Industrial Estates means that Ystrad 
Mynach is a significant employment and learning centre and 
increasingly is becoming a strategic location for investment and 
growth of sub regional importance. 
 
Strategically it is central to the Authority with high frequency 
public transport routes (both rail and bus) converging in the town 
to link the northern parts of the Authority with the south of the 
County Borough and the Cardiff Hub beyond. It therefore 
provides an opportunity to increase the economic and social 
circumstances of residents from all over the Authority. Indeed, 
there can be no doubting its importance not only to the County 
Borough but increasingly to the sub region. 
I think the Masterplan is poorly written, contains too many 
assumptions and lacks any basic assessment of need or 
evidence to support the assumptions. It appears that the author 
has travelled through and said ‘this could be done’ or ‘that could 
be done’ and then assumes that an increase or improvement will 
occur without any evidence to support the claims. 

A masterplan by its very nature needs to be 
aspirational if it is to deliver the anticipated 
growth and regeneration for the area. 
 
The Draft Masterplan was prepared after 
extensive stakeholder involvement.  A 
workshop was held with representatives 
from local businesses, landowners and 
stakeholders. 
 
The Draft Masterplan was informed by other 
Policies and Strategies including the LDP 
and the Council’s Regeneration Strategy ‘A 
Foundation for Success’.  

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

Lacks the research and evidence approach to make it a valid, 
authentic and academic piece of work. 
Overall the plan, although lengthy, is very patchy on actual details 
of how and when the proposals will be implemented. In many 
instances the funding necessary to effect the changes has not 
even been identified, much less secured.  
 
The plan seems to be trying to address issues in the future that 
the community are facing today, so what will be done in the short 
term to put these right (e.g. major banks & retail outlets closing in 
Ystrad Mynach; existing travel networks (roads) not being 
maintained; litter and pollution are ever-increasing problems. The 
residents need responses now, not at some distant and as yet 

P
age 106



Appendix 1 

55 
 

non-defined future point in time. 
Nothing in the plan appears to be funded and there is a reliance 
on Capital Region City Deal yet the statement is that the largest 
proportion will be used to deliver the metro.  

A masterplan by its very nature needs to be 
aspirational if it is to deliver the anticipated 
growth and regeneration for the area. 
 
One of the key motivations behind the 
preparation of the Draft Masterplan is to 
identify projects that could benefit from 
funding in the short, medium and long term.   
 
As well as the Cardiff Capital Region City 
Deal, which is a 20 year programme, on the 
2 October 2018, the Cabinet Secretary for 
Finance presented his draft Budget to the 
National Assembly, and announced £25m to 
create seven strategic hubs across the 
South Wales Valleys, Caerphilly / Ystrad 
Mynach being one of those hubs. 
 
A further £7m has been announced to 
create Valleys Regional Park Discovery 
Gateways which will deliver improvements 
to strengthen the visitor experience for 
people of the Valleys and visitors to the 
Valleys. 
 
It is therefore entirely reasonable that the 
majority of projects do not have certain 
timeframes or funding streams assigned to 
them at this time. 
By and large the priorities are dependent on 
funding and the various funding streams 
have their own prioritisation requirements. 
 
In respect of Council projects, 

What is the likelihood that resources will be made available and 
who will set the priorities for development areas? 

Overall the plan, although lengthy, is very patchy on actual details 
of how and when the proposals will be implemented. In many 
instances the funding necessary to effect the changes has not 
even been identified, much less secured.  
 
 
I realise that the masterplan is a wish list - it would be great to 
see all of the proposals come to fruition but of course that will not 
happen.   P

age 107



Appendix 1 

56 
 

recommendations for prioritisation will be 
made by the Regeneration Project Board to 
Cabinet.  At the time of drafting 7 schemes 
have already been considered and 
recommended to Cabinet as part of this 
process.  

Money should be spent elsewhere, e.g. schools and leisure 
centres 

One of the key motivations behind the 
preparation of the Draft Masterplan is to 
identify projects that could benefit from 
funding in the short, medium and long term.   
 
By and large priorities are dependent on 
funding and investment. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

Keeping community recycling centre at Gelligaer and 
Aberbargoed open, to prevent fly tipping etc. 

The Masterplan seeks to identify 
regeneration and growth opportunities for 
the area and as such, the maintenance and 
retention of existing facilities are outside the 
remit for the Masterplan. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 
Community 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
The plan also lacks any initial community involvement and whilst 
it is appreciated that this is a consultation, I think a better 
approach would have been to have the community initially 
involved in shaping proposals. It feels that this is something 
that, if funding is secured, will be done to the community rather 
than with or through the community.   
 

The Draft Masterplan was initially prepared 
after extensive stakeholder involvement.  A 
workshop was held with representatives from 
local businesses, landowners and elected 
members, stakeholders.  
 
The comments received through the 
consultation exercise will be addressed in the 
Report of Consultation which will be reported 
to Council. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made.   

If only the teams who has written the proposals, had had the 
common courtesy in meeting with our business holder of our 
small village, to get our views, and to develop new ideas.  
 
 
It would seem that the scripts have been proposed without 

P
age 108



Appendix 1 

57 
 

meeting with private landlord/owners - Lack of Communication 
to consult with each business. Change is good and is a very 
hard challenge, but to over and for others to embrace, is to 
communicate and include, not to write up articles, that you have 
no idea what businesses have in the pipelines, which is clearly 
what has happened in terms of ourselves.  
All people living in the area must be included in any decisions 
also involve the local community associations that feature in the 
area, Cwm Calon is a prime example 

The Draft Masterplan was prepared after 
extensive stakeholder involvement.  A 
workshop was held with representatives from 
local businesses, landowners and 
stakeholders. 
 
The community has been consulted on the 
draft masterplan and comments sought. 
These comments have been considered and 
where appropriate changes are proposed to 
the Draft Masterplan to reflect them. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made.  

Ensure that the skills are available for the industry that we are 
trying to invite. That training needs to start now so the present 
local people can fill the roles and we do not need to bring in all 
new people 

The Draft Masterplan supports ‘A Foundation 
for Success’ which is the regeneration 
strategy for the county borough.  ‘A 
Foundation for Success’ includes a wide 
range of initiatives in respect of skills and 
training.  

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 How can community groups affect these priorities?  
  
 What if any can volunteer action do which could help adjust or 

influence the plans implementation? 
 

The Council recognises and appreciates the 
invaluable contribution of volunteers, for 
example, litter picking initiatives. 
 
By and large the priorities are dependent on 
funding and the various funding streams have 
their own prioritisation requirements. 
 
In respect of Council projects, 
recommendations for prioritisation will be 
made by the Regeneration Project Board to 
Cabinet. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

P
age 109



Appendix 1 

58 
 

How will residents be informed of progress? Will there be 
annual reviews and adjusted targets and priorities? 

  

The amended Masterplan will be reported to 
Council on 16th April, 2018.  If approved, it will 
become Supplementary Planning Guidance 
to the Adopted LDP and will be reviewed by 
the Regeneration Programme Board to 
monitor and assess the progress being 
made. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

 
Consultation 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Three events to discuss the masterplan are 
inadequate. I would have liked more 
opportunity to attend an event in the 
evening and I would have liked more 
community engagement and involvement at 
the commencement of writing the 
masterplan. As previously mentioned, it is 
poorly constructed, poorly thought through 
and lacks the research and evidence 
approach to make it a valid, authentic and 
academic piece of work. 

The Draft Masterplan was prepared after extensive stakeholder 
involvement.  A workshop was held with representatives from 
local businesses, landowners and stakeholders. 

The Draft Ystrad Mynach Masterplan was promoted on the 
Council’s website as well as through social media channels. 

The public consultation events attended by Officers were 
arranged around library opening hours and therefore, later events 
were not possible.  Officers were available to meet with members 
of the public during office hours throughout the consultation 
period. 

All documents were available online and there was opportunity to 
submit comments either online, or by email, letter or by 
completing paper copies of the survey. 

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

Publicity – this has been extremely poor 
from the outset.  The majority of people I 
have spoken to in YM did not know about 
the Plan.  Many living in Nelson and 
Penpedairheol assumed it did not apply to 
them! 

The Draft Masterplan was published extensively on the Council’s 
website and through social media channels.   

Consultation emails were sent to a range of stakeholders, 
including key landowners, organisations delivering services in the 
Masterplan area, equalities organisations, AMs, MPs, all CCBC 
elected members, all community councils and neighbouring 
authorities.  

No amendment to 
the document should 
be made. 

P
age 110



Appendix 1 

59 
 

 
Posters advertising the consultation were displayed in a number 
of locations within the Masterplan area. 
A consultation letter was sent to all retailers in Ystrad Mynach 
town centre advising them that the consultation was taking place 
and how they could get involved. Officers visited a number of 
businesses within the town centre to advise them of the key 
proposals within the document and how the Draft Masterplan may 
affect them. 
 

All documents were available online and there was opportunity to 
submit comments either online, or by email, letter or by 
completing paper copies of the survey. 

 
Toilets 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Objection to closure of toilets The Draft Local Toilet Strategy was recently the subject of a  

period of consultation.  The consultation responses will be 
analysed and will form the final Local Toilet Strategy. 
 
The issue of the closure of the toilets is not within the remit of the 
Draft Masterplan. 

No amendment to the 
document should be made. 

 
Litter 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Representations were made with regards to 
the amount of litter throughout the Draft 
Masterplan area.  

Litter is a maintenance issue that lies outside of the remit 
of the Draft Masterplan. 

No amendment to the 
document should be made. 

 

Electric Vehicle Charging Points 

P
age 111



Appendix 1 

60 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Electric vehicle charging 
points are an urgent priority 

The Draft Masterplan supports the development of charging points for electric 
vehicles within the Masterplan area. 
   
Also, the Council has adopted its Electric Vehicle Strategy that also seeks the 
provision of charging points for electric vehicles. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

 

Pollution 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
Concerns regarding pollution 
in Ystrad Mynach. 

Recent air quality indicated that air quality levels within Ystrad Mynach are 
acceptable and do not give rise for concern. 
 
Notwithstanding this, the Draft Masterplan promotes Active Travel and public 
transport initiatives to encourage more sustainable means of travel. 
 
The Council has also adopted its Electric Vehicle Strategy and the Draft 
Masterplan supports the development of charging points for electric vehicles 
within the Masterplan area.   

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

Ensure Bryn Group stop 
causing nuisance of noise, 
smell and silica dust to 
community of Gelligaer, Pen y 
Bryn and Nelson. 
 

The Bryn Group operation has the benefit of Planning permission. In 
considering the application for the proposed use the impacts of the proposed 
activity on nearby communities were considered. 
 
The monitoring and enforcement of the operations are not matters for the 
Draft Masterplan. 

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made. 

 

Highway concerns 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
General concern raised in 
respect of congestion along 
the A472 and A469 

The Draft Masterplan promotes Active Travel and public transport 
initiatives to encourage more sustainable means of travel. 
 

No amendment to the document 
should be made 

P
age 112



Appendix 1 

61 
 

Existing roads are not 
maintained 
Pot holes in minor roads 
Leaves not cleared from 
footpaths 
Footpaths not being salted 

The maintenance of highways and active travel routes are a 
matter for the Council’s maintenance teams or the respective 
landowner.  The maintenance of highways and footpaths are 
matters that lie outside the remit of the Draft Masterplan 

No amendment to the document 
should be made. 

 

Library Provision 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 
One area not addressed is that of Library provision 
requirements in a growing strategic hub location. Ystrad 
Mynach currently has a modest town Library site providing 
residents in the catchment area some 180m2 of space in the 
town centre. To meet the increasing catchment population 
you note in the Master Plan (2016 Mid Year estimates of 
23,696 people) the location would need to increase its 
present offer to 640m2 based on Welsh Government 
Standards for Public Libraries and IFLA best practice 
(International Federation of Library Associations). 

It should be noted that the Draft Masterplan 
area is also served by Nelson Library and 
Learning Centre.   
 
The provision and maintenance of libraries 
is a council function and is coming under 
increasing pressure due to financial 
constraints due to council budget cuts. 
Whilst a larger offer would be in keeping 
with the proposed regeneration and growth 
of the area, it is considered unlikely that this 
would be either feasible or could attract 
funding to make such a project possible.  As 
a result it is not proposed to identify the 
library as a project in the Masterplan.   

No amendment to the 
document should be 
made in respect of this 
issue. 

 

 

 

P
age 113



1 

Section 1: Introduction 

1.1 This Masterplan sets out the future development and regeneration opportunities 
proposed for Ystrad Mynach and the wider area. It seeks to build on the existing 
strengths of Ystrad Mynach to ensure that the area enhances its role as a business, 
employment, service, retail and sporting centre.   

1.2 There is an exciting opportunity to facilitate significant change through the Cardiff 
Capital Region City Deal, which will provide resources to unlock significant economic 
growth in the region, delivering jobs and private sector investment. This Masterplan 
sets out a number of projects within Ystrad Mynach and the wider area that could 
benefit from City Deal or other potential funding mechanisms to deliver substantial 
economic benefits.  

1.3 The City Deal Investment Fund will also facilitate delivery of the South East Wales 
Metro1, which will make substantial improvements to connectivity by public transport 
across the region.  Ystrad Mynach has the potential to become a key metro hub due 
to its central location in the region and the Masterplan sets out how this opportunity 
can be maximised.  

1.4 Furthermore, the area of Caerphilly and Ystrad Mynach has been identified as a 
Strategic Hub by the Valleys Task Force as an area where public money is focused 
to provide opportunities for the private sector to invest and create new jobs.   

1.5 The key aim of this Masterplan is therefore to harness these exciting opportunities 
and provide a framework for taking Ystrad Mynach and the wider area forward into 
the future. This Masterplan is flexible and has the ability to adapt to changing 
economic and market conditions and meet the requirements and aspirations of both 
the private and public sector over this period through regular review.  It is recognised 
that there are some projects that can be delivered within the short to medium term. 
However, in order to deliver long term regeneration goals, there is an aspiration to 
redevelop a number of key sites within the Masterplan area. 

1.6 The Masterplan has been prepared within the context of the adopted Caerphilly 
County Borough Local Development Plan (LDP), which sets out the Council’s land 
use objectives for the county borough for the period up to 2021, but it also sets longer 
term goals to ensure that the momentum of change extends into the next decade.  

1.7 Many of the projects identified in the Masterplan are aligned to proposals within the 
adopted LDP. It should be noted that the Adopted LDP plan period ends in 2021 and 
the plan will need to be reviewed to provide the policy framework for the period 
beyond 2021. Furthermore, relevant proposals may also be included within a 
Strategic Development Plan for the Cardiff Capital Region. The Masterplan will need 
to be reviewed to take into account relevant policies and proposals in future 
development plans at the appropriate time. 

1.8 ‘A Foundation for Success’, the over-arching regeneration strategy for the county 
borough, was approved in July 2018.  It provides the strategic framework for 
regeneration activity over the next five years.  It concentrates on four key themes that 
set out the broad principles for regeneration: 

 Supporting People

 Supporting Business

 Supporting Quality of Life

 Connecting People and Places

1
 https://tfw.gov.wales/ 

Appendix 2

Page 114



2 
 

1.9 Appendix 1 lists the regeneration and strategic objectives to be tackled under each 
theme. 

1.10 The Caerphilly Basin Masterplan, the first in a suite of complementary masterplans to 
‘A Foundation for Success’, was also approved by the Council in July 2018 and this 
provides more detailed proposals for the regeneration and revitalisation of the 
Caerphilly Basin. 

1.11 The Ystrad Mynach Masterplan is the second area-specific strategy which identifies 
projects that will help address key issues and objectives set out within the wider 
Regeneration Strategy. It forms part of the implementation plan for ‘A Foundation for 
Success’ which will be reviewed every five years.  The Masterplan identifies 
investment and development opportunities within the Ystrad Mynach part of the 
Strategic Hub. 

1.12 To capture regeneration opportunities throughout the whole of the county borough, 
further strategies and masterplans will be produced (Heads of the Valleys, Greater 
Blackwood and Sirhowy and Ebbw ValleyNewbridge to Risca Corridor). 

 

 

Section 2: The Vision for Ystrad Mynach and the Wider Area 
 
2.1 Central to the Vision for Ystrad Mynach is the ability to enhance its primary role as a 

strategic economic hub that is capable of supporting local communities.  The future 
role for the town should maximise regeneration, employment, retail and sport and 
recreation opportunities.  The Vision for Ystrad Mynach and the wider area is also 
linked to the Vision for the county borough as a whole, as set out within the Council’s 
Regeneration Strategy ‘A Foundation for Success’. 

2.2 The Vision is as follows: 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

2.3 The Vision has been prepared having regard for the seven well-being goals set out 
within the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

2.4 The Vision for the town will be supported by a series of Strategic Objectives which 
will drive its delivery and translate directly into a series of projects and actions that: 

 

“To develop and enhance Ystrad Mynach as a significant business, 

service and employment area and as a Strategic Economic Hub within the 
Cardiff Capital Region.   

 
It will be a thriving business, retail, leisure and tourism destination with 

exemplary sporting facilities, an exceptional learning area and incredible 
green spaces. 

 
It will be an exciting, vibrant place where businesses will want to locate, 

develop and grow and where people will desire to live, work and visit. 
 

Its communities will be attractive and sustainable with excellent links to 
the Metro and the residents will feel safe, aspire to succeed and live active 

and healthy lives.” 
 

Page 115



3 
 

A Provide the conditions to strengthen business growth and capitalise 
on employment opportunities – Identify opportunities to support 
businesses and organisations within the local economy to expand and 
provide a range of jobs and build capacity to enhance the contribution of the 
foundational economy; 

B Create the conditions for the area to become a thriving Metro Hub - 
Optimise the area around Ystrad Mynach Station to create a well-designed 
arrival point for residents and visitors to the town. Develop the Metro rail 
spur between Ystrad Mynach and Dowlais Top with new metro halts at 
Tredomen and Nelson, expand the Park and Ride facilities along the core 
rail network and provide cross valley rapid transport; 

C Modernise and develop Ystrad Mynach into a thriving business and 
commercial centre – Exploit the presence of major services and facilities 
located in Ystrad Mynach and build on its position as the County Borough’s 
administrative centre; 

D Create an exemplary Sport, Leisure and Education Cluster - Expand the 
flagship Centre for Sporting Excellence and further develop cultural, 
educational and sporting opportunities; 

E Create a vibrant and accessible visitor destination - Identify 
opportunities to broaden the tourism offer within the area;  

F Maximise enjoyment of the many green assets within and surrounding 
the Masterplan Area – Encourage the use of green spaces, including the 
Country Parks, to enhance quality of life and promote well-being; 

G Complete the regeneration of the former Penallta Colliery site – Exploit 
a significant housing and employment led regeneration opportunity that will 
see the conservation and preservation of this important and exceptionally 
fine former colliery; 

H Support the development of housing, including affordable housing, on 
both greenfield and brownfield sites in sustainable locations - Identify 
key residential opportunities that can be unlocked on sites that accord with 
planning policy, including innovative housing and housing as part of mixed 
use developments; 

I Provide a suitable level of community leisure and education facilities 
to support the potential level of population and housing growth within 
the Ystrad Mynach Strategic Hub – Acknowledge that such facilities are 
important to the population and ensure that these facilities meet future 
needs; 

J Ensure that accessibility for all is embedded in all improvement 
schemes - A cross-cutting objective that recognises that people are 
disabled more by poor design, inaccessible services and other people’s 
attitudes than by their own impairment; 

K  Ensure all communities within the Masterplan area are able to engage 
engage andin and benefit from the proposals in the Masterplana bigger 
and better Ystrad Mynach – ensure that the proposals identified in the 
Masterplan have positive outputs for those that are living in the most 
deprived communities. 

 
2.5 Appendix 2 sets out how each of the Strategic Objectives relate to the well-being 

goals set out within the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

 

 
  

Page 116



4 
 

Section 3: The Study Area 
 
3.1 Ystrad Mynach Strategic Hub is located at the centre of the Rhymney Valley, 

comprising the Principal Town of Ystrad Mynach and the Local Centre of Nelson, 
together with the residential areas of Penallta, Gelligaer / Penybryn, Penpedairheol, 
Cascade, Hengoed / Cefn Hengoed and Tiryberth, all of which have associations and 
in most cases roots in the mining industry. 

3.2 It incorporates the electoral wards of Ystrad Mynach, Nelson, St Cattwg and 
Hengoed.  A small part of the area at the south of Ystrad Mynach, comprising Dyffryn 
Business Park, falls within the Maesycwmmer ward.  Figure 1 indicates the extent of 
Masterplan area. 

Figure 1: Ystrad Mynach Masterplan Area 

 

3.3 The area is strategically well positioned with good connectivity to Cardiff and the M4 
by road via the A469 and A470.  Ystrad Mynach and Nelson are located on the main 
east to west A472, which allows easy access by road to the A470 to the west and 
Pontypool and Cwmbran to the east. 

3.4 There are three railway stations within the area – Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed and 
Pengam.  The stations are on the Rhymney Valley line and all have park and ride 
facilities.  During the week days and on a Saturday a frequent rail service runs every 
15 minutes from Pengam, Hengoed and Ystrad Mynach to Cardiff.  Phase 3 of the 
Metro project proposes the introduction of a passenger rail on the Cwmbargoed line.   

3.5 There are less services in the evenings and on Sundays although these are due to 

increase as part of the Core Valley Lines transformation programme. 

 

Page 117



5 
 

3.43.6 There are three railway stations within the area – Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed and 
Pengam.  The stations are on the Rhymney Valley line and all have park and ride 
facilities.  A frequent rail service runs every 15 minutes from Ystrad Mynach to 
Cardiff.  Phase 2 of the Metro project will see trains increased to four per hour from 
Hengoed and Pengam also.  Phase 3 of the Metro project will see the introduction of 
a passenger rail on the Cwmbargoed line.   

3.53.7 The 2016 Mid-Year Population Estimates indicated that the area has a total 
population of 23,696 people. 

Section 4: The Context 
 
4.1 In providing the context to the masterplan it is important to understand the key 

opportunities that currently exist within the Masterplan area. 

 
Opportunities 

 Cardiff Capital Region City Deal: The City Deal for the region will provide an 
unprecedented level of funding for projects with the aim of promoting economic 
growth and job creation throughout the region. Whilst the overall aim is to generate 
economic growth, and a significant part of the £1.25 billion funding will be utilised to 
realise this aim, the largest proportion of the funding will be used to deliver the 
Capital Region Metro.  The Metro concept is for a regional transport system that 
provides a high-quality, reliable, efficient and economically sustainable transport 
network to support the proposed economic growth within the region. Ystrad Mynach’s 
location in the heart of the county borough along with its economic and transport 
opportunities places it in a strong position to contribute to the delivery of the aims and 
objectives of both City Deal and the Metro which would deliver significant benefits 
from this funding. 

 Our Valleys, Our Future:  The Ministerial Taskforce for the South Wales Valleys 
identifies Ystrad Mynach, together with Caerphilly, as a Strategic Hub focusing on 
new business and employment opportunities.   This will be an area where public 
money is focused to provide opportunities for the private sector to invest and create 
new jobs. 

 Valleys Regional Park (VRP):  The VRP is an exciting, dynamic initiative to co-
ordinate, drive and promote activities related to the environment and heritage and 
associated tourism activities across the valleys of South Wales, working to change 
the reality and perceptions of the Valleys as a highly-desirable place to live, work and 
visit.  The Masterplan includes parks and green areas that can be enhanced and 
promoted as outstanding environmental and cultural assets thereby helping to 
regenerate the area.  

 Home to vital public services:  The Principal Town of Ystrad Mynach has in recent 
years attracted significant investment from both the public and private sectors.  The 
town is now home to Caerphilly County Borough Council’s Headquarters, Ystrad 
Mynach Police Station, Ystrad Fawr Hospital and Coleg Y Cymoedd.  The Centre for 
Sporting Excellence is also located in the town. 

 Existing Business Parks:  The main industrial estates are located south of Ystrad 
Mynach at Dyffryn Business Park, and to the north of the town at Penallta.  There are 
smaller mixed developments lining the A469 through Tiryberth and the prestigious 
Tredomen Business Park is located along the A472 at Tredomen.  

 Ty Du:  The site represents a major regional development opportunity to create an 
attractive residential development along with employment units, comprising a 

Page 118



6 
 

sustainable form of development with considerable potential economic and social 
benefits. 

 Retail Offer:  The main shopping provision in Ystrad Mynach comprises two national 
supermarkets, namely Lidl and Tesco and over 80 other commercial units containing 
a good mix of independent retailers.  Nelson is a smaller Local Centre which has a 
supermarket, Co-Op, and a range of small independent retailers.   

 Tourism: Llancaiach Fawr Manor is an early 16th Century Grade I listed building and 
one of the finest examples of a semi-fortified manor in Wales today. It is also one of 
the three main tourist attractions in the county borough.  The property includes 
interpretive and educational facilities for visitors as well as hosting many events and 
functions.  However, there is no accommodation provision either on site or in the 
immediate vicinity.  Such provision would increase the attractiveness of the venue, 
increase overnight stays and encourage greater tourism related activity. 

The Centre for Sporting Excellence, the county borough’s flagship sporting facility, is 
a major attraction, located within the Masterplan Area.  There is potential to further 
expand the facility to create an inspirational venue which will attract and facilitate 
local, regional, national and international sport, attracting many visitors to Ystrad 
Mynach. 

 Regeneration:  Penallta Colliery Regeneration Scheme is one of the most exciting 
regeneration projects in the county borough.  On land reclaimed since the pit’s 
closure in 1991 historic colliery buildings have been partially restored and converted.  
Opportunities exists for further conversion of all remaining listed buildings including 
the prominent Power Hall and the striking 1930’s Bath House, potentially for mixed 
uses.  Also, a new development comprising a Welsh medium primary school, formal 
and informal areas of open space is nearing completion, with only an area allocated 
for commercial units yet to be developed. 

 Night Time Economy:  Improvements to accommodation and the leisure and night 
time economy (including pubs, restaurants and accommodation) remain essential to 
increase the dwell time within the Masterplan Area.   

 Active Travel:  Walking and cycling are good for physical and mental health.  
Switching more journeys to active travel, walking or cycling, will improve health, 
quality of life and the environment.  Opportunity exists to promote active travel 
throughout the Masterplan Area for everyday journeys.    
 

4.2 In order to promote change, it is important to recognise the challenges that the 
Masterplan area faces in achieving the Vision. These challenges have been identified 
through consultation with stakeholders. 

 
Challenges 

 Raising the profile:  Ystrad Mynach needs to further promote its identity to a wider 
audience as an administrative and service centre.  Creating a more identifiable 
centre requires an enhanced retail, night time and visitor accommodation offer, 
increased promotional activities and improved bus and rail links. 

 Retail:  The current vogue for experiential shopping and the growth in online 
shopping are a challenge for the town centres.  Furthermore, the rationalisation of 
property portfolios by national banks is also of concern as the number of banks within 
the town centres reduces. 

 Connectivity: Many visitors travelling by train to Ystrad Mynach will arrive at the 
station without a sense of arrival as the relationship between the rail station and the 

Page 119



7 
 

town centre, and many local services such as the college and hospital is poor.  
Ystrad Mynach would benefit from a bus/train interchange, however there is limited 
scope in and around Ystrad Mynach Train Station to make new provision.  Whilst 
Nelson has a bus interchange, there is currently no passenger rail service to Nelson. 

 Funding: Many regeneration schemes will need to be supported by grant funding, 
which is limited. The loss of EU funding as a result of Brexit will reduce the 
opportunities for funding bids.  It is unclear at this stage how this will be offset by the 
UK Government.  

 Night time economy:  The current night time economy in Ystrad Mynach is poor, 
comprising mostly take-aways and a few pub/restaurants.  Whilst there is a bingo 
hall, there is no regular evening entertainment within the area such as a cinema or 
bowling complex and only a limited number of restaurants.  Nelson, however, has a 
better family offer of restaurants.  

 Parking: There are car parks serving both Ystrad Mynach and Nelson.  At Ystrad 
Mynach Town Centre there is a pay-and-display car park situated at the rear of 
Bedwlwyn Road.  In addition to the pay-and-display car parks there is limited on-
street free parking in the Bedwlwynlwywn Road / Penallta Road area, and parking in 
surrounding side streets is often in conflict with residents parking.   

At Nelson, there are three car-parks, all of which are free.  In addition there is limited 
on-street free parking in the Commercial Road area.  Again, parking in surrounding 
side streets is in conflict with residents parking.   

The lack of available parking within the centres is considered to have a significant 
impact upon potential footfall.   

There is insufficient car parking at both Hengoed and Ystrad Mynach Park and Ride 
facilities. 

  Housing:  Demand for housing is high within the Masterplan Area.  Due to the lack 
of a 5 year supply of land for housing (as required by national planning policy) the 
area is currently vulnerable to applications for housing on sites that are not allocated 
in the LDP. 

 Flood risk: A number of watercourses, including the River Rhymney, flow through 
the Masterplan Area and there are parts of the urban area that are at risk of flooding. 
National planning guidance promotes a precautionary approach when considering 
development proposals within areas at risk of flooding and this may constrain the 
development of some sites within the area.  
 

  

Page 120



8 
 

Section 5: The Development Strategy 
 
What should the Ystrad Mynach Masterplan be aiming for? 
 
5.1 In order to deliver the Vision and Strategic Objectives, it is important to set out the 

development strategy in relation to the key land uses within the Masterplan area, 
having regard for the strategy of the adopted LDP, regional aspirations and the 
opportunities and challenges that form the context. The site specific delivery of the 
Masterplan is set out in Section 6.  

Employment 
 
5.2 The employment sites identified in the adopted LDP within the Masterplan area 

(Dyffryn, Tredomen and the Dwr Cymru Welsh Water Business Parks, and Penallta 
and Tiryberth Industrial Estates) should continue to be protected.  Further allocated 
sites exist at Ty Du and Dyffryn Business Park North and South and these continue 
to be key sites for employment opportunities.  Land north of Cwm Calon was 
originally put forward as a mixed-use site, residential and employment, however the 
site has since been developed for residential development. 

5.3 The Masterplan seeks to build on the area as a Business District.  It seeks to allocate 
additional land for employment at Tredomen to allow for expansion of the successful 
prestige business park, and to maximise employment opportunities at new and 
existing Metro hubs at Nelson, Tredomen and Ystrad Mynach.  It is envisaged this 
will be through the provision of new office and commercial development that meet the 
needs of modern businesses.   

5.4 There is also opportunity to maximise the full development potential of the lower part 
of Ystrad Mynach by the redevelopment of units on Caerphilly Road Industrial Estate.  
New fit for purpose units will create business and employment opportunities in this 
prominent location at the southern gateway to the town.   

 

Leisure 
 
5.5 There are a number of key formal and informal open spaces and facilities protected 

for leisure uses, and opportunities should be explored to maximise the potential of 
these areas for recreation and community benefit.  

5.6 Within Ystrad Mynach, the Centre for Sporting Excellence complex is a state of the 
art sporting facility.  There is opportunity to expand the existing facility to create a 
‘Sport Village’ incorporating Ystrad Mynach Park, a new indoor sports building, a 
tennis arena and an additional large spectator stand to improve capacity at the 
existing facility. 

5.7 The Adopted LDP seeks to protect Country Parks and the Masterplan identifies 
opportunities to expand facilities at Parc Penallta and Nelson Wern Woodland Park. 

 
Transport  
 
5.8 Opportunities to encourage active travel through improved pedestrian and cycle 

routes are important and the Masterplan will consider the improvements identified as 
part of the Active Travel Integrated Network Map. In addition to this, the inability of 
the rail services to carry bicycles, particularly at peak times, means that cycling to 
work using rail is generally not a viable option. The masterplan will need to consider 
improving provision for secure cycle parking and possibly the introduction of an on-

Page 121



9 
 

street/at station bike hire facility to allow cyclists to leave bikes and use hire bikes to 
facilitate their movement by rail. 

5.9 The South East Wales Metro is fundamental to the improvement of public transport 
and the Masterplan will look to exploit opportunities to create jobs and improve the 
facilities at the town’s primary metro hub at Ystrad Mynach. It would also look to 
provide new metro hubs at Nelson and Tredomen and to maximise park and ride 
opportunities at existing and proposed new stations. 

5.10 There is a need for a parking strategy within the town centre to ensure that there is 
sufficient parking in the right locations to support the Vision for the area.  

 
Retailing 
 
5.11 Retailing is fundamental to the role and function of town centres, and a major source 

of employment.  The Masterplan area comprises the Principal Town of Ystrad 
Mynach and the Local Centre of Nelson along with the residential areas of Hengoed, 
Gelligaer and Penpedairheol.   

- Ystrad Mynach – The main shopping provision comprises two national 
supermarkets and over 80 other commercial units.   

- Nelson – Comprises a small supermarket and a range of small shops. 

- Neighbourhood retailing - in accordance with national and local planning policy, 
the strategy does not promote the provision of major retail development outside 
of designated retail areas, but the development of smaller retail units to support 
local needs is a key part of promoting sustainable development.  

 
5.12 Both Ystrad Mynach and Nelson have potential to expand the retail offer. 

 
Tourism 
 
5.13 Within the Masterplan area there is a mix of ‘heritage’ and ‘rural’ attractions.  

Llancaiach Fawr Manor is one of the three main tourist attractions in the County 
Borough.  Other attractions include Parc Penallta and the Centre for Sporting 
Excellence.  Increasing the sport and leisure offer at the Centre for Sporting 
Excellence to allow for a larger range of representative fixtures to be hosted could 
have significant tourism benefits for the area. 

5.14 The Masterplan seeks to expand the tourism offer to encourage day visitors to stay 
longer and spend more in businesses within Ystrad Mynach and the wider area.  It 
also seeks to explore new opportunities for additional accommodation within the area 
so that visitors have options to stay for short breaks.  

5.15 There is also the potential to exploit the strong activity tourism market in South Wales 
through the provision of appropriate accommodation and facilities within the 
Masterplan area. 

 
Residential  
 
5.16 The adopted LDP strategy for the Northern Connections Corridor promotes 

sustainable development that focuses development on both brownfield and greenfield 
sites that take account of the social and economic functions of the area.   

5.17 This strategy has proved successful within the wider Ystrad Mynach area, particularly 
the former Penallta Colliery site which has seen the reclamation of a significant 

Page 122



10 
 

brownfield site and the provision of a prestige residential development.  Some of the 
listed buildings associated with the former colliery site have been partially converted 
for housing, but further opportunities exist for the conservation-led and sensitive 
conversion of these protected buildings as well as for new development opportunities 
within the site.  

5.18 The dwellings approved on the former Greenhill Primary School site are currently 
under construction.  Further brownfield sites remain, including the Partmart site at Tir-
y-berth, land east of the Handball Court in Nelson and land at New Road, Ystrad 
Mynach.   

5.19 Planning permission has recently been granted for approximately 200 dwellings 
along with 3.8ha of employment units on land at Ty Du, Nelson.  This hugely 
significant development is identified in the Masterplan.   

5.20 The Masterplan acknowledges that there is development pressure on land outside 
the settlement boundaries of the Masterplan Area.  The suitability of any site will 
need to be considered on its merits, having regard to all planning considerations 
including the sustainability of the location and the need for additional housing.  

Natural Environment 

5.21 It is recognised that the Masterplan Area comprises a unique and diverse landscape 
with a rich natural heritage. There is also a network of important open spaces within 
the urban areas. The natural setting of Ystrad Mynach and the other communities, 
and the proximity to both Parc Penallta and Nelson Wern Woodland Park, is a 
positive asset that can provide tourism opportunities and is highly valued by its 
residents. The Local Authority has a duty under the Environment (Wales) Act to 
maintain and enhance biodiversity and promote the resilience of ecosystems and this 
will be a key consideration in the preparation of detailed proposals. There are policies 
within the LDP that seek to protect the important features of the natural environment 
and maintain key open spaces, as well as protecting the water environment. These 
policies do not preclude development, but ensure that appropriate development is 
allowed where there will not be an unacceptable impact. 

Renewable Energy 

5.22 The opportunities to incorporate renewable technologies within development 
proposals will be encouraged where appropriate. The development of electric 
charging points for vehicles within the Masterplan Area will be explored.   

5.23 Bryn Group Waste Management and Recycling facility is located within the 
Masterplan area.  It’s Anaerobic Digestion (AD) plant assists in making a meaningful 
contribution to the Welsh Government’s target to generate 70% of its electricity from 
renewable sources by 2030 and achieve an 80% reduction in CO2 levels by 2050 
(against 1990 levels). The AD plant plays a key role in receiving green and food 
waste collected from local residents in Caerphilly CBC and currently produces 1MW 
every hour of renewable electricity, which is utilised on site and sent to the National 
Grid which supplies electricity to South Wales. This is equivalent to powering 2,500 
homes 24/7 for a whole year. 

5.24 The facility is also linked to research projects with South Wales University which seek 
to maximise efficiencies in renewable energy generation, support energy security and 
maximise job opportunities in the sector.  Education and welfare facilities are being 
promoted at the site. 

5.22  

  

Page 123



11 
 

 

Section 6: The Masterplan Framework 
 
This section sets out the site specific projects and proposals that will collectively deliver the 
Vision and Objectives.  Many of the projects are inter-related, and therefore implementation 
of some projects may be reliant on other proposals progressing sequentially or concurrently.  
 
A PROVIDE THE CONDITIONS TO STRENGTHEN BUSINESS GROWTH AND 

CAPITALISE ON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES 
 

 There are excellent opportunities to transform Ystrad Mynach into a key sub-regional 6.1
economic hub that is capable of supporting local communities within the Masterplan 
Area.  The potential exists to capitalise on the presence of major services and 
facilities as well as exploiting Ystrad Mynach’s position as the county borough’s 
administrative centre.  

 There is huge potential to expand and enhance the role of Ystrad Mynach as a key 6.2
business district, maximising existing and future employment opportunities. 

 Figure 2 identifies the employment opportunities in the Masterplan area. In addition to 6.3
the jobs created on these sites, the development of new housing, retail, offices and 
other infrastructure across the Masterplan area will create jobs in the construction 
industry and support the local supply chain.  Many of these jobs will be within the 
foundational economy, which will support the objectives set out within the 
Regeneration Strategy.  

 

Figure 2: Employment Opportunities 

 
  

Page 124



12 
 

A-1 Tredomen Business Park  
 

 Tredomen Business Park is located on the eastern edge of Ystrad Mynach.  It is a 6.4
prestige office/business park complex comprising a modern, multi-storey office 
complex for the Council, and three high quality business centres for private sector 
use.  Tredomen Business and Technology Centre, Tredomen Gateway and 
Tredomen Innovation and Technology Centre offer some 4,300m2 of serviced 
business space, a scale and quality of accommodation, which has no equivalent 
elsewhere in Caerphilly.  In particular it offers small business offices that are not 
readily available elsewhere in the Mid Valleys Corridor. 

 The site’s location just off the strategic highway network along the A472 links it 6.5
directly to the A470, thereby giving it a strategic advantage.   It is also in close 
proximity to the existing public transport network, specifically the Ystrad Mynach 
Station and Park and Ride facility.  In the longer term, it is located directly adjacent to 
the Cwmbargoed rail line between Ystrad Mynach and Dowlais Top which could be 
reinstated to a passenger line as part of the Metro and which has been highlighted as 

an area that would benefit from a dedicated Metro halt.   

 There is an opportunity to expand on the success of the business park by developing 6.6
privately owned agricultural land to the north west for employment use.  A future 
phase on land on the edge of the settlement boundary to provide an area measuring 
4.3 Ha in total, should be considered through review of the LDP, see Figure 3. 

Development principles 

 Construction of affordable, sustainable, low carbon office development. 

 Develop serviced and managed office space in units of between 100-200 sq ft for 
new start ups and 300-500 sq ft for growth businesses, with the latest broadband 
connections. 

 Support and develop new enterprises by expanding the ICE model throughout 
the county borough, promoting and encouraging start up businesses and growing 
local business. 

 Explore provision of support services such as crèche facilities and food and 
beverage outlets. 

 Attract commuters to new modes of transport via the provision of a new Metro 
Halt. 

 Create pedestrian links between Tredomen Business Park and Parc Penallta. 
 

  

Page 125



13 
 

Figure 3: Expansion of Tredomen Business Park 

 

  

Page 126



14 
 

A-2 Ty Du, Nelson 
 

 Nelson is a key settlement within the Masterplan area strategically located on the 6.7
A472 corridor, close to the A470.  The Ty Du site represents a significant regional 
development opportunity with considerable potential economic and social benefits. 

Development principles   

 Provision of a mixed use, sustainable development. 

 Development of 3.8 Ha of employment land. 

 Construction of 200 new homes (including affordable housing) within a 
landscaped environment.  

 Opportunity to provide improvements to the road layout. 

 Opportunity to provide for Green Infrastructure within the site. 

 Explore potential for redevelopment of Co-Op Store and the filling station as 
part of the scheme. 

 Longer term there is potential to further expand the site to include additional 
land to the east and/or west for development to include hotel and leisure 
provision, subject to a future review of the LDP.   

 Given the excellent location, close to the A470, a budget hotel chain should 
be encouraged to the area to capitalise on the many attractions and 
employment sites. 
 

 
Figure 4: Ty Du 

 

  

Page 127



15 
 

A-3 Coopers Court, Caerphilly Road 
 

6.8 A key redevelopment opportunity lies at Coopers Court which is situated in a 
prominent location at the southern entrance to Ystrad Mynach, see Figure 5.  The 
site comprises a mix of commercial buildings and businesses.  Former dilapidated 
units have recently been demolished and replaced with a terrace of modern 
replacement units at the southern end of Coopers Court.  The remaining buildings 
are disjointed and do not provide an attractive gateway into Ystrad Mynach. 

Development principles   

- Construction of replacement bespoke, environmentally friendly employment units at 
the southern end of the site. 

- Long term opportunity to redevelop or refurbish the remaining units to maximise the 
potential of this key site located at the southern gateway into Ystrad Mynach. 

 
Figure 5: Coopers Court 

 

 

 

  

Page 128



16 
 

A-4 3 Dyffryn Business Park 

 

 The 40 Ha Dyffryn Business Park is allocated / protected for employment use.  It is 6.96.8
situated at a prime location adjacent to the A469 and is within close proximity of 
Ystrad Mynach Station.  The Park comprises a number of units of various age, size 
and condition operating predominantly B Class uses.  Opportunities exist to refocus 
attention on the current infrastructure on the estate to create an attractive 
environment for further investment. 

 There are two areas of undeveloped land within the estate 6.106.9

 Figure 6 identifies both areas within Dyffryn Business Park. 6.116.10

 

Development principles 

 Develop land to accommodate either expansion by an existing employer or cater for 
a new large employer. 

 Provide infrastructure and environmental enhancements. 

 Establish linkages between Business Park and Ystrad Mynach Station. 
 
Figure 65: Dyffryn Business Park 
 
 
 

  

Page 129



17 
 

B CREATE THE CONDITIONS FOR THE AREA TO BECOME A THRIVING METRO 
HUB 

 
 There is an excellent opportunity to transform Ystrad Mynach Station to create 6.126.11

an exceptional area that welcomes visitors, business people and residents alike, 
providing a high quality experience that conveys the character of this strategic hub.  It 
is important that stations within the area are attractive, accessible and offer a real 
alternative to private transport for residents. 

 Ystrad Mynach has become a strategic location for investment and growth.  6.136.12
There are proposals to build on the area as a Business District and to maximise 
employment opportunities.  As a result of this there is likely to be a significant 
increase in the demand for travel to, and within, Ystrad Mynach and the wider area. 
Therefore the availability of active travel and an accessible public transport network is 
critical to service this important centre. 

 Policy TR5.3 of the adopted LDP acknowledges that the A472 between 6.146.13
Ystrad Mynach and Nelson will see significant levels of economic and residential 
development.  The route is constrained by alignment and constriction problems and 
therefore improvement options for maintaining the efficiency of the route should be 
considered.  New facilities that reduce the level of traffic along the A472 corridor 
would have significant benefits, primarily by reducing journey times and reducing 
congestion. 

 The opportunity exists to deliver public transport improvements that are in 6.156.14
accordance with, and supplement the delivery of the Metro.  Active travel 
improvements can further enhance and widen the scope of the Metro by providing 
local links to the strategic transport network, all of which can assist in delivering the 
Metro objectives.  

 The Caerphilly Basin Masterplan includes a proposal for a large park and ride 6.166.15
facility at Llanbradach, which has the potential to capture a significant amount of 
commuter traffic.  Whilst outside of the Masterplan Area, such a facility offers an 
alternative to the park and ride facilities at Ystrad Mynach or Hengoed. 

 

B-1 Ystrad Mynach Station  
 

 Ystrad Mynach Station is located in the centre of Ystrad Mynach within close 6.176.16
proximity of many services.  There are two platforms, one to the west of the railway 
line for passengers travelling north and one to the east of the railway line for 
passengers travelling south.  A recent station improvement programme has greatly 
improved the station waiting and ticket office facilities and provided lift access 
between the platforms.  However, the opportunity exists to transform the current 
Ystrad Mynach Station into an accessible, inviting and welcoming space.   

 Physical and visual connectivity to and from the station requires significant 6.186.17
improvement.  The main entrance to the station, off Nelson Road, is poor for 
pedestrians.  The footpaths are not full width, and are particularly narrow in parts, 
and they do not run the whole length of the route leading to vehicular/pedestrian 
conflict.   

 At the junction with Nelson Road, there is a vacant building in a prominent 6.196.18
location.  Regeneration of this area would provide a more inviting gateway to Ystrad 
Mynach station and provide a better first impression for the many visitors arriving 
there, as well as improving the visual amenity of the area. The passenger rail bridge 
on Nelson Road would benefit from some up-lighting to improve its visual impact.   

Page 130



18 
 

 Whilst there is some signage on Nelson Road at the junction with the station, 6.206.19
there is no signage on the platforms to direct visitors from the station to the many 
major services and facilities within the town or to direct town centre visitors to the 
railway station.   

 Similarly, there is no signage on Caerphilly Road to direct visitors from the 6.216.20
hospital, police station or Centre of Sporting Excellence to the train station.  In fact, 
connectivity between the station and residential properties and services located to 
the east is very poor and greatly underused.  There are informal paths that lead into 
Ystrad Mynach Park and around to the Centre for Sporting Excellence and Coleg Y 
Cymoedd.  There is need for signage and for these to become a more formalised 
routes. 

 There is a significant opportunity to re-define the urban fabric, aligned to the 6.226.21
Metro place-making programme, to create a high quality area that provides positive 
experiences and improves the image of Ystrad Mynach as a place to visit and work. 

 

Development principles 

 Redevelopment of the entrance to the station, off Nelson Road, designed in 
accordance with the Metro Place Making Programme Principles. 

 To improve legibility between the station and Caerphilly Road, opportunities to 
improve and enhance existing pathways, including provision of suitable levels of 
lighting and the potential use of CCTV,  should be considered along together with 
new intuitive signage. 

 It is essential that direct active travel linkages between the metro hub and the town 
centre, services on Caerphilly Road and Tredomen Business Park should be 
incorporated or enhanced as part of any station redevelopment. 

 
B-2 Ystrad Mynach Extended Park and Ride facility 
 

 There is a major opportunity to provide an additional large park & ride facility 6.236.22
on land to the east of the existing station.  This has the potential to capture a 
significant proportion of commuter traffic, and could reduce the level of traffic 
travelling south to Cardiff.  Land east of the station can accommodate an additional 
park and ride facility that could provide capacity for an additional 120 vehicles.    

 
Development principles 
 

 Provision of 120 car parking spaces. 

 Additional parking to serve north-south and west-east public transport routes 
benefitting fully from Metro proposals for improvements to the Rhymney/Cardiff line 
and also any associated cross valley transport proposals, along the A472 highway 
network. 

 Repositioning of the school playing fields may be required to provide access to the 
proposed park and ride facility.  This affords the opportunity to deliver enhanced 
playing field provision.   

 The new park and ride facility should be carefully designed in accordance with the 
Metro Place Making Programme principles. 

 The park and ride provision and associated access should be designed with integral, 
high-quality landscaping to soften the street scene and make provision for 
pedestrians and cyclists. 
  

Page 131



19 
 

 Figure 7 identifies potential opportunities at Ystrad Mynach Station. 6.246.23

 

Figure 7 6 Ystrad Mynach Station  

 
 

Page 132



20 
 

 
 

Page 133



21 
 

 
 
 
 
B-3 Hengoed Extended Park and Ride facility 

Page 134



22 
 

 
 There is insufficient Park and Ride provision at Hengoed Station.  6.256.24

Opportunities should be explored to provide additional car parking spaces to capture 
a larger proportion of commuter traffic, and reduce the level of traffic travelling south 
to Cardiff.   

 
B-4 Reinstatement of the Cwmbargoed Line for Passenger Services  
 

 A major opportunity exists to reopen Cwmbargoed Line for passenger 6.266.25
transport.  This will provide a direct, dedicated transport link through Ystrad Mynach 
and Nelson, providing enhanced access from the west to Ystrad Mynach.  The line, if 
reopened, could serve the major residential area of Nelson as well as the business 
area at Tredomen. Whilst outside the Masterplan area, the opportunity also exists to 
extend the line to Dowlais Top in Merthyr, providing a direct link from Ystrad Mynach 
to Merthyr. 

Development principles 

 Reinstatement of the Cwmbargoed Line for passenger transport to improve 
connectivity and increase accessibility between Nelson, Ystrad Mynach and the 
wider county borough as well as the South East region.  This will facilitate further 
development opportunities and drive economic growth within the area. 

 New halts should be considered at Nelson and Tredomen. 

 The Tredomen Halt would be located adjacent to Tredomen Business Park, providing 
direct access to significant employment opportunities. 

 Added impetus is now in place to introduce a rail halt at Nelson.  The proposed 
development at Ty Du and the potential for passenger rail service between Ystrad 
Mynach and Dowlais Top both help identify and promote Nelson as a perfect location 
for a new halt.  A new station would be located to the east of Nelson Local Centre, 
adjacent to the existing freight line.   

 Consideration should be given to providing a meaningful level of park and ride car 
parking spaces at Nelson.  The opportunity also exists for wider redevelopment of 
land at the new Nelson station to accommodate an element of retail and residential 
units. 

 All stations and halts will need to be designed in accordance with the Metro Place 
Making Programme. 

 In the interests of the visual amenity of the area, the existing bridge at Nelson Road 
should be enhanced with uplighting and new paintwork.  

 
  

Page 135



23 
 

 Figure 8 identifies potential rail improvements. 6.276.26

 

Figure 87: Rail Opportunities 

 

 
B-5 Regional Bus Network 
 

 As part of the Metro improvements, the potential for Regional Bus Rapid 6.286.27
Transport would improve connectivity between all urban areas, particularly east to 
west along the A472 corridor, and increase access to employment opportunities in 
the local and wider region. 

 
B-6 Cycle Parking Facilities  
 

 The strategy seeks to ensure that the town and local centres, employment 6.296.28
and business centres and transport hubs are accessible by sustainable forms of 
transport.  Whilst the Metro caters for strategic travel, a significant amount of 
journeys will require additional travel to reach their final destination. The strategy 
seeks that movement from Metro hubs and within the Masterplan area is undertaken 
through active travel measures and this is most likely to be done through cycle travel. 
Given this, there is a need to deliver safe, secure and convenient cycle parking 
facilities at all transport hubs, within the town centre and employment and business 
centres in order to facilitate this movement. This should be coordinated on a regional 
basis so that the offer is coordinated.  

 

Development principles 

 New developments should ensure that they provide appropriate cycle parking 
facilities that can meet both current and future demand. 

Page 136



24 
 

 Provision should be made at all transport hubs, particularly at Ystrad Mynach where 
provision will serve multiple uses. 

 Provision should be easily accessible, easy to locate and conveniently located to the 
destination to encourage use. 

 It should also be safe, secure and be visible to ensure surveillance. 

 Provision should be connected to existing active travel routes wherever possible. 

 For short duration parking (town centres etc.) sufficient parking should be provided to 
ensure that space is consistently available. 

 For long duration parking (employment centres, commuting etc.) provision should be 
covered to provide protection from the elements. 

 Provision should be regularly monitored, maintained and managed to ensure its 
attractiveness is retained. 

 The design and location of the provision should ensure compatibility with other users 
and uses. 

 Consideration should also be given to providing facilities for safely storing ancillary 
accessories, such as helmets and lights. 

 
B-7 Cycle Hire Scheme 
 

 Whilst the Metro will address longer distance travel, there is a need to ensure 6.306.29
that, once off the principal Metro routes, people can continue journeys within the 
Masterplan Area by sustainable means.  A key issue for this travel is that it is 
currently difficult to carry bikes on trains at peak hours and there is limited, if any, 
potential for bus services to carry bikes.   

 Cycling, however, has a hugely important role to play in tackling issues such 6.316.30
as congestion and pollution and therefore ways of exploiting this mode of transport 
need to be considered.  Whilst the improved Metro rail service will accommodate 
some cycle storage, this will need to be supplemented to provide an efficient and 
effective transport system.  One option for this is the provision of a bike-sharing/hire 
scheme.   This would require an integrated system of hire points at key destinations, 
such as major employment areas as well as at the transport hubs (Caerphilly County 
Borough Council’s version of the Boris Bikes scheme in London2).   

 
Development principles 

 Consideration should be given to the setting up of a bike-sharing / hire scheme 
throughout the Masterplan area, with facilities provided at significant destinations, 
transport hubs and the town centre. This should also include electric bikes. 

 Consideration be given to linking the bike hire facilities to existing cycle related uses, 
e.g. cycle hire at cycle parking facilities. 

 The scheme should ensure that there are appropriate facilities located at 
destinations, including employment sites, to encourage use and reduce cost. 

 
Other Active Travel Measures 
 

 The adopted LDP identifies a number of improvements to radial routes within 6.326.31
the Masterplan area that will improve community access and provide walking and 
cycling links to public transport, tourism, locations, employment areas and other key 
attractors.  

                                                
2
 https://tfl.gov.uk/modes/cycling/santander-cycles 

Page 137



25 
 

 Many of the LDP proposals are also identified as part of the Caerphilly Active 6.336.32
Travel Integrated Network Map, which includes 21 schemes designed to increase 
connectivity and accessibility throughout Ystrad Mynach and the wider area. These 
measures seek to address active travel issues in the short term.  However, an 
ongoing programme of improvements will be required to address future issues as 
they arise from the redevelopment and growth of the strategic hub.  

 It is recognised that the increased use of electric bikes offers a realistic 6.346.33
alternative mode of travel over longer distances for a wider section of the population. 
The extension of, and linkages to, the National Cycle Network and routes suitable for 
electric bikes will be encouraged. 

 There is a need to encourage users of the Taff Trail to travel to Ystrad 6.356.34
Mynach and the wider area via National Cycle Network Route 47 which meets the 
Taff Trail at Quakers Yard.   

 
New Links 
 

 This strategy identifies a number of significant development opportunities that 6.366.35
will require links to ensure that the need to travel generated from growth can be 
accommodated sustainably. 

 
Development principles 
 

 Areas of significant new growth should include active travel proposals that would 
ensure that sites are linked, as directly and efficiently as possible, to both Ystrad 
Mynach Town centre and Nelson Local Centre, Ystrad Mynach station and all local 
Metro hubs. 

 Active travel measures should complement and enhance existing routes. 
  

Page 138



26 
 

C MODERNISE AND DEVELOP YSTRAD MYNACH INTO A THRIVING BUSINESS 
AND COMMERCIAL CENTRE 

 
 The Principal Town of Ystrad Mynach has become a strategic location for 6.376.36

investment and growth.  It has increased in importance in recent years as a key 
business district and the location for vital public services.  The area needs to ensure 
that it continues to attract investment so that it can become a key sub-regional 
economic hub that is capable of supporting local communities. 

 Ystrad Mynach needs to further promote its identity and exploit its position as 6.386.37
the County Borough’s administrative centre and exploit the location of major services 
and facilities.  In order to create a more identifiable centre there is a need to build and 
enhance the Town Centre offer, improve the night time economy and increase the 
visitor accommodation offer. 

C-1 Ystrad Mynach Town Centre 

 There is limited scope for physical expansion of the Town Centre, however, in 6.396.38
order to create a more identifiable centre there is a need to build and enhance the 
Town Centre offer.  The town centre already boasts a number of unique independent 
retailers and it is this type of use that should be encouraged to create a niche 
shopping and service centre which would attract nearby residents, visitors and the 
many employees based in and around the area, to spend money in the town centre.  

 However, and to address the challenge of online shopping, there is a need to 6.406.39
consider other, diverse uses within the town centre.  Offices and services enhance 
and contribute to the vibrancy of a town centre.  Town Centre policies and 
boundaries will be considered through review of the LDP. 

 It is important to consider how the night time economy can support the growth 6.416.40
of Ystrad Mynach.  There are a number of family friendly pubs that serve food in and 
around the Town Centre.  There is however a need to expand the range of 
restaurants and eateries as these are fundamental to enhancing Ystrad Mynach’s 
role as a business and visitor destination.Whilst there are a few pubs that serve food 
in and around the Town Centre there is a limited range of restaurants and family 
friendly eateries which are fundamental to enhancing Ystrad Mynach’s role as a 
business and visitor destination. Exploiting the popular café culture, encouraging 
tables and chairs outside will develop a more continental atmosphere prolonging 
dwell time. 

 It is recognised that there is the potential for conflict between town centre 6.426.41
residents and expanded town centre provision for food and drink establishments 
linked to anti-social behaviour, noise or odour.  The Council’s Planning, 
Environmental Health and Licensing functions will ensure that the appropriate 
protection is given to the amenity of residents when considering the appropriateness 
of proposals for specific sites or properties.  

 There is often traffic congestion, particularly around the bus stop located on 6.436.42
Bedwlwyn Road.  Repositioning of the bus stop and strict enforcement of short term 
on-street parking would alleviate congestion whilst an amended traffic flow, i.e. a one 
way system that directs traffic through the town centre, may increase spend within 
town centre businesses.     

 Figure 9 8 identifies the Town Centre boundary. 6.446.43

Development Principles 

 The Pierhead Building occupies a prominent location, the key building is 
broadly triangular in shape.  The rear elevation backs on to Jones Arcade and 
there are glazed elevations fronting both Bedwlwyn Road and Penallta Road.  

Page 139



27 
 

The building is at a higher level than the road and is surrounded by an 
attractive terrace area.  Whilst the building in its current state is not fulfilling its 
potential, the building would lend itself to a café/restaurant use with some 
outside seating. 

 Jones Arcade is a traditional arcade with opportunity for shops to display their 
goods.  These units are suitable for sale of foods, including fruit and veg and 
would be an ideal location for the sale of local or farm produce. 

 There is a need to further exploit the Beech Tree Hotel, a substantial building 
situated in a highly prominent location within the Town Centre.There is a need 
to exploit the Beech Tree Hotel, a substantial building situated in a prominent 
location, by the expansion of facilities to provide quality meals, entertainment, 
outdoor seating and town centre accommodation.   

 The former Natwest Bank building is another key building which is currently 

unoccupied.  Bringing the building back into beneficial use would have 
significant benefits for the town centre and will be sought at the earliest 
opportunity..The former Natwest Bank building is another key building which 

is currently unoccupied.  Liaison with Welsh Government and Natwest Bank is 
essential to accelerate the sale process and encourage a new business into 
the town centre. 

 Opportunities should be exploited to expand the night time economy within 
and around the existing town centre.  Licensed cafe/bars with an extended 
evening offer would attract visitors and residents to spend time and money in 
the town centre.   

 Encourage ‘Pop Up Units’ to encourage new businesses and concepts within 
the town centre to improve the vibrancy and vitality of the area and generate 
footfall. 

 Promote the ‘Pop Up Galleries’ initiative where temporary displays of photos 
and artwork are displayed in vacant units to improve visual amenity and make 
the vacant units more appealing to potential tenants. 

 Better utilise Siloh Square for events and activities. 

 Ystrad Mynach Principal Town Centre policies and boundary should be re-
considered as part of the Review of the LDP. 

 Consider repositioning of bus stops and an amended traffic flow system 
around the town centre. 

 
C-2 Enhanced Parking Facilities 

 

 Whilst it is envisaged that the enhancements to public transport as part of the Metro 6.44
will increase the number of people travelling to Ystrad Mynach by public transport, 
there is still a need for car parking to serve the town centre. The availability of quality 
parking in the right locations, and the management of traffic around the town centre, 
will plays a key role in the perception and attractiveness of the town centre and in 
turn is a fundamental element in increasing footfall.   

  6.45

6.46 As part of any further traffic management schemes the following issues need to be 
considered: It will be necessary for a car parking plan to be prepared to address the 
following key elements: 

- The likely increase in footfall in the town centre and the number and location of car 
parking  spaces that will be required to cater for it; 

- Innovative parking solutions should be considered to maximise the use of land.  

Page 140



28 
 

- The need for, and level of, parking charges and methods of payment. Parking 
charges are a major disincentive and the introduction of charging will need to be 
carefully considered against the regeneration objectivesCharges are a disincentive to 
using car parks so the need for charging, the level of charge and the processes for 
payment will need to be carefully considered against the regeneration objectives; 

- Balance Balancing the need for residents only parking with the need for short term 
parking to serve local businesses; 

- The strict enforcement of residents only parking areas to deter illegal parking. 
Caerphilly County Borough Council is set to take over Civil Parking Enforcement 
Duties in April 2019. It is likely that Civil Parking Enforcement will be introduced in 
2019; 

- Opportunities for electric vehicle charging points within existing or proposed parking 
areas should be identified. 

 

  

Page 141



29 
 

C-3 Land North of The Royal Oak 

 A key redevelopment opportunity lies within the triangular site south of Central 6.476.46
Street, north of The Royal Oak public house.  There is currently a mix of commercial 
uses operating from the site.  However, the whole area is disjointed and unsightly, 
whilst being site is highly visible from the strategic A472 which runs immediately 
adjacent to the western boundary of the site. The area needs comprehensive 
redevelopment to improve its appearance and its functionality.  

Development Principles 

 Longer term, the comprehensive redevelopment of this site would improve the visual 
richness and maximise the potential of this key site in such a prominent location.  

 

 

Figure 98: Ystrad Mynach Town Centre 

 

 

  

Page 142



30 
 

C-4 Land north of Dyffryn Business Park 

 The site is in an excellent location, adjacent to a key vehicular gateway to 6.486.47
Ystrad Mynach and well positioned to serve the Business Parks and many services 
within Ystrad Mynach.   Development of this area of land for a hotel and public house 
offers a real opportunity to increase the tourism offer within Ystrad Mynach which will 
in turn increase visitor spend and provide job opportunities in the service sector.  
Whilst this is contrary to the Adopted LDP, such uses should be considered as part of 
the review of the LDP. 

Development Principles 

 Subject to the review of the LDP, the site would lend itself to a budget hotel which 
could cater for business trips as well as increase the length of stay of visitors who 
have visited an attraction within the area. 

 The site could also accommodate a much needed family pub and restaurant which 
would attract visitors and also extend the length of stay of visitors to the area. 

 The site is ideally based for a complementary restaurant or coffee shop with a drive 
through facility. 

 
Figure 109: Land north of Dyffryn Business Park 
 

 

  

Page 143



31 
 

D CREATE AN EXEMPLARY SPORT, LEISURE AND EDUCATION CLUSTER 
 

 The Centre for Sporting Excellence is the county borough’s flagship sporting 6.496.48
facility.  Opportunity exists to expand the existing site and create world class facilities 
to allow the centre to hold bigger events and international matches increasing its 
positive impact on Ystrad Mynach and creating spin off impacts for the foundational 
economy. 

 The surrounding land which includes a multiplicity of uses, offers opportunity 6.506.49
to expand the existing Centre for Sporting Excellence facilities to create a Sport 
Village. 

 

Figure 1110: Existing Facilities 

 

 

D-1 Centre for Sporting Excellence and surrounding land 

 The site should be the subject of a masterplan that will consider the best uses 6.516.50
for all of the land. 

 
Development principles 
 

 Creation of a multi-disciplinary Sports Village. 

 Increase seating capacity within existing Centre for Sporting Excellence from 
1,152 to 5,000 to create an inspirational facility that will attract and facilitate 
large scale local, regional and international age-grade and female rugby.  An 
increased capacity at the facility will support the growth of Welsh Rugby 
outside of the capital city by providing the ability to host wider scale 
international and other representative fixtures.  The ability to offer cultural 

Page 144



32 
 

events and / or concerts at the site would also be facilitated by the increased 
capacity. 

 Provision of an indoor full size Barn with a state of the art indoor 3G 
IRB22 playing surface.  This will support local, regional and national sport and 
will support and develop sporting opportunities through partnership working 
with Coleg Y Cymoedd, Coleg Gwent, the Welsh Rugby Union, the Football 
AssociatonAssociation of Wales, community clubs / organisations and the 
Newport Gwent Dragons.  

 Creation of a modern indoor tennis dome to offer international standard tennis 
facilities. 

 Provision of food and beverage outlets to improve the visitor offer. 

 Incorporation and enhancement of Ystrad Mynach Park to include a splash 
pad or water feature, outdoor gym equipment, toilet facilities and snack bar. 

 Encourage partnership working with Coleg Y Cymoedd to share resources. 

 Develop new courses Coleg Y Cymoedd to train key artisan skills, e.g. dry 
stone walling, landscaping, tree planting. 

 Exploit development opportunities at Coleg Y Cymoedd. 

 Allow for the expansion of Trinity Fields School and Resource Centre. 

 Improve the physical connectivity between the Cluster and Ystrad Mynach 
Town Centre and Ystrad Mynach Station. 

 Improve signage to signpost visitors between the facilities and Ystrad Mynach 
Town Centre and Ystrad Mynach Station. 

 Improve dialogue between the Centre for Sporting Excellence and local 
residents and local businesses, particularly within Ystrad Mynach Town 
Centre, to better promote events. 

 Enhance links with local hospitality and accommodation providers. 

 Potential base for cycle hire. 
  

Page 145



33 
 

E CREATE A VIBRANT AND ACCESSIBLE VISITOR DESTINATION 
 

 There is an excellent opportunity to transform the Masterplan area to create 6.526.51
an exceptional tourist destination along with a diverse range of accommodation, 
thriving retail centres and strong day and night time economies.   

 The Masterplan area boasts a number of heritage and rural attractions, see 6.536.52
Figure 12, as well as the flagship Centre for Sporting Excellence.  Whilst tourism is 
already a draw to the area, there is a need to develop the tourism offer to widen its 
appeal. 

 There are a number of key initiatives throughout the area that could:  6.546.53

 increase the benefits of heritage, rural and sporting attractions from a tourism 
perspective;  

 help raise the profile of the Masterplan area as a tourist destination;  

 increase expenditure in the area; increase the dwell time in the area; and,  

 create employment opportunities for local residents. 
 

Figure 1211: Tourism Attractions 

 

 

  

Page 146



34 
 

TOURISM ATTRACTIONS 

E-1 Llancaiach Fawr Manor 

 
 Llancaiach Fawr Manor is one of the three main tourist attractions in the 6.556.54

county borough.  It is comprised of the restored Manor House, the Visitor centre, an 
education block and a large area of open land. The Grade I Listed Building was 
designed to be easily defended during the turbulent reigns of Tudor kings and 
queens and is one of the finest examples of a semi-fortified manor in Wales today. 
The Manor has recently been fully restored with a new stairway and lift added to the 
rear to increase accessibility for visitors.  It currently operates as a living museum. 
The Visitor Centre contains a café and provides a large hall that hosts events. The 
education block is a set of purpose built teaching and learning rooms used for 
schools and other educational needs.   

 The adjacent open area is used for occasional events, such as the 6.566.55
Eisteddfod, which was held here in 2016.   

 It is an excellent attraction, hosting a wide range of events and functions 6.576.56
including Ghost Tours, the Bedwellty Agricultural Show (which showcases rural 
enterprise and culture across the county borough and beyond) and functions such as 
weddings and conferences.  However, there is a need to develop overnight 
accommodation on or near to the site to strengthen the tourism offer and increase the 
attractiveness of the venue for functions and events.   

 The site would lend itself to a high end boutique/independent hotel which 6.586.57
would reinforce the attraction as a regionally significant tourist and heritage 
destination as well as accelerate business growth in and around the Masterplan area. 

 There is also opportunity to provide some form of hut/pod style 6.596.58
accommodation or glamping. 

Development Principles 

 Provision of a high end boutique/independent hotel comprising characterful, 
individually decorated rooms in keeping with the period of the property, would 
increase the attractiveness of the venue for functions, including weddings and 
conferences and increase overnight stays. 

 Provision of pods or huts on the land adjacent to the east of the Manor House would 
also significantly improve the ‘staying’ visitor market within the region and boost 
footfall within the existing tourist attraction. 

 Further develop outbuildings to create a series of interpretative and educational 
facilities for visitors. 

 Increase the function and events programme to reinforce Llancaiach Fawr Manor as 
a regionally significant events venue. 

 
E-2 Llechwen Hall Hotel 

 The prestigious Llechwen Hall Hotel is located within but on the edge of the 6.606.59
Masterplan area.  Welsh Government investment of over £400,000 has recently been 
awarded to further develop the complex and provide a spa and leisure complex which 
will improve the performance of the facility and strengthen the tourism offer within the 
region. 

 However, its location just off the A470 means that many visitors will not even 6.616.60
travel through Caerphilly county borough.  There is a need, particularly in light of the 
proposed redevelopment, to promote this venue and also to promote greater 
awareness of other attractions within the Masterplan area to encourage linked visitor 
trips.  

Page 147



35 
 

E-3 Gelligaer Roman Fort 
 

 The remains of a Roman Fort (formerly Gaer Fawr) were discovered at 6.626.61
Gelligaer between 1899 and 1913 along with an elaborate system of bathhouses, 
pottery kilns and a cemetery.  The land lying adjacent to the site has been identified 
as a Roman parade ground.  Gaer Fawr is known to be where the stone fort was 
built, sometime during the first decade of the second century.  These remains are 
reputed to be the finest example of their type in Europe.   

 Work has been undertaken in the immediate area to highlight the importance 6.636.62
of the Roman Fort itself, including the installation of seating and interpretation and 
information panels for visitors. 

 Although the site is today used for the grazing of horses, the site is of 6.646.63
paramount importance in terms of the history and heritage of the Rhymney Valley. 

Development Principles 

 Increase the profile of the fort for residents and visitors alike 

 Expand interpretation facilities 

 Consider archaeological excavation  

 Include the fort along with other nearby historic attractions within a heritage trail 
 

Figure 1312: Gelligaer Roman Fort 

 

E-4 Valley Greyhound Track 

 The Valley Greyhound Stadium is a long established leisure facility located to 6.656.64
the south east of Ystrad Mynach.  Facilities at the site have recently been extended 
and improved and now comprise a greyhound racing track, a stadium comprising a 

Page 148



36 
 

clubhouse and a viewing area, an office building and toilet facilities.  A car park is 
located between the site and Tredomen Athletic Football Club to the east.   

 The greyhound track is claimed to be the only remaining one in Wales.  It is 6.666.65
ideally located to capitalise on the many visitors to the area and there is opportunity 
to expand and increase the potential of the site as a tourism destination.  
Furthermore, there is opportunity for spin-off between this site and potential hotel and 
restaurant development on adjacent land as identified in Figure 14. 

 

  Figure 1413: Valley Greyhound Track 

 

 

E-5 Events 

 There are a number of successful events within the Masterplan area each 6.676.66
year.  These include Bedwellty Agricultural Show, many events at Parc Penallta and 
the Penallta Park Run.  There is a need to increase connectivity between the events 
and the main centres to increase dwell time. 

  

Page 149



37 
 

E-6 Activity Tourism 

 Activity tourism is a key driver of the tourism industry in Wales and the 6.686.67
Masterplan area is well positioned to capitalise on this through the provision of 
accommodation and facilities to support walking, cycling, horse riding and mountain 
climbing.   National Cycle Network (NCN) Route 47 (Newport to Fishguard) travels 
through Ystrad Mynach and Nelson.  The area is also well placed to serve the 
mountain bike centres at Cwmcarn Forest Drive and Bike Park Wales in Merthyr 
Tydfil, the Rock UK climbing centre in Trelewis, the Mountain View Ranch and 
Rockwood Riding Centre, which are both located on Caerphilly Mountain. The 
provision of a wider range of accommodation, including lodges, camping and 
glamping, in appropriate locations within the Masterplan area should be encouraged 
and supported.   

 

E-7 Heritage Trail 

 A tourism trail that links the key sites and buildings of interest should be an 6.696.68
integral part of the tourism strategy. This should provide a link between Senghenydd 
Dyke, the Handball Court, Llancaiach Fawr Manor, Gelligaer Roman Fort, Gelligaer 
Common, Parc Penallta and Maesycwmmer Hengoed Viaduct, but also explore other 
places within the county borough such as Caerphilly Castle, National Mining 
Memorial and the Winding House. 

 

E-8 Tourist Accommodation 

 There is a distinct lack of tourist accommodation in the Masterplan area.  6.706.69
There is a need to develop sites for a diverse range of new accommodation to 
support the Metro hub, the maximised employment opportunities and the Sporting 
Village which will be attracting many visitors who are looking to stay in the area. 

 Existing tourist accommodation is provided by Llechwen Hall and two Guest 6.716.70
Houses, all situated around Nelson. 

 There is potential to significantly expand on the current offer with the following 6.726.71
proposals:- 

 Llancaiach Fawr Manor - boutique hotel and pods/huts 

 Land at Ty Du - budget chain hotel 

 Land north of Dyffryn Business Park - budget chain hotel 

 Parc Penallta - camping / glamping provision 

 

 

 

 

 
 
  

Page 150



38 
 

F MAXIMISE ENJOYMENT OF THE MANY GREEN ASSETS WITHIN AND 
SURROUNDING THE MASTERPLAN AREA 

 
 The Masterplan Area contains many green and open spaces and enhancing 6.736.72

and encouraging use of these areas can improve quality of life and promote 
wellbeing, as well as diversifying the tourism offer. 

 

F-1 Green Infrastructure  

 The benefits of Green Infrastructure, a network comprising a broad range of 6.746.73
green spaces and environmental features, cannot be underestimated, for users as 
well as for biodiversity and landscape.  Green Infrastructure includes parks and 
gardens, amenity space, natural and semi-natural green spaces and green corridors 
and includes allotments, cemeteries, churchyards and golf courses. 

Development principles 

 Preparation of a Green Infrastructure Strategy to comprise a 20 year programme 
for the integration, development and management of a network of green 
infrastructure, supported by a five year delivery and action plan. 

 Support and protect the natural environment and heritage of the area. 

 Ensure that green infrastructure is embedded into the design of new development 

 Development of the recreation offer 

 
Parks and Gardens 
 

 The Masterplan Area contains Parc Penallta and Nelson Wern Woodland 6.756.74
Park, see Figure 14, as well as a number of urban parks including Ystrad Mynach 
Park.  These areas have potential to be enhanced to improve both the tourism offer 
and the natural environment.   

 

 Figure 1514: Parc Penallta and Nelson Wern Woodland Park 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 151



39 
 

 

 

 

F-2 Parc Penallta 

 Facilities at the outstanding Parc Penallta include a healthy walking route, 6.766.75
way-marked trails, cycle routes, a small education centre, bridleway, public art and 
car parking as well as one of the UK’s largest figurative earth sculptures, ‘Sultan’ the 
pit pony.  The park is also designated a Dark Skies area for astronomy.    

 With already over 250,000 visitors a year the park can become a strong visitor 6.776.76
attraction that serves not only the local community but also the wider area.  
Opportunities exist to attract more visitors by improving the current experience. 

Development principles 

 Land has been identified at the entrance to Parc Penallta, off the strategic 
A472 for a new Visitor Centre.  Construction of a carbon neutral Visitor Centre 
would allow for education and additional events and provide the opportunity 
for promoting other attractions in the area. 

 Broadening the type of accommodation on offer is a potential commercial 
opportunity for tourism within the county borough and the increasing 
popularity of ‘glamping’ should be exploited by the introduction of glamping 
and camping facilities that would attract visitors and the much needed diverse 
range of accommodation would increase the length of stay of visitors to the 
area. 

 Improve connectivity with Ystrad Mynach Town Centre and Nelson Local 
Centre by exploring the potential for shuttle buses for, and during, events 

 Increase the number of events held at the Park and ensure all events are well 
promoted 

 Improve pedestrian links between Parc Penallta and Gelligaer and Nelson  

 Provide a landmark footbridge to provide direct access from the Park to 
Tredomen Business Park  

 Linking the historic landscapes with the Country Parks as part of themed 
walks 

 Walking on Water - Enhance board walks and ecological works on the lower 
levels of the Park 

 Social Climbing – establish various climbing features throughout the Park 

 Enhance existing fishing facilities 

 Explore opportunities such as zorbing 

 Explore renewable energy opportunities 

 Explore dog waste composting facilities 
 

 
F-3 Nelson Wern Woodland Park 
 

 Facilities include youth amenities such as a skatepark, BMX track, youth 6.786.77
shelter, a sports pitch and a modern play area.  These are combined with creative 
artwork, meadows and a diverse range of natural habitats.  There are opportunities to 
enhance the attractiveness of this already popular area. 

Development Principles 

 Improve pedestrian links between Nelson Wern Woodland Park and Parc 
Penallta to encourage visitor movement between the Parks. 

 Enhancements to the youth facilities  

Page 152



40 
 

 Upgrade the existing boardwalk over the wetland  

 Explore opportunities such as zorbing 

 Linking the historic landscapes with the Country Parks as part of themed 
walks 
 

 
Green Corridors 
 

 Green corridors include rivers and their banks, hedgerows, rights of way, 6.796.78
cycle routes, pedestrian paths and former transport routes (such as rail lines). There 
are a number of opportunities to improve the network of green corridors to provide 
enhanced walkways for locals and visitors...   

Development Principles 

 F-4 Completion of the Rhymney Riverside Walk to provide landscaped walkways 
with observation points. Provision of an outdoor gym along the route would 
increase usage and add interest. 

 F-5 Enhancement of the Rhymney Valley Ridgeway Walk that would take visitors 
from Parc Penallta to Gelligaer, Hengoed, Mynydd Eglwysilan as well as Parc 
Cwm Darran, Caerphilly, Bedwas and Rudry. 

 F-6 Greater promotion of the Gren Way would attract visitors to view Gren’s 
famous images including Maesycwmmer Hengoed Viaduct.   

 
 Figure 1615: Walks 

 
 
Amenity Greenspace 
 

F-7 Common Land 

 Eglwysilan Common is a unique and fascinating landscape with a wealth of 6.806.79
historic assets that need protecting including the Senghenydd Dyke and a range of 
bronze ageBronze Age burial sites. The landscape provides a vital green space that 
is used by walkers, cyclists and horse riders.  

Page 153



41 
 

 A part of the Gelligaer and Merthyr Common also falls within the Masterplan 6.816.80
area.  As a designated Historic Landscape, the common contains a range of 
important archaeological sites. As a popular area for walkers, cyclists and horse 
riders, the landscape provides a vital recreation area for residents and visitors.  This 
substantial swathe of countryside has potential to be a major component of the 
Valleys Regional Park. 

 

Development Principles 

 Enhancement of Common Land 

 Address issues across the landscape including fly-tipping, littering and illegal off road 
vehicles. 

 Protection of unique heritage assets.   
 

F-8 The Graig, Hengoed 

 The area known as The Graig is a green area situated on the east side of 6.826.81
Cylla Brook, east of Cwm Calon.  There is a footbridge crossing the brook allowing 
pedestrian access from Hengoed and Cefn Hengoed to Cwm Calon.  The hillside has 
suffered from fire damage during the summer months. There are potential 
opportunities for this attractive large area of land: 

Development Principles 

 Explore fire prevention methods such as planting and fire breaks to prevent the 
spread of fire, particularly near to houses. 

 Provide improved footpath/cycle links to connect Hengoed and Cefn Hengoed with 
the new footpath created at Cwm Calon.  This connects the area with Glyngaer to the 
north and will connect with Ystrad Mynach and the National Cycle Network to the 
south upon completion of the route.  This will allow access to employment 
opportunities at Penallta Industrial Estate and Tredomen Business Park as well as 
Ystrad Mynach Town Centre and Parc Penallta. 

 Provide improved footpath/cycle links to connect Hengoed and Cefn Hengoed with 
the new footpath created at Cwm Calon.  This connects the area with Glyngaer to the 
north and Ystrad Mynach and the National Cycle Network to the south, allowing 
access to employment opportunities at Penallta Industrial Estate and Tredomen 
Business Park as well as Ystrad Mynach Town Centre and Parc Penallta. 

  

Page 154



42 
 

G COMPLETE THE REGENERATION OF THE FORMER PENALLTA COLLIERY 
SITE 

 
 The former Penallta Colliery site is ideally located to support Ystrad Mynach 6.836.82

Town Centre and also to benefit from the excellent rail links and the many 
employment opportunities within the surrounding area.  A large proportion of the 
former colliery site has been redeveloped with a high quality housing development 
that includes a school.  Key opportunities still exist to complete the regeneration of 
the site with high quality conservation-led restoration. 

 The transformation of the site so far has seen the development of the 6.846.83
picturesque Parc Penallta and a pioneering Cwm Calon housing development 
scheme that incorporates listed buildings/structures and associated local amenities 
and infrastructure.   

 Permission has recently been granted for construction of 48 dwellings on land 6.856.84
adjacent to former colliery buildings. 

 There are two substantial listed buildings that have yet to be converted along 6.866.85
with an area of land outlined for commercial opportunity that has yet to be developed. 

 
Figure 176: Former Penallta Colliery 

 

 

 

 

G-1 and G-2 Conversion of the Power Hall and Bath House Building 

Page 155



43 
 

 The Power Hall and Bath House Building are two of the last listed buildings 6.876.86
that remain to be converted.  Both are substantial heritage assets with planning 
permission and listed building consent for conversion to residential units. 

 Given the prominent and strategic location, and the historic significance of the 6.886.87
buildings, the site offers a real opportunity to create a high quality mixed use 
development comprising housing along with employment uses.  There is scope to 
work with the private sector to accommodate mixed use proposals, breathing 
renewed life into this historic environment. 

Development Principles 

 Conversion of the remaining listed buildings for housing as well as retail and 
employment uses with a focus on entrepreneurship digital/technology hubs and 
workshops for smaller business.   

 Enabling the creation of a “live / work” environment and cluster, linked with broader 
skills development and training opportunities forged with the nearby further education 
college of Coleg Y Cymoedd. 

 
 

G-3 Land at Winding Wheel Lane 

 A triangular area of land located to the western edge of the Cwm Calon 6.896.88
development, dissected by Winding Wheel Lane, was identified in the original 
Masterplan for the Cwm Calon development as an area suitable for employment and 
retail uses ancillary to the new community.   

Development Principles 

 There is potential to create an innovative development in this prominent location 
within close proximity of the striking Winding Wheel Listed structures.  An example of 
such a development would be a small scale version of Bristol’s Wapping Wharf 
‘Cargo’3 utilising converted shipping containers.   

 Suitable uses might include a small food store, Public House, restaurant/café and 
takeaway.  Offices providing local services and employment opportunities would also 
be welcomed. 

 Such development would complete the regeneration of the former Penallta Colliery 
and engender a more sustainable and self-contained residential environment. 

  

                                                
3
 http://wappingwharf.co.uk/gallery/cargo/ 

Page 156



44 
 

H SUPPORT THE DEVELOPMENT OF HOUSING, INCLUDING AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING, ON BOTH BROWNFIELD AND GREENFIELD SITES IN 
SUSTAINABLE LOCATIONS 

 
 The strategy for the LDP promotes the development of new housing on both 6.906.89

brownfield and greenfield sites within the Masterplan area.  This has been 
successful, particularly with the development of the former Penallta Colliery, with a 
number of under-utilised sites having been developed in recent years.  Whilst these 
have made an important contribution to housing in the area, there remains a need for 
affordable housing. 

 There are a small number of brownfield sites that offer the opportunity for 6.916.90
housing or mixed use development incorporating an element of housing.  However, 
some of these sites have existing industrial uses which mean they are unlikely to be 
brought forward by the market without public sector intervention. 

 The key development opportunities on both greenfield and brownfield sites 6.926.91
within existing settlements in the Masterplan area and their indicative capacities are: 

 H-1 Ty Du, Nelson – permission has been granted for residential development 
of up to 200 dwellings including approximately 50 affordable homes, and the 
development of 3.8 Ha employment units along with public open space and 
landscaping;  

 H-2 Penallta Colliery – the majority of the site has been developed, potential 
for approximately 120 additional dwellings to be provided, including potential 
live/work units;  

 H-3 Tir-y-berth, Hengoed (Partmart) – 173 dwellings; 

 H-4 Land to the east of the Handball Court, Nelson – 90 units, potential for 
new railway station and retail development. 

 H-5 Land at New Road, Ystrad Mynach – 18 dwellings, potential for further 
expansion should be considered through review of the LDP. 

 H-6 Greenhill Primary School, Gelligaer – A mixed use site comprising a 
replacement primary school and 37 affordable houses. The school has been 
constructed and the dwellings are now under construction. 

 There is also development pressure for housing on the edge of settlements.   6.936.92

 Figure 18 identifies the position with regards to sites at the time the 6.946.93
masterplan was prepared, but it is recognised that additional windfall opportunities 
may be promoted by the development industry in the future.  Where planning 
applications are submitted, it is necessary to consider each application on its merits, 
having regard to planning policies, the need for housing and the sustainability of the 
location. 

 

  

Page 157



45 
 

Figure 1817: Housing 

 

 
  

Page 158



46 
 

I PROVIDE A SUITABLE LEVEL OF COMMUNITY LEISURE AND EDUCATION 
FACILITIES TO SUPPORT THE POTENTIAL LEVEL OF POPULATION AND 
HOUSING GROWTH WITHIN THE YSTRAD MYNACH STRATEGIC HUB 

 
COMMUNITY LEISURE 

 The Masterplan Area currently offers a large number of opportunities to 6.956.94
engage with physical activity including community centres and fixed play areas, 
supplemented by a number of (country) parks, cycle paths and outdoor sports areas. 

 New development will place additional pressure on facilities and therefore 6.966.95
more effective use of community leisure facilities is required.  

 The draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy sets out the future purpose 6.976.96
and direction for the provision of sport and active recreation within the county 
borough. 

 

SCHOOL PROVISION 

 The number of school aged children is expected to increase within the 6.986.97
Masterplan Area as a result of new development and it is important that there are 
opportunities for schools to expand to accommodate additional pupils. The Council 
has recently agreed in principle the provision of additional school places within Ystrad 
Mynach and the wider area subject to funding being confirmed for individual projects, 
business cases being approved by Welsh Government and the outcome of individual 
consultations will be considered as part of the 21st Century Schools programme. 

 The key proposals relating to the Masterplan Area are as follows:- 6.996.98

 I-1 Expansion of Trinity Fields School and Resource Centre to 
accommodate future demand and requirements of Additional Learning 
Needs Reform Bill.  

 I-2 Amalgamation of Llanfabon Infants School and Llancaeach Junior 
School will allow for expansion and refurbishment of the existing 
Llanfabon Infants School to create a fit for purpose, energy efficient 21st 
Century school with increased opportunities for community use and 
childcare provision. 

 

 

  

Page 159



47 
 

J ENSURE THAT ACCESSIBILITY FOR ALL IS EMBEDDED IN ALL 
IMPROVEMENT SCHEMES  

 
 Accessibility is a cross cutting objective, which is relevant to schemes 6.1006.99

identified within this plan. All development proposals should adhere to the principles 
of inclusive design to ensure that schemes meet the accessibility needs of all those 
living, working and visiting the Masterplan area, including those with mobility 
impairments, learning difficulties and sensory impairment. 

  

Page 160



48 
 

K ENSURE ALL COMMUNITIES WITHIN THE MASTERPLAN AREA ARE ABLE TO 
ENGAGE IN AND BENEFIT FROM A BIGGER AND BETTER YSTRAD 
MYNACHENSURE ALL COMMUNITIES ARE ABLE TO ENGAGE AND BENEFIT 
FROM THE MASTERPLAN 

 

 As a result of the 2014 Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD), it has 6.1016.100
been agreed that there will be a priority focus to implement a new way of working in a 
number of the deprived communities within the county borough.  

 A fundamental change to how public services are collectively delivered and 6.1026.101
approached is required to address the multi faceted needs in the county borough's 
most deprived communities. There should be far more emphasis upon local 
government enabling our communities to deliver, rather than delivering for them.   

 A greater emphasis on identifying community assets is required. When 6.1036.102
practitioners begin with a focus on what communities have, as opposed to what they 
don’t have, a community’s efficacy in addressing its own needs increases, as does its 
capacity to lever in external support. Currently services are designed to ‘fill gaps’ and 
‘fix problems’ creating dependency and disempowering individuals who become 
passive recipients of services.  

 Caerphilly County Borough Council’s new approach to service provision will 6.1046.103
provide a changing perspective on building bridges with communities, mobilising 
individual and community assets, and enabling a process of co-production, with 
community members as active agents in their own and their families’ lives.  Co-
production requires users of services to be seen as experts in their own 
circumstances and capable of making decisions, while service providers move from 
being fixers to facilitators. This will necessitate new relationships to be developed 
with front line professionals, and an enabling role adopted.  

 This will require an approach to public service provision that seeks to better 6.1056.104
coordinate services to achieve maximum impact. The intention is to adopt a place 
based focus, with a review of public services to assess how well they meet the 
outcomes required by residents, and how they could improve impact and value for 
money. The role of the Public Service Board, and the support of partners, is key to 
implementing this approach, and having endorsed the approach to Lansbury Park, 
the most deprived area in Wales, it provides an opportunity to develop this across a 
number of key areas across the borough.  

 The projects identified in the Ystrad Mynach Masterplan have the potential to 6.1066.105
provide far reaching benefits for all residents, including those living in deprived areas 
within the Masterplan area and the wider county borough. 

Page 161



 
 

Section 7: Delivering and Implementing Change  
 
 
The table below sets out the projects identified in Section 6 of the report, together with the expected outputs that the project will deliver and how these proposals 
will address the objectives of the Council’s Regeneration Strategy (Appendix 1). The table identifies the indicative costs of each scheme and highlights any 
funding that has been secured to date. It should be noted that many of these projects are at an embryonic stage and, as such, the outputs and costs can only be 
estimated.  
 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

A - Provide the 
conditions to 
strengthen 
business growth 
and capitalise 
on employment 
opportunities 

A-1 Tredomen 
Business Park 
 

Develop land 
north west of 
Tredomen 
Business Park for 
employment units  

 Development of approx. 4.3 Ha of 

underutilised land for business/employment 

use 

 Creation of approx. 105,000 sq.ft of low 

carbon office development 

 Continue the momentum of previous three 

phases of development 

 Accelerate Business development within the 

Ystrad Mynach/Nelson corridor 

 Help to cement the Ystrad Mynach/Nelson 

corridor as a viable employment belt – 

creating connectivity to employment and 

business opportunities 

 Create a number of new business premises 

and new enterprises 

 Job creation – create in the region of 600 

new ‘white collar’ jobs 

 Create a number of new jobs through the 

construction contract 

SP1 
SP4 
SB1 - 4 
CPP3 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: to be determined 
but likely to be circa £15 - 
£17m 
 
Predominantly private sector 
investment but there will 
probably be a viability gap to 
be filled. 
 
Dialogue is open between 
private sector owner and the 
Council about possible 
expansion. 

P
age 162



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

 Include social clauses in any construction 

contract to ensure employment of local 

labour 

 Introduce necessary servicing and 

infrastructure to facilitate business unit 

development   

 Attract commuters to new modes of 

transport via the provision of a new Metro 

Halt 

 Reduce the level of commuting from the 

area by providing local jobs 

 Improve viability of Ystrad Mynach Town 

centre through increased footfall 

 See private/public sector partnership to bring 

phased development 

 Show the area as innovative and open to 

change 

A-2 Ty Du, 
Nelson 
 

Development of 
significant mixed 
use site 
comprising 
employment and 
residential 
properties 

 Full mixed use redevelopment of 19 Ha of 

underutilised land 

 Including development of 3.8 Ha of land  for 

employment use 

 Job creation – 150 – 300 new jobs 

 Development of approx.150 new starter units 

 Approx. 200 new houses, including 

affordable housing 

 Creation of indirect/induced jobs from 

SB1 – 4 
SQL5 

Funding Secured:  
Infrastructure secured via 
WG & EU-ERDF 
Housing – none to date 
Employment – Phase 1 only 
(£2m) via CCBC, WG & EU - 
ERDF 
 
Total Costs: to be determined 
Employment Units – Phases 

P
age 163



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

residential development 

 Creation of operational jobs created through 

residential expenditure 

 Approx. £41m net effect on economy from 

residential development 

 Generation of CIL revenue 

 

2 & 3 (development of the 
remainder of allocated B1 
employment land) Estimated 
Costs £3-4M  
 
 

A-3 Dyffryn 
Business Park 
 

Development of 
unused land for 
employment use  

 Development of 6.3 Ha of employment land 

 New business growth 

 Provision of new commercial development 

 Job Creation  

 Infrastructure and environmental 

enhancements 

SB1 - 4 Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 
 
Public/Private sector 
partnership 
 

B - Create the 
conditions for 
the area to 
become a 
thriving Metro 
Hub 

B-1 Ystrad 
Mynach 
Station 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RedevlopmentRe
development and 
expansion of 
facilities at Ystrad 
Mynach Station 

 Physical enhancements to existing provision 

 Redevelopment of entrance (off Newport 

Road) 

 Improved connectivity between facilities 

 

CPP4 Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

P
age 164



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

B-2 Ystrad 
Mynach 
Extended Park 
and Ride 
facility 
 

Provide additional 
park and ride 
facilities  
 

 Provision of new park and ride facility – up to 

120 new spaces 

 New associated Transport provision 

 Increase in more sustainable travel 

 

CPP4 Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

B-3 Hengoed 
Extended Park 
and Ride 
facility 
 

Explore 
opportunities to 
provide additional 
park and ride 
facilities  
 

 Provision of new park and ride faciltyfacility 

 Increase in more sustainable travel 

 

CPP4 Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined, will depend upon 
proposed location 

 
 
 

 

B-4 
Reinstatement 
of the 
Cwmbargoed 
line  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reinstatement of 
the Cwmbargoed 
line for passenger 
transport 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Provide critical connectivity between the 

West and East of the Masterplan area 

 Creation of new Metro Halts at Tredomen 

and Nelson 

 Wider redevelopment of under utilised land 

for retail and residential use at Nelson 

 Construction of new houses, potentially 

including affordable housing 

 Creation of indirect/induced jobs from 

residential development 

 Creation of operational jobs created through 

residential expenditure 

 Development of new retail units 

 Creation of 80 space park and ride facility 

 Improve viability of Nelson Local  centre 

through increased footfall 

CPP2 - 4 Funding Secured: None to 
date  
 
Total Costs: £3m+ 

P
age 165



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Promote sustainable transport to the 

workplace 

 Reduction in carbon/CO2 emissions 

 Improved accessibility 

 Reduction in congestion on A472 

 Improved travel times 

 Reduced travel costs 

 Induced private sector investment 

 Generation of CIL revenue 

 Longer term, creation of a new halt at 

Maesycwmmer. 

B-5 Regional 
Bus Network 

Introduction of 
Rapid Bus 
Transport Routes 

 Reduction in congestion on A472 

 Reduction in carbon/CO2 emissions 

 Improved connectivity and linkages to key 

development sites 

 

CPP2 Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

B-6 Cycle 
Parking 
Facilities 

Provision of cycle 
facilities at all 
existing transport 
hubs (Ystrad 
Mynach, 
Hengoed and 
Pengam stations 
as well as any 
new stations) 
together with key 
employment and 
retail destinations 

 Increase usage of sustainable forms of 

transport 

 Alleviate congestion 

 Capitalise on excellent cycle links throughout 

the Masterplan area 

CPP2 Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined – anticipated to 
form part of other contracted 
works 

P
age 166



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

 

B-7 Cycle Hire 
Scheme 

Provision of a 
cycle hire scheme 
with hire points at 
key designations 

 Increase usage of sustainable forms of 

transport 

 Alleviate congestion 

 Capitalise on excellent cycle links throughout 

the Masterplan area 

 

 

 

 

CPP2 Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

C – Modernise 
and Develop 
Ystrad Mynach 
into a thriving 
Business and 
Commercial 
Centre 
 

C-1 Ystrad 
Mynach Town 
Centre 

Build on and 
enhance the 
Town Centre 
Offer 

 Redevelopment of key buildings 

 Encourage the sale of local/farm produce 

 Bolster the night time economy 

 Increase visitor dwell time and spend 

 Increase spend from business people 

 

SB1 

SQL3 

SQL4 

SQL7 

 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

C-2 Enhanced 
Parking 
Facilities 
 

Preparation of 
aEnhance town 
centre car parking 
plan 

 Increase footfall in the town centre 

 Improve quality of life for residents 

 Provision of Electric Vehicle charging points 

 

CPP1 Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

C-3 Land 
North of The 
Royal Oak 

Redevelopment 
of site 

 Redevelop approx.0.37 Ha of building/land 

in a prominent position 

 Increase footfall in town centre 

SP4 

SB1 

SQL4 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 

P
age 167



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

 SQL7 determined 

C-4 Land north 
of Dyffryn 
Business Park 
 

Development of 
hotel, public 
house and 
café/restaurant 
with drive through 
facility 
  

 Develop approx. 1 Ha of underutilised land 

in a prominent and strategic location 

 Provision of much needed accommodation 

 Greater tourist offer to increase dwell time 

 Job creation during the construction period 

 Job creation within the commercial sector 

 Improve viability of Ystrad Mynach Town 

Centre through increased footfall 

 Private sector investment induced 

 Bolster the night time economy 

 Generation of CIL revenue 

SP4 

SB1 

SQL4 

SQL7 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: Estimated at 
£3m+ 

D– Create an 
exemplary 
Sport, Leisure 
and Education 
Cluster 

D-1 Centre for 
Sporting 
Excellence 
and 
surrounding 
land  

Extension of the 
existing Centre 
for Sporting 
Excellence to 
create a Sporting 
Village, 
expansion of 
facilities at Coleg 
y Cymoedd and 
expansion of 
Trinity Fields 
School and 
Resource Centre  

 Production of a Masterplan to ensure the 

best use of all land within the hub 

 Increased seating capacity to enable use as 

an international venue 

 Provision of a state of the art indoor 3G 

IRB22 playing surface 

 Creation of a modern tennis dome to offer 

international tennis facilities 

 Provision of food and beverage outlets to 

improve visitor offer 

 Job creation/growth in sports/tourism sector 

 Develop community and grass roots sport 

 Improve Health and Wellbeing (more active 

participation of the local and regional 

SP1 

SP2 

SP4 

SB6 

SQL2 

SQL4 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 
£5m+ for sports village 
(figure based on similar 
schemes commissioned in 
other parts of the UK) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 168



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

population)  

 Enhanced facilities at Ystrad Mynach Park to 

include splashpad/water feature 

 Improved pedestrian access to and from 

Ystrad Mynach Station 

 Improved linkages with Ystrad Mynach Town 

Centre 

 Greater tourist offer to increase dwell time 

 Job creation during the construction period 

 Job creation within the commercial sector 

 Improve viability of Ystrad Mynach Town 

Centre through increased footfall 

 

 Creation of additional specialist provision 

through expansion of Trinity Fields School 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Funding Secured: Potential 
Council/ Welsh Government 
21st Century Schools and 
Education Programme 
 
Total Costs: £5m 
 

E - Create a 
vibrant and 
accessible 
visitor 
destination 

E-1 Llancaiach 
Fawr Manor 

Development of 
accommodation  

 Develop approx. 0.2 Ha of land 

 Creation of high end boutique hotel 

 Significantly boost hospitality and footfall 

within the existing attraction 

 Strengthen the tourism offer and significantly 

improve the ‘staying’ visitor market within the 

region 

 Reinforce Llancaiach Fawr as a regionally 

significant tourist and heritage destination 

 Greater tourist offer to increase dwell time 

SP4 
SB1 
SQL1 
SQL4 

Funding Secured:  
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

P
age 169



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

 Provision of a diverse range of 

accommodation 

 Job creation during the construction period 

 Job creation within the commercial sector 

 

E-2 Llechwen 
Hall 

Improve links and 
connectivity 
between 
Llechwen Hall 
and other 
attractions within 
the Masterplan 
Area 

 Improve the Masterplan Area’s status as a 

tourist destination 

 Greater tourist offer to increase dwell time in 

the area 

 Increase footfall and spend 

 Increase visitor numbers at other attractions 

SP4 
SQL4 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

E-3 Gelligaer 
Roman Fort 

Enhance and 
raise the profile of 
the existing 
tourist attraction 

 Improve the Masterplan Area’s status as a 

tourist destination 

 Greater tourist offer to increase dwell time 

 Increase footfall and spend 

 Increase visitor numbers at other attractions 

SP4 
SQL4 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

P
age 170



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

E-4 Valley 
Greyhound 
Track 

Enhance and 
raise the profile of 
the existing 
tourist attraction 

 Improve Ystrad Mynach’s status as a tourist 

destination 

 Greater tourist offer to increase dwell time 

 Job creation within the commercial sector 

 Improve viability of Ystrad Mynach Town 

Centre through increased footfall 

Bolster the night time economy 

 

SP4 
SQL4 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
Total Costs: To be 
determined  

 E-5 Events Expand the 
programme of 
events within the 
area 
 
Increase the 
number of event 
spaces 

 Improve Masterplan Area’s status as a 

tourist destination 

 Greater tourist offer to increase dwell time in 

the the area 

 Increase footfall and spend 

 Create temporary job opportunities 

SP4 

SQL2 

SQL4 

SQL7 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 
 

 E-6 Activity 
Tourism 

Increase 
accommodation 
suitable for the 
active tourism 
market 
 
 

 Improve Masterplan Area’s status as a 

tourist destination 

 Greater tourist offer to increase dwell time in 

the the area 

 Increase footfall and spend 

 Increase visitor numbers at other attractions 

SQL1 

SQL2 

SQL4 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: dependent on 
scale and type of 
accommodation.   
 

P
age 171



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

 E-7 Heritage 
Trail  

Creation of a 
Heritage Trail 
linking key sites 
and buildings of 
interest 

 Improve the area’s status as a tourist 

destination 

 Greater tourist offer to increase dwell time in 

the the area 

 Increase footfall and spend 

 Increase visitor numbers at other attractions 

SQL2 

SQL4 

SQL7 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined – could be in the 
region of £5k - £30k 
dependent on scope of 
works. 

E-8 
Accommodation 

Provision of 
Boutique hotel 
and pods/huts at 
Llancaiach Fawr 
 
Provision of a 
budget chain 
hotel at Ty Du 
 
Provision of a 
budget chain 
hotel on land 
North of Dyffryn 
Business Park 
 
Camping / 
Glamping 
provision at Parc 
Penallta 
 

(see E-1) 

 

 

 

 

(see A-2) 

 

 

(see C-5) 

 

 

 

 

(see F-2) 

See E-1 

 

 

 

 

See A-2 

 

 

See C-5 

 

 

 

 

See F-2 

See E-1 
 
 
 
 
 
See A-2 
 
 
See C-5 
 
 
 
 
 
See F-2 
 

P
age 172



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

F – Maximise 
enjoyment of the 
many green 
assets within 
and surrounding 
the area 

F-1 Green 
Infrastructure  

Preparation of a 
Green 
Infrastructure 
Strategy - A 20 
year programme 
for the 
integration, 
development and 
management of a 
network of green 
infrastructure, 
supported by a 
five year delivery 
and action plan 
 

 Identification and prioritisation of key green 
spaces within the County Borough  

 Ensure that green infrastructure is 
embedded into the design of new 
development 

 Adapted management and utilisation of 

green corridors. 

SP8 
SQL1 
SQL4 

Funding secured: Funding to 
prepare Strategy secured 
from Welsh Government 

F-2 Parc 
Penallta 

Enhance facilities 
to include a new 
visitor centre and 
compleimentary 
accommodation  
 

 New carbon efficient visitor centre 

 Provision of a diverse range of 

accommodation 

 Strengthen the tourism offer and significantly 

improve the ‘staying’ visitor market within the 

region 

 Improve Ystrad Mynach’s status as a tourist 

destination 

 Greater tourist offer to increase dwell time in 

the area 

 Increase footfall and spend 

 Increase visitor numbers at other attractions 

 Improve quality of life for residents 

SP8 

SQL1 - 3 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: £1m 

P
age 173



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

 Promotion of healthy lifestyle 

 Job creation 

F-3 Nelson 
Wern 
Woodland 
Park 

Enhance facilities  Greater tourist offer to increase dwell time in 

the area 

 Increase footfall and spend 

 Increase visitor numbers at other attractions 

 Improve quality of life for residents 

 Promotion of healthy lifestyle 

 Improved facilities, including for youths 

 

SP8 

SQL1 - 3 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

 F-4 – 
Rhymney 
Riverside Walk 

Completion of the 
Walk and 
provision of an 
outdoor gym 

 Improve pedestrian connectivity 

 Improve quality of life for residents 

 Promotion of healthy lifestyle 

 Environmental improvements 

 

SP8 

SQL1 - 3 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

F-5 – 
Rhymney 
Valley 
Ridgeway 
Walk 

Enhancement of 
the Walk 

P
age 174



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

F-6 Gren Way Promotion of the 
Walk 
 
 

 F-7 Common 
Land 

Enhancement of 
Eglwysilan 
Common and 
Gelligaer 
Common 

 Improve quality of life for residents 

 Promotion of healthy lifestyle 

 Environmental improvements 

 Protection of unique heritage assets 

 

SP8 

SQL1 - 3 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

 F-8 The Graig, 
Hengoed 

Enhancement of 
open space to 
include provision 
of footpath / cycle 
link 

 Improve pedestrian connectivity 

 Provision of improved Active Travel route 

 Improve quality of life for residents 

 Promotion of healthy lifestyle 

 Environmental improvements 

 Prevention of fires 

 

SP8 

SQL1 - 3 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 

G- Complete the 
Regeneration of 
the former 
Penallta Colliery 
Site 

efsdc 

G-1 Power 
Hall 
 
 
G-2 Bath 
House building 

Conversion of the 
last two listed 
buildings within 
this magnificent 
heritage site to 
provide for 
housing as well 
as retail and 
employment uses 

 Conservation, preservation and conversion 

of Historic built environment 

 Safeguarding of Listed Buildings/structures 

within the site 

 Redevelopment of a former brownfield site 

 Provision of circa 100 residential units 

 Provision of retail and employment uses  

 Creation of technology hubs  

SQL1 
SQL5 
CPP5 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 
 
Private Sector led 

P
age 175



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

with a focus on 
entrepreneurship 
digital/technology 
hubs and 
workshops for 
smaller business.   
 

 Creation of ‘work/live’ environment and 

cluster linked with broader skills 

development and training opportunities 

forged with the nearby Coleg y Cymoedd 

  Skills development 

 Job creation 

 Generation of CIL revenue 

G-3 Land at 
Winding Wheel 
Lane 

Opportunity exists 
for a unique and 
innovative 
commercial 
development 
scheme to 
provide a small 
food store, Public 
House or 
restaurant and 
cafe and offices 
/services such as 
a 
surgery/crechecrè
che  
 
 
 
 
 

 Develop circa 1 Ha of underutilised land for 

commercial/retail use 

 Redevelopment of a former brownfield site 

 Provide retail and employment services for 

residents to engender a more sustainable 

and self contained development 

 Job creation 

 Create a number of new business premises 

 Accommodate new enterprises 

SP4 
SB1 

Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 
determined 
 
Private Sector led 

P
age 176



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

H – Support the 
development of 
housing, 
including 
affordable 
housing, on 
both brownfield 
and greenfield 
sites in 
sustainable 
locations 

H-1 Land at Ty 
Du, Nelson 

Delivery of 
housing in an 
area where there 
is a need to 
diversify the 
housing supply 
and address the 
need for 
affordable 
housing 
 

See A-2 See A-2 See A-2 

H-2 Penallta 
Colliery 

Delivery of 
housing in an 
area where there 
is a need to 
diversify the 
housing supply 
and address the 
need for 
affordable 
housing 
 

See G-1 and G-2 See G-1 and 

G-2 

See G-1 and G-2 

H-3 Tir-y-
berth, 
Hengoed 

Delivery of 
housing in an 
area where there 
is a need to 
diversify the 
housing supply 
and address the 
need for 

 Redevelopment of a 5 Ha brownfield site 

 Development of circa 175 dwellings 

 Approx. 193 indirect/induced jobs from 

residential development 

 Approx. 18 new permanent operational jobs 

created through residential expenditure 

 Approx. £36m net effect on economy from 

SQL5 Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 

determined 

 

Private Sector Led  

P
age 177



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

affordable 
housing 

residential development 

 Generation of CIL revenue 

 Employment opportunities in the 

construction industry and local supply chain 

benefits 

H-4 Land east 
of Handball 
Court, Nelson 

Delivery of 
housing in an 
area where there 
is a need to 
diversify the 
housing supply 
and address the 
need for 
affordable 
housing 
 

See B-4 See B-4 See B-4 

 H-5 Land at 
New Road, 
Ystrad Mynach 

Delivery of 
housing in an 
area where there 
is a need to 
diversify the 
housing supply 
and address the 
need for 
affordable 
housing 
 
 
 
 

 Redevelopment of a 0.5 Ha brownfield site 

 Development of circa 18 dwellings 

 Generation of CIL revenue 

 Employment opportunities in the 

construction industry and local supply chain 

benefits 

 Potential for future expansion to provide 

further dwellings 

SQL5 Funding Secured: None to 
date 
 
Total Costs: To be 

determined 

 

Private Sector Led 

P
age 178



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

 

 H-6 Greenhill 
Primary 
School, 
Gelligaer 

Delivery of 
housing in an 
area where there 
is a need to 
diversify the 
housing supply 
and address the 
need for 
affordable 
housing 
 

 Redevelopment of a 0.9 Ha brownfield site 

for 37 affordable houses  

 Employment opportunities in the 

construction industry and local supply chain 

benefits 

 Provision of state of the art primary school 

SQL5 The county borough’s most 

energy efficient school, rated 

A+ was completed in 2011.   

 

The dwellings are under 

construction, being 

developed in partnership with 

United Welsh Housing 

Association and supported by 

Welsh Government Social 

Housing Grant.  

I – Provide a 
suitable level of 
community 
leisure and 
education 
facilities to 
support the 
potential level of 
population and 
housing growth 
within the 

I-1 Trinity 
Fields School 
and Resource 
Centre  

Expansion to 
accommodate 
future demand 
and requirements 
of Additional 
Learning Needs 
(ALN) Reform 
Bill.  

 
 

 Provide modern education establishments 

 Increasing Specialist Educational provision 

within Caerphilly to meet identified and 

projected future demand. 

 Increased opportunities for community use 

and on-site childcare provision. 

 support the Authority in meeting the 

Legislative Requirements of the new ALN 

Reform Bill.  

SP2 Funding Secured: Potential 
Council/ Welsh Government 
21st Century Schools and 
Education Programme 
 
Total Costs: circa £5m 
 

P
age 179



 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description Expected/Indicative outputs Objectives of 
Regeneration 
Strategy met 

Funding secured and 
potential costs 

Ystrad Mynach 
Strategic Hub 
 

I-2 
Amalgamation 
of Llanfabon 
Infants School 
and 
Llancaeach 
Junior School 
 

Expansion and 
refurbishment of 
Llanfabon Infants 
School to 
accommodate the 
new Primary 
School. 

   
 Removal of 2 Category C schools in relation 

to condition.  
 Creation of 3-11 primary provision.  
 Creation of fit for purpose, energy efficient 

21st Century school.  
 Reduction of surplus places.  
 Estimated saving of £659K on backlog 

maintenance costs.  
 Increased opportunities for community use 

and on-site childcare provision.  
 

SP2 Funding Secured: Potential 
Council/ Welsh Government 
21st Century Schools and 
Education Programme 
 
Total Costs: circa £4m 
 

J - Ensure that 
accessibility for 
all is embedded 
in all 
improvement 
schemes 

 This is a cross-

cutting objective 

that should be 

considered as an 

integral part of all 

projects 

 Accessibility for those living, working or 

visiting Ystrad Mynach and the wider area 

SQL3  

K - Ensure all 
communities 
within the 
Masterplan area 
are able to 
engage in and 
benefit from a 
bigger and 
better Ystrad 
Mynach  

 Address the multi 
faceted needs in 
the most deprived 
communities by 
adopting a place 
based focus that 
seeks to better 
coordinate 
services to 
achieve 
maximum impact 

 Social, economic and environmental outputs 

for deprived communities 

SB1 

SB6 

SQL3 

SQL6 

SP1-SP11 

 

 

P
age 180



 
 

P
age 181



 
 

  

P
age 182



 
 

 
 

 

P
age 183



Appendix 1 – A Foundation for Success Objectives 

Supporting People 

• SP1: Increase employability 
• SP2: Raise educational attainment 
• SP3: Reduce worklessness 
• SP4: Improve resilience and support the development of the foundational economy  
• SP5: Develop skills in key growth areas 
• SP6: Targeted Intervention of key groups  
• SP7: Ensure a clear co-ordinated ‘package of services’ is available in order to 

reconnect people to employment 
• SP8: Support Interventions to improve health 
• SP9: Reduce inequality by reducing the number of lower super output areas within 

the top 10% deprived within Wales 
• SP10: Ensure that Cultivational Procurement is a key consideration in the 

procurement of goods and services 
• SP11: Tackle in-work poverty  

 

Supporting Businesses 

• SB1: Building a more resilient & diversified economy 
• SB2: Supporting economic growth and innovation 
• SB3: Creating an environment that nurtures businesses 
• SB4: Key Sites and Infrastructure for employment opportunities 
• SB5: Boost Business Support & Enterprise 
• SB6: Improve the links between businesses, schools and education &training 

providers 
 

Supporting Quality of Life 

• SQL1: Manage the natural heritage and its resources appropriately for future 
generations, whilst accommodating much needed sustainable development, 
protecting wildlife and encouraging the use of green spaces to promote wellbeing 

• SQL2: Improve access to culture, leisure and the arts 
• SQL3: Active Place Making 
• S

QL4: There is a need to increase tourism in Caerphilly, focusing on the historic and 
natural heritage of the area and the opportunities that this presents  

• S
QL5: Improve the delivery of new housing and diversify housing across all tenures 

• S
QL6: Improve the quality of the existing housing stock through targeted intervention; 
particularly in terms of Council owned housing stock 

• S
QL7: Refocus town centres to serve the needs of residents and businesses 
 

Connecting People and Places 

• CPP1: Promote and identify major highway projects that would significantly improve 
connectivity and accessibility 

• CPP2:  Promote Public Transport Integration and Connectivity 
• CPP3:  Promote place-making development around key transport hubs and nodes 
• CPP4:  Actively promote rail improvements and the reinstatement of new links 
• CPP5:  Seek to reduce travelling distance and reduce out-commuting Page 184



• CPP6:  Promote digital connectivity 
 

 

Page 185



Appendix 2 Well-being of Future Generations  

 

The Masterplan has had regard for the seven well-being goals set out within the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.In order to 
demonstrate this, an assessment has been made as to which well-being goals each strategic objective would support. The Strategic Objectives 
of the Masterplan are: 
 
 

A. Provide the conditions to strengthen business growth and employment opportunities  
B. Create the conditions for the area to become a thriving Metro Hub  
C. Modernise and develop Ystrad Mynach into a thriving business and commercial centre  
D. Create an exemplary Sport, Leisure and Education Cluster 
E. Create a vibrant and accessible visitor destination 
F. Maximise enjoyment of green assets within and surrounding the Masterplan Area 
G. Complete the regeneration of the former Penallta Colliery Site 
H. Support the development of housing, including affordable housing, on both greenfield and brownfield sites in 

sustainable locations 
I. Provide a suitable level of community leisure and education facilities to support the potential level of population and 

housing growth in the Masterplan Area 
J. Ensure that accessibility for all is embedded in all improvement schemes 
K. Ensure all communities are able to engage and benefit from the Masterplan Ensure all communities within the 

Masterplan area are able to engage in and benefit from a bigger and better Ystrad Mynach. 
 
 

Goal Description of the goal How it will be achieved by the Masterplan 

A prosperous Wales An innovative, productive and low carbon society 
which recognises the limits of the global environment 
and therefore uses resources efficiently and 
proportionately (including acting on climate change); 
and which develops a skilled and well-educated 
population in an economy which generates wealth 
and provides employment opportunities, allowing 
people to take advantage of the wealth generated 
through securing decent work. 

Relevant Strategic Objectives - A, B, C, D, E, G, I 
 
A number of the projects identified will increase 
employment across a range of sectors. The expansion 
of the retail and employment offer in the town will 
reduce the need to travel outside of the County 
Borough, reducing the carbon footprint. The 
Masterplan also seeks to provide appropriate 
education facilities, which will contribute to delivering a 
skilled and well-education population. 
 

P
age 186



 

A resilient Wales A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse 
natural environment with healthy functioning 
ecosystems that support social, economic and 
ecological resilience and the capacity to adapt to 
change (for example climate change). 

Relevant Strategic Objectives - B, F 
 
Central to the Vision is the recognition that the 
Masterplan Area is set within an attractive natural 
environment. This is also identified in the development 
strategy, where it is highlighted that the need to 
maintain and enhance biodiversity and promote the 
resilience of ecosystems will be a key policy 
consideration in the preparation of proposals. It also 
promotes the use of more sustainable modes of 
transport and references the opportunities to 
incorporate renewable technologies within 
development proposals.  
 
It is recognised that the natural environment is 
important from a tourism perspective and also as an 
area valued by residents.   
 

A healthier Wales A society in which people’s physical and mental well-
being is maximised and in which choices and 
behaviours that benefit future health are understood. 

Relevant Strategic Objectives – B,D,F,I 
 
There are projects included within the Masterplan that 
promote active travel and improve connectivity 
between key open spaces. The Masterplan 
acknowledges that enhancing and encouraging use of 
green and open spaces can improve quality of life and 
promote well-being.  The creation of a sport, leisure 
and education cluster will also benefit both physical 
and mental well-being.   
 

  

P
age 187



A more equal Wales A society that enables people to fulfil their potential 
no matter what their background or circumstances 
(including their socio economic background and 
circumstances). 

Relevant Strategic Objectives – A,C,E,G,H,I,J,K 
 
The projects identified will increase employment 
opportunities in all sectors, including the foundational 
economy. The Masterplan also recognises the 
challenges experienced in the more deprived 
communities (e.g. Cefn Hengoed) and Section 7 
identifies how the projects link to the objectives of the 
Regeneration Strategy, where equality is an integral 
part. 
 
The delivery of housing, including affordable housing, 
so that everyone has a place to live will also contribute 
to this.  
 

A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected 
communities. 

Relevant Strategic Objectives – A,B,C,E, F,G,H 
 
There are a number of proposals that will improve 
connectivity between areas. Furthermore, the physical 
regeneration of a number of key sites for a mix of uses, 
together with environmental improvements, will make 
the Masterplan Area a more attractive, viable and safe 
area.  
 
The Masterplan seeks to promote housing in 
sustainable locations, which will ensure that new 
developments are well-connected to services and 
facilities.   
 

  

P
age 188



A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage 
and the Welsh language, and which encourages 
people to participate in the arts, and sports and 
recreation. 

Relevant Strategic Objectives – E,F, G 
 
Maximising the presence of the many heritage assets 
within the Masterplan Area is a key element of the 
Masterplan and proposals to enhance the tourism offer 
associated with these attractions will be supported.  
 
The Masterplan will be available bilingually.  
 

A globally responsive 
Wales 

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the 
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-
being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such 
a thing may make a positive contribution to global 
well-being. 

Relevant Strategic Objectives – B, F 
 
There are strong links between this goal and a resilient 
Wales. The development strategy highlights that there 
is a need to maintain and enhance biodiversity and 
promote the resilience of ecosystems, and this will be 
a key policy consideration in the preparation of 
proposals. Furthermore, the strategy in the Masterplan 
promotes the use of more sustainable modes of 
transport and references the opportunities to 
incorporate renewable technologies within 
development proposals.  
 

 
The development of the Masterplan has also been informed by the five ways of working  
 
Involvement -The Masterplan has been developed through engagement workshops with a number of key stakeholders, including key 
landowners and interested parties, local authority ward members representing the Masterplan Area, community councillors and key 
representatives.  
 
Collaborate – The development of the Masterplan has drawn upon the expertise from key representatives from across local authority 
departments, including Planning, Regeneration, Housing, Engineering, Education, Leisure, and Countryside. The delivery of the projects 
identified within the Masterplan will involve collaboration between the public, private and third sectors, and the Council will work closely with 
these partners to deliver schemes in a collaborative manner.  
 

P
age 189



Long term – The objectives identified, and the projects that will deliver these objectives, are part of a longer-term vision of enhancing 
Ystrad Mynach’s role as a sub-regional economic hub capable of supporting local communities.  The Masterplan recognises the need for 
development in order to support economic growth, but recognises that this development should be in sustainable locations.  
 
Integration – The projects identified in the Masterplan will help deliver a number of the Objectives identified within the Council’s 
Regeneration Strategy ‘A Foundation for Success’ (as set out in Section 7 of this report), as well as proposals identified within the adopted 
Local Development Plan Up to 2021.  They will also deliver against the Council’s own Well-being Objectives for 2017/18 by identifying 
projects that will lead to job creation and training opportunities, which will help address poverty. The projects promote more active and 
healthy lifestyles and reduced the carbon footprint through improved active travel routes and facilities locally. 
 
Prevention – The Masterplan recognises that there are a number of challenges within the Masterplan Area that need to be addressed in 
order to achieve the Vision. The projects identified will respond to these key concerns in order to ensure that they do not get worse. The 
projects identified will raise the profile of the area, increase the tourism offer and therefore visitor spend, enhance Ystrad Mynach town 
centre, create job opportunities, enhance connectivity, and improve the quality of life for those living, working and visiting the Masterplan 
Area.  

 
 
 

P
age 190



Appendix 3 - Assessment of Site Specific Proposals against the national well-being goals and the CCBC Well-being objectives 
 
This Appendix provides an initial assessment of the projects identified within the Masterplan against the national well-being goals and the 
Council’s well-being objectives, as set out within the Corporate Plan 2018-2023. The national well-being objectives are set out in Appendix 2, 
and the corporate objectives are set out below.  It should be noted that many of the projects identified are at an embryonic stage and therefore 
a detailed analysis of the relationship between proposals and the well-being goals and objectives cannot be undertaken at this stage.  
 
Caerphilly CBC Well-being Objectives 
 
Number  Description  

Objective 1  Improve education opportunities for all  

Objective 2  Enabling Employment 

Objective 3  Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes throughout the county borough and provide advice, 

assistance or support to help improve people’s well-being  

Objective 4  Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that increases opportunity, promotes prosperity and 

minimises the adverse impacts on the environment  

Objective 5  Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with the Sustainable Development Principle 

within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

Objective 6  Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being  

 

P
age 191



 

 
 
Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

A A-1 Tredomen 
Business Park 
 

Develop land north west of Tredomen 
Business Park for employment units  

 A prosperous Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

 2 - Enabling employment 

A-2 Ty Du, Nelson 
 

Development of significant mixed use site 
comprising employment and residential 
properties 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 2 - Enabling employment 

 3 - Address the 
availability, condition and 
sustainability of homes 

A-3 Dyffryn Business 
Park 
 

Development of unused land for 
employment use  

 A prosperous Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 

 2 - Enabling employment 

P
age 192



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

B  B-1 Ystrad Mynach 
Station 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Redevlopment and expansion of facilities at 
Ystrad Mynach Station 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 

 4 - Promote a modern, 
integrated and 
sustainable transport 
system 

 

 

B-2 Ystrad Mynach 
Extended Park and 
Ride facility 
 

Provide additional park and ride facilities  
 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 

 4 - Promote a modern, 
integrated and 
sustainable transport 
system 

 

B-3 Hengoed 
Extended Park and 
Ride facility 
 

Explore opportunities to provide additional 
park and ride facilities  
 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 

 4 - Promote a modern, 
integrated and 
sustainable transport 
system 

B-4 Reinstatement of 
the Cwmbargoed Line 

Reinstatement of the Cwmbargoed line for 
passenger transport 
 
 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 

 2 - Enabling employment 

 3 - Address the 
availability, condition and 
sustainability of homes 

 4 - Promote a modern, 
integrated and 

P
age 193



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

communities 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

sustainable transport 
system 

B-5 Regional Bus 
Network 

Introduction of Rapid Bus Transport Routes  A resilient Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

 4 - Promote a modern, 
integrated and 
sustainable transport 
system 

B-6 Cycle Parking 
Facilities 

Provision of cycle facilities at all existing 
transport hubs (Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed 
and Pengam stations as well as any new 
stations) together with key employment and 
retail destinations 
 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

 

 4 - Promote a modern, 
integrated and 
sustainable transport 
system 

 5 - Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

 

 B-7 Cycle Hire 
Scheme 

Provision of a cycle hire scheme with hire 
points at key designations 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 

 4 - Promote a modern, 
integrated and 
sustainable transport 
system 

P
age 194



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

communities 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

 

 5 - Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

 

C  C-1 Ystrad Mynach 
Town Centre 

Build on and enhance the Town Centre 
Offer 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 

 2 - Enabling employment 

C-2 Enhanced 
Parking Facilities 
 

Enhance town centre car parking  A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 

 

C-3 Land North of The 
Royal Oak 

Redevelopment of site  A prosperous Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 

 2 - Enabling employment 

 

P
age 195



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

communities 

 

C-4 Land north of 
Dyffryn Business Park 
 

Development of hotel, public house and 
café/restaurant with drive through facility 
  

 A prosperous Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 2 - Enabling employment 

 

D  D-1 Centre for 
Sporting Excellence 
and surrounding land  

Extension of the existing Centre for Sporting 
Excellence to create a Sporting Village, 
expansion of facilities at Coleg y Cymoedd 
and expansion of Trinity Fields School and 
Resource Centre  

 A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 5 -Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

 

P
age 196



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

 

E  E-1 Llancaiach Fawr 
Manor 

Development of accommodation   A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

 

 2 – Enabling Employment 

 

E-2 Llechwen Hall Improve links and connectivity between 
Llechwen Hall and other attractions within 
the Masterplan Area 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 2 – Enabling Employment 

 

P
age 197



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

E-3 Gelligaer Roman 
Fort 

Enhance and raise the profile of the existing 
tourist attraction 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 

 2 – Enabling Employment 

 

E-4 Valley Greyhound 
Track 

Enhance and raise the profile of the existing 
tourist attraction 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 2 – Enabling Employment 

 

E-5 Events Expand the programme of events within the 
area 
 
Increase the number of event spaces 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 

 

E-6 Activity Tourism Increase accommodation suitable for the 
active tourism market 
 
 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 

 5 - Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

 

P
age 198



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

Welsh language 

E-7 Heritage Trail  Creation of a Heritage Trail linking key sites 
and buildings of interest 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 5 - Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

E-8 Accommodation Provision of Boutique hotel and pods/huts at 
Llancaiach Fawr 
 
Provision of a budget chain hotel at Ty Du 
 
Provision of a budget chain hotel on land 
North of Dyffryn Business Park 
 
Camping / Glamping provision at Parc 
Penallta 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 2 - Enabling employment 

 

F F-1 Green 
Infrastructure  

A 20 year programme for the integration, 
development and management of a network 
of green infrastructure, supported by a five 
year delivery and action plan 
 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A globally 

 5 - Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

 

P
age 199



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

responsible Wales 

 

F-2 Parc Penallta Enhance facilities to include a new visitor 
centre and complimentary accommodation  
 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

 

 1- Improve education 
opportunities for all 

 5 - Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

 

F-3 Nelson Wern 
Woodland Park 

Enhance facilities  A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 

 5 - Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

  

P
age 200



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

communities 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

F-4 – Rhymney 
Riverside Walk 

Completion of the Walk and provision of an 
outdoor gym 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

 5 - Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

 

F-5 – Rhymney Valley 
Ridgeway Walk 

Enhancement of the Walk  A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

 5 – Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

P
age 201



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

F-6 Gren Way Promotion of the Walk  A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

 5 – Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

 F-7 Common Land Enhancement of open space to include 
provision of footpath / cycle link 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 A globally 
responsible Wales 

 5 – Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

P
age 202



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

 F-8 The Graig, 
Hengoed 

Enhancement of open space  A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 

 5 – Support a healthy 
lifestyle 

G   G-1 Power Hall 
 
 
G-2 Bath House 
building 

Conversion of the last two listed buildings 
within this magnificent heritage site to 
provide for housing as well as retail and 
employment uses with a focus on 
entrepreneurship digital/technology hubs 
and workshops for smaller business.   
 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

 

 2 - Enabling employment 

 3 - Address the 
availability, condition and 
sustainability of homes 

 

G-3 Land at Winding 
Wheel Lane 

Opportunity exists for a unique and 
innovative commercial development 
scheme to provide a small food store, Public 
House or restaurant and cafe and offices 
/services such as a surgery/creche  

 A prosperous Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 2 - Enabling employment 

P
age 203



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

H  H-1 Land at Ty Du, 
Nelson 

Delivery of housing in an area where there 
is a need to diversify the housing supply 
and address the need for affordable housing 
 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A more equal Wales 

 2 – Enabling Employment 

 3 - Address the 
availability, condition and 
sustainability of homes  

H-2 Penallta Colliery Delivery of housing in an area where there 
is a need to diversify the housing supply 
and address the need for affordable housing 
 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A more equal Wales 

 2 – Enabling Employment 

 3 - Address the 
availability, condition and 
sustainability of homes  

H-3 Tir-y-berth, 
Hengoed 

Delivery of housing in an area where there 
is a need to diversify the housing supply 
and address the need for affordable housing 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A more equal Wales 

 2 – Enabling Employment 

 3 - Address the 
availability, condition and 
sustainability of homes 

H-4 Land east of 
Handball Court, 
Nelson 

Delivery of housing in an area where there 
is a need to diversify the housing supply 
and address the need for affordable housing 
 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A more equal Wales 

 2 – Enabling Employment 

 3 - Address the 
availability, condition and 
sustainability of homes  

P
age 204



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

H-5 Land at New 
Road, Ystrad Mynach 

Delivery of housing in an area where there 
is a need to diversify the housing supply 
and address the need for affordable housing 
 
 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A more equal Wales 

 2 – Enabling Employment 

 3 - Address the 
availability, condition and 
sustainability of homes  

H-6 Greenhill Primary 
School, Gelligaer 

Delivery of housing in an area where there 
is a need to diversify the housing supply 
and address the need for affordable housing 
 
 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 A more equal Wales 

 2 – Enabling Employment 

 3 - Address the 
availability, condition and 
sustainability of homes  

I  I-1 Trinity Fields 
School and Resource 
Centre  

Expansion to accommodate future demand 
and requirements of Additional Learning 
Needs (ALN) Reform Bill.  

 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 1 - Improve education 
opportunities for all 

I-2 Amalgamation of 
Llanfabon Infants 
School and 
Llancaeach Junior 
School 
 

Expansion and refurbishment of Llanfabon 
Infants School to accommodate the new 
Primary School 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 1 - Improve education 
opportunities for all 

J -   This is a cross-cutting objective that should 
be considered as an integral part of all 
projects 

 A more equal Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 4 - Promote a modern, 
integrated and 
sustainable transport 
system 

P
age 205



Strategic 
Objective 

Project Description National well-being 
goals  

CCBC Well-being 
objectives 2018-2023 

K -   Address the multi faceted needs in the most 
deprived communities by adopting a place 
based focus that seeks to better coordinate 
services to achieve maximum impact 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

 3 - Address the 
availability, condition and 
sustainability of homes 

 

 

P
age 206



Appendix 3 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM 
October 2018 

 
THE COUNCIL’S EQUALITIES STATEMENT 
 
This Council recognises that people have different needs, requirements and goals and we 
will work actively against all forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and 
mutual respect within and between our communities, residents, elected members, job 
applicants and workforce. 
 
We will also work to create equal access for everyone to our services, irrespective of 
ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, gender reassignment, 
religious beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or other languages, nationality, 
responsibility for any dependents or any other reason which cannot be shown to be 
justified. 
 
The Council is required to have due regard to the need to: 
• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct that 

is prohibited by the Equality Act 2010 
• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and those who do not 
• foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 

who do not.  
 
The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves:  
• removing or minimising disadvantages experienced by people due to their protected 

characteristics 
• taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are 

different from the needs of other people  
• encouraging people with protected characteristics to participate in public life or in other 

activities where their participation is disproportionately low.  
 
The protected characteristics are: 

 

• Age • Race 
• Disability • Religion, Belief or Non-Belief 
• Gender Re-assignment • Sex 
• Marriage and Civil Partnership • Sexual Orientation 
• Pregnancy and Maternity • Welsh Language* 

 
*  The Welsh language is not identified as a protected characteristic under the Equality Act 

2010, however in Wales we also have to treat Welsh and English on an equal basis as 
well as promoting and facilitating the use of the Welsh language. 

 
Further advice on completing impact assessments can be found on the equalities pages of 
Corporate Policy Unit Portal. 

Page 207



 
THE EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
NAME OF NEW OR 
REVISED PROPOSAL* 

 
Ystrad Mynach Masterplan  
 

DIRECTORATE Communities 
 

SERVICE AREA Planning 
 

CONTACT OFFICER Lisa James 
 

DATE FOR NEXT REVIEW 
OR REVISION 

April 2024 
 
 

 
*Throughout this Equalities Impact Assessment Form, ‘proposal’ is used to refer to 
what is being assessed, and therefore includes policies, strategies, functions, 
procedures, practices, initiatives, projects and savings proposals.  
 
The aim of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is to ensure that Equalities and Welsh Language 
issues have been proactively considered throughout the decision making processes governing 
work undertaken by every service area in the Council as well as work done at a corporate level. 
 
The Council’s work across Equalities, Welsh Language and Human Rights is covered in more 
detail through the Equalities and Welsh Language Objectives and Action Plan 2016-2020. 
 
When carrying out an EIA you should consider both the positive and negative consequences of 
your proposals. If a project is designed for a specific group e.g. disabled people, you also need to 
think about what potential effects it could have on other areas e.g. young people with a disability, 
BME people with a disability. 
 
There are a number of supporting guidance documents available on the Corporate Policy and 
Business Support Portal and the Council’s Equalities and Welsh Language team can provide 
advice as the EIA is being developed.  Please note that the team does not write EIAs on behalf of 
service areas, the support offered is in the form of advice, suggestions and in effect, quality control. 
 
Contact equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk for assistance. 

Page 208

mailto:equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk


 

PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
1 What is the proposal intended to achieve? 

(Please give a brief description and outline the purpose of the new or updated 
proposal by way of introduction.) 
 
The Masterplan sets out the future development and regeneration opportunities 
proposed for Ystrad Mynach and the wider area, including Nelson, Penallta, 
Gelligaer/Penybryn, Penpedairheol, Cascade, Hengoed/Cefn Hengoed and Tiryberth. 
 
The Masterplan has been prepared within the context of the adopted Caerphilly 
County Borough Local Development Plan (LDP), which sets out the Council’s land 
use objectives for the county borough in the period up to 2021.  
 
The Masterplan identifies 11 objectives that would support the delivery of a Vision for 
the Masterplan area. Over 40 projects are identified within the Masterplan that would 
contribute to achieving these objectives and deliver the Vision  
 

“To develop and enhance Ystrad Mynach as a significant business, service and 
employment area and as a Strategic Economic Hub within the Cardiff Capital Region.   

 
It will be a thriving business, retail, leisure and tourism destination with exemplary 

sporting facilities, an exceptional learning area and incredible green spaces. 
 

It will be an exciting, vibrant place where businesses will want to locate, develop and 
grow and where people will desire to live, work and visit. 

 
Its communities will be attractive and sustainable with excellent links to the Metro and 

the residents will feel safe, aspire to succeed and live active and healthy lives.” 
 

  
2 Who are the service users affected by the proposal? 

(Who will be affected by the delivery of this proposal? e.g. staff members, the public 
generally, or specific sections of the public i.e. youth groups, carers, road users, 
people using country parks, people on benefits etc.  Are there any data gaps?) 
 
The proposals could potentially affect residents within the Masterplan area, and 
residents of the wider County Borough or other areas who work, visit or travel 
through the Masterplan area.  
 
Many of the proposals within the Masterplan intend to improve the visitor experience 
for tourists the area. 
 
The proposals for new housing development could affect those currently living in an 
area and those who would like to move to an area – the existing and potential 
residents, including those requiring affordable housing.  
 
Furthermore, the proposed improvements to the sustainable transport network will 
affect those using the transport network – residents, commuters travelling to and from 
the Masterplan area, and visitors. 
 
There may be an impact on local businesses. 

Page 209



The document reflects the 21st Century Schools programme, which identifies the 
replacement, refurbishment and new classroom provision in the County Borough. 
This could potentially affect school children, staff and parents.  
 
All relevant EIAs for individual projects will be undertaken prior to moving to 
consultation stage.  
 

 

IMPACT ON THE PUBLIC AND STAFF 
 

3 Does the proposal ensure that everyone has an equal access to all the services 
available or proposed, or benefits equally from the proposed changes, or does 
not lose out in greater or more severe ways due to the proposals? 
(What has been done to examine whether or not these groups have equal access to 
the service, or whether they need to receive the service in a different way from other 
people?) 
 
The Masterplan identifies a cross-cutting objective to “ensure that accessibility for all 
is embedded in all improvement schemes.”  The inclusion of this cross-cutting 
objective will ensure that equality is a key consideration when developing proposals. 
This will include accessibility for all of the protected characteristics identified within 
the Equalities and Welsh Language Objectives and Action Plan 2016-2020, including 
the Welsh language. 
 
Furthermore, the Masterplan also includes an objective to ensure that the most 
deprived communities benefit from the proposals identified – to “ensure all 
communities are able to engage in and benefit from a bigger and better Ystrad 
Mynach”. 
 
The Masterplan identifies a number of initial proposals that could potentially deliver 
economic, environmental and social benefits to residents within the Masterplan area. 
These projects will be prioritised and detailed project proposals will be prepared with 
a view to informing funding bids from City Deal and other funding programmes. At 
this early stage, the Masterplan sets out the initial framework for change, but the 
exact impacts of any proposal will not be known until detailed plans are prepared.  
 
Many of the regeneration and development proposals will require a planning 
application to be submitted. Inclusivity is a fundamental part of the national planning 
policy framework. Ensuring equal opportunities for all proposed and existing facilities 
is a key aim of the Local Development Plan (LDP) and planning applications will 
need to demonstrate that they adhere to policies on equality, including accessibility 
and good design.  
 
A public consultation has been carried out to determine views on the Masterplan. 
The responses have been reviewed and amendments to the Masterplan are 
proposed as a result of the consultation. There were no specific changes that relate 
directly to equalities issues. 
 
Actions required: 
 

• Ensure that the cross-cutting objective on accessibility for all is an integral part 
when initial proposals are prioritised and detail project proposals are prepared 
as part of the delivery of the Masterplan.  This will also be a consideration in 
the determination of planning applications.  

• Take steps to mitigate any negative impacts identified in particular access to 
services, tourist locations, businesses etc. 

Page 210



 
4 Is your proposal going to affect any people or groups of people with protected 

characteristics? 
(Has the service delivery been examined to assess if there is any indirect effect on 
any groups?  Could the consequences of the policy or savings proposal differ 
dependent upon people’s protected characteristics?) 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Positive, 
Negative, 
Neutral 

What will the impact be?   
If the impact is negative how can it be mitigated? 

Age  As explained in Section 3, the consequences for any 
specific groups would not be known until the detailed 
proposals are developed.  
 
It would also be dependent on the timescales for each 
project and how the projects relate to each other, as the 
impact of one project (e.g. measures to reduce car 
dominance, which could, for example, affect where 
those with disabilities could park within the town centre) 
may be mitigated by other projects, (such as 
improvements to the public transport interchange and 
services through the Metro, which may make areas 
more accessible for all groups, including those with 
disabilities). The level of detail required to assess this is 
not available within the Masterplan, but will be 
considered as detailed proposals are progressed.  
 
Two responses included equality impact comments. 
 
One respondent stated that elderly and middle aged 
people should be encouraged to cycle regularly on 
protected tracks. This will reduce the Valleys curse of 
obesity, diabetes, and early death. Youngsters can 
develop an early cycling habit, which can be maintained 
throughout life. https://www.sustrans.org.uk/news/more-
cycling-could-prevent-34000-life-threatening-illnesses-
seven-major-uk-cities-2040 with huge economic 
benefits.   
 
The Draft Masterplan encourages active, healthy 
lifestyles by identifying Active Travel and cycling 
projects.   
 
Another respondent confirmed that she was happy to 
provide her personal details.  She included her age and 
added that she has several age related medical 
problems, she is a widow and has no dependents but 3 
grandsons.  The respondent also stated her religious 
belief. 
 
The respondent did not refer to any particular proposal 
or questions. 
 

Disability  

Gender 
Reassignment  

Marriage & Civil 
Partnership  

Pregnancy and 
Maternity  

Race  

Religion & Belief  

Sex  

Sexual Orientation  

  

Page 211



Actions required: 
• Consider the consequences for specific groups when detailed proposals are 

prepared and as part of the drafting process.  
 
 
5 In line with the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards. (No.1) 

Regulations 2015, please note below what effects, if any (whether positive or 
adverse), the proposal would have on opportunities for persons to use the 
Welsh language, and treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the 
English language. 
(The specific Policy Making Standards requirements are Standard numbers 88, 89, 
90, 91, 92 and 93.  The full detail of each Standard is available on the Corporate 
Policy Unit Portal.  Although it is important that what is outlined in the proposal is 
available in Welsh and English, please consider wider impacts on Welsh speakers.) 
 
The Welsh Language Standards have been followed in the preparation and 
publication of the Masterplan for consultation. The document and all consultation 
material will be provided bilingually, respondents will have the opportunity to 
complete surveys in Welsh and we will ask people to inform us if they wish to use 
Welsh at the public consultation events as per Standard 33.   
 
It is not anticipated that the initial proposals in the Masterplan would have an impact 
on the Welsh language.  
 
There could be an impact on the Welsh language should housing developments be 
proposed in pockets where the community is currently a Welsh speaking community.  
This needs to be considered in relation to planning and development and ensuring 
that the Welsh language is included and embedded in any plans.  WG’s strategy for 
A million Welsh speakers by 2050 is an ambitious target but is one we all have to 
contribute to.  The Five Year Welsh Language Strategy for the county borough 
includes a target increase of 3% over the five years in the number of Welsh speakers 
we have in the county borough (2017-2022) 
 
The Masterplan will ensure that the Welsh language is not treated less favourably 
than the English language and due regard and consideration will be given to the 
Welsh language when planning any changes/developments etc. 
 
Actions required: 

• Consider the impact on the Welsh Language when detailed proposals are 
prepared.  

 
 
 

Page 212



 
INFORMATION COLLECTION 
 
6 Please outline any evidence and / or research you have collected which 

supports the proposal?  This can include an analysis of service users. 
(Is this service effectively engaging with all its potential users or is there higher or 
lower participation of uptake by one or more protected characteristic groups?  If so, 
what has been done to address any difference in take up of the service?  Does any 
savings proposal include an analysis of those affected?) 
 
The Masterplan has been informed by data collected on the current usage of the 
area. The Council undertakes an annual survey of the occupiers of retail units within 
Gelligaer, Glan y Nant, Penpedairheol, Gelligaer as well as Nelson local centre and 
Ystrad Mynach town centre to determine vacancy rates.  A survey is also carried out 
of businesses on Industrial Estates in the County Borough, including the Masterplan 
Area, but there is no specific analysis of the demographic make-up of employees. 
 
With regards to users of the town centre, basic equalities information on socio-
economic group, age and gender is collected as part of the triennial Shopper Attitude 
Survey, where household telephone surveys were carried out with the Ystrad Mynach 
town centre catchment area, together with on-street surveys in Ystrad Mynach town 
centre. The collection of this information will allow a comparison to be made of the 
demographic profile across years to determine any changes to town centre usage by 
certain groups, which may have equalities implications. For example, an increase in 
vacancy rates in the town centre will mean less shops and services could be 
available, and this may disproportionately affect those who cannot travel to other 
locations due to certain protected characteristics and/or financial constraints. The 
Masterplan aims to build and enhance the role of the town centre which will benefit 
the existing users of the town centre and attract more people into the town. 
 
The age profile of the Masterplan Area is broadly similar to the County Borough as a 
whole. It is important that as projects are progressed, appropriate consultation is 
carried out with younger people too.  
 

Age Group 
Ystrad Mynach 

Masterplan Area County Borough 
Under 15 18.4 18.3 

15-24 11.4 12.4 
25-44 26.0 26.2 
45-64 26.2 26.6 
65+ 18.1 16.5 

 
In 2016 26.9% of people in the county borough aged 16-64 were disabled as defined 
by the Equalities Act. 
 
In the 2011 Census 97.3% of the County Borough population are identified as 
English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British.  
 
There were 6 people in the 2011 Census who identified themselves to be within the 
Gypsy or Irish Traveller ethnic group (0.02% of the Ystrad Mynach Masterplan Area 
population). 
 
No data on the demographics of visitors is currently recorded. 

Page 213



 
Actions required: 

• Continue to monitor retail vacancies and the demographic profile of those 
using the town centre through the Annual Monitoring Report and Shopper 
Attitude Survey. It will be necessary for future Shopper Attitude Surveys to 
include equalities monitoring information.  

• Consider collecting demographic data on visitors. 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
7 Please outline the consultation / engagement process and outline any key 

findings. 
(Include method of consultation, objectives and target audience.  What steps have 
been taken to ensure that people from various groups have been consulted during 
the development of this proposal?  Have you referred to the Equalities Consultation 
and Monitoring Guidance?) 
 
The Masterplan has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s Consultation 
and Monitoring Guidance.  
 
A number of stakeholder events have taken place to inform the development of the 
Masterplan.  This included: 

• Meetings and consultation with internal working group and representatives 
from Planning, Regeneration, Engineering, Education, Leisure, Countryside.  

• Stakeholder Workshop – key landowners and interested parties – 13th March 
2018 – discussed key issues facing the town and how these can be 
addressed. 

• Masterplan area ward Members and Community Councillors Workshop - 22nd 
March 2018 – discussed key issues facing the town and how these can be 
addressed 

• Valleys Taskforce Strategic Hubs Workshops – Meeting with key Businesses 
to discuss the vision for the strategic hubs of Caerphilly and Ystrad Mynach - 
25th September 2017.  

• Masterplan area ward Members and Community Councillors Workshop – 5 
September 2018 – discussion on key projects identified in the Masterplan  

A six week public consultation was held between 28th January 2019 and 8th March 
2019.  As the survey asked only a small number of questions, the guidance 
advocates the use of an alternative ‘equalities-specific’ question.  This question asks 
whether any of the questions in this survey have been impacted by any of following 
(age, disability, ethnic origin, gender, gender reassignment, marital status, religious 
belief or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or other languages, nationality or 
respondents.  The survey also records key data on the age group of respondents, 
their gender and their postcode (all optional questions).  The purpose of collecting 
postcode data is to determine the proportion of respondents to the survey who are 
residents within the Masterplan Area, and the proportion living elsewhere. 
 
 

Page 214



The survey was intended to reach a wide audience rather than a very small scale 
survey, so it is not anticipated that equalities monitoring could compromise the 
privacy and anonymity of individual responses.  
 
Consultation emails were sent to a range of stakeholders, landowners, AMs, MPs, all 
CCBC members, all community councils and neighbouring authorities.   
 
A bilingual letter was sent to all town centre businesses advising them that the 
consultation is taking place and how they can get involved.  
 
All consultation material was prepared bilingually.  In addition, a bilingual exhibition 
was available to view through the duration of the consultation period, and officers 
were available on several dates to discuss proposals.  The posters advertising the 
events indicated that translation facilities, Welsh speakers, a hearing loop and help 
with access could be available on request.      
 
A report on the consultation on the Masterplan has been prepared, considering 
issues raised as part of the public consultation.  
 
Actions required: 

• Further consultation and engagement with stakeholders will be carried out as 
schemes in the Masterplan are progressed. This will include the statutory 
consultation as part of the planning process. 

 
 
MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 
8 How will the proposal be monitored? 

(What monitoring process has been set up to assess the extent that the service is 
being used by all sections of the community, or that the savings proposals are 
achieving the intended outcomes with no adverse impact? Are comments or 
complaints systems set up to record issues by Equalities category to be able analyse 
responses from particular groups?)  
 
The Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) prepared for the LDP records data for a 
number of indicators on issues that the Masterplan is seeking to address – footfall in 
town centres, vacancy rates, satisfaction with town centres, retail spend.  A 
comparison of data against monitoring targets will provide an understanding of the 
vitality and viability of Ystrad Mynach town centre.  However, this monitoring process 
will not focus specifically on the impact of all sectors of the community.  
 
As discussed in Section 7, the triennial Shopper Attitude Study records certain 
information about the users of Ystrad Mynach town centre.  Future studies will allow 
comparisons on how the demographic profile of town centre users is changing, which 
may be influenced by schemes in the Masterplan being implemented in the longer 
term.  
 
The comments made as part of the public consultation exercise have been reviewed 
and it is considered that the impact on service users is minimal based on the initial 
information. However, as detailed proposals are progressed, a more detailed review 
process would be needed.  
 
Actions required: 

• Monitoring of the triennial Shopper Attitude Study 
• More detailed monitoring and review as projects are progressed. 

 

Page 215



9 How will the monitoring be evaluated? 
(What methods will be used to ensure that the needs of all sections of the community 
are being met?) 
 
Section 7 of the Masterplan ‘Delivering and Implementing Change’ sets out the 
expected/indicative outputs, as well as funding secured and potential costs.   
 
The Regeneration Project Board will consider and prioritise projects that will be the 
focus of the Council’s initial regeneration priorities in the short to medium term.  The 
pipeline of projects will be reported to Cabinet on a six monthly basis and be updated 
accordingly as schemes progress. 
 
A section on equalities implications and monitoring as schemes progress to a more 
detailed stage could be included within the Regeneration Project Board’s 
assessments.  
 
Actions required: 

• The equalities implications of the projects are considered and monitored by 
the Regeneration Project Board.  

 
 
10 Have any support / guidance / training requirements been identified? 

(Has the EIA or consultation process shown a need for awareness raising amongst 
staff, or identified the need for Equalities or Welsh Language training of some sort?) 
 
Officers involved in the preparation and implementation of this document have 
attended the Council’s Equalities Impact Awareness training and intend to attend 
additional training on Equality Impact Assessments to aid the development of future 
EIAs. 
 
Actions required:  
 

• Those officers that will be implementing proposals in the Masterplan to attend 
additional training on Equality Impact Assessments if they haven’t already. 

 
 
11 If any adverse impact has been identified, please outline any mitigation action. 

 
It has been highlighted that many of the projects are inter-related, so the delivery of 
certain proposals may mitigate against the impact of others.  However, at this initial 
stage in the Masterplan process, any potential impacts cannot be fully determined 
due to the lack of detail in the proposals. Impacts will be considered in detail as 
projects are progressed. 
 
However, there will be considerable benefits to particular protected characteristics 
including i.e. improved transport links, improved retail provision to serve the needs of 
all groups, more accessible buildings, availability of services to all, the development 
of fit for purpose housing, including affordable housing built to accessible standards, 
improved leisure facilities for all. 
 

 

Page 216



 
12 What wider use will you make of this Equality Impact Assessment? 

(What use will you make of this document i.e. as a consultation response, appendix 
to approval reports, publicity etc. in addition to the mandatory action shown below?) 
 
The document will be available on request and will inform the report of public 
consultation that will be prepared upon completion of the public consultation.  
 
The Equalities Impact Assessment will be monitored and updated regularly to ensure 
that any negative impacts are mitigated. 
 

 
13 An equality impact assessment may have four possible outcomes, though 

more than one may apply to a single proposal.  Please indicate the relevant 
outcome(s) of the impact assessment below.   

Please tick as appropriate: 
 

No major change – the impact assessment demonstrated that the 
proposal was robust; there was no potential for discrimination or adverse 
impact.  All opportunities to promote equality have been taken.  
 

Adjust the proposal – the impact assessment identified potential 
problems or missed opportunities.  The proposal was adjusted to remove 
barriers or better promote equality.   
 

Continue the proposal – the impact assessment identified the potential 
problems or missed opportunities to promote equality.  The justification(s) 
for continuing with it have been clearly set out.  (The justification must be 
included in the impact assessment and must be in line with the duty to 
have due regard.  Compelling reasons will be needed for the most 
important relevant proposals.) 
 

Stop and remove the proposal – the impact assessment identified actual 
or potential unlawful discrimination.  The proposal was stopped and 
removed, or changed. 
 

  
Completed by: Lisa James 
Date: Updated March 19 
Position: Senior Planner, Strategic and Development 

Planning 
Name of Head of Service: Rhian Kyte 
 

√ 

 

 

 

Page 217



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 218


	Agenda
	6 Cyngor Arbennig a gynhaliwyd ar 21 Chwefror 2019.
	7 Cyngor a gynhaliwyd ar 5 Mawrth 2019.
	9 Adolygiad o Graffu.
	Review of Scrutiny
	COUNCIL – 16TH APRIL 2019
	SUBJECT: review of scrutiny
	REPORT BY: Corporate director for corporate and education services
	1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
	2. SUMMARY
	3. RECOMMENDATIONS
	4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
	5. THE REPORT
	6. ASSUMPTIONS
	7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES
	8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS
	9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
	10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
	12. CONSULTATIONS
	13. STATUTORY POWER

	Review of Scrutiny App 1

	10 Y defnydd o Ddata Pleidleisio Electronig.
	11 Uwchgynllun Ystrad Mynach.
	Ystrad Mynach Masterplan
	COUNCIL – 16TH APRIL 2019
	SUBJECT: YSTRAD MYNACH MASTERPLAN
	REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES
	1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
	2. SUMMARY
	3. RECOMMENDATIONS
	4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
	5. THE REPORT
	6. ASSUMPTIONS
	7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES
	8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS
	9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
	10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
	12. CONSULTATIONS
	13. STATUTORY POWER

	Ystrad Mynach Masterplan App 1
	Ystrad Mynach Masterplan App 2
	Ystrad Mynach Masterplan App 2
	Ystrad Mynach Masterplan App 2(1)
	Ystrad Mynach Masterplan App 2(2)
	Ystrad Mynach Masterplan App 2(3)

	Ystrad Mynach Masterplan App 3


